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GLEHBMEL BB KA AR EHM TR R T

AFERMEE
IERRIALSMOAE
MBRUREMES

2009

14,612,780 87
2,425, 800. 02
3,237, 490. 88

20085
20.474,777. 67

9. 710, 000. 00
1,637, 807.80
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LY 425+ RBRARREH RS

12.

2000 ep 86225 '

BEExIROERES 1. 163, 639. 00 2,327.218.00

RIBTERA

1,655 189.13 -

— T Y

22, 894 689.68 34 149 863 47

FoHmafED. ZMHXGLEFARRNSEHRYRNF5E ML RS,

BB &

20094

FHEF
HRBRMLE

20084

i3 %) $ 3
FRBMESR

T R

MitTig Lk

" Em

BRI R
amse
FiRfER
RIP R RAE &6

FIN AEitie ZERL FXRR
%o Eidt ]

13.116. 508. 824, 265, 208. 87 785, 554.08 8, 455, 849. 148, 140, 403. 59
9,237,841 31 3 287,937 13 3,040,043 .80 - 9,485 534 64

22,354,151, 237 553, 23400 3,825 597 B8 _8 455, 840. 1417, 625 938. 23

SN Kt EERL 33 4
Lo %0

16, 480, 136. 011, 008, 932. 28 4, 375. 766. 65 (5. 208. 80) 13, 1186, 509. 92
6,184, 823 48 3, 084, 306. 20 31, 588 37 - 8,237,641 .31

22,685,059, 404, 091 238. 468 4,407, 355. 32 (5,208, 60) 22, 354, 151. 23

2009 € 20085

- 13, 544 212. 50

20004F 20085

iE 97, 200, 000. 00 184, 600, 000. 00
58, 023, 343. 03 10. 000. 000. 00

i¥2 27,857.813. 06 -
13 30, 000, 000 00 45, 000, 000. 00
210, 080, 856 08 238, 900, 000. 00

——————— iy t————————— e

2L DENBRBRRATRAMNANTNSIEIHRITHALITEITTRMARES R,
BROBEASSEHART?, 00075 7T, B R EIEE200973 128 E2010F3 12
BABRMFABR. RITALTRRGME, KE2009412H31 1k, AL EEEE
TRIRUEBXSRAARBT20% 7T

AL HEE S F RGUEH R AT 5 PERITREBHEITRI T REHRESH,
HRMDBAGETHARTS, 00077 7T, BRTHEIEE2009FEI [ 14HZE 20115444
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FENT #525 # RESR B A T3]

=2:

BENEROATHEARUITRAICIN. £F2009F12A31H k. EETEREALE
BAEERITOREBXSGEAARSI, 50077 T,

ARAATHERABFERTRLOASPARTIRIELKTEIT T REBRESA. 8
RORBEELB|HARMS, 50077 7T, BIRFE B FEE2007E58 106 F2009F12 531
BHBECMT ERRBITARICR. KE2009E12831H 1, BEHEREASEIHTM -
ATEZRITOREBXRGAHART2, 5000 7T

AR AN TERBFERABA NS PEARKBITTHITET T REGRESE. 10
RORBLALERHART6,0000 T, BREBHRAEMW H SRR DLATHTE
AARTHAFMRESZ ORAFNEBOFAHRRMITRRLLT. LE00F121
3181k, ERMTT 4 MRS R 2 R SR TR0 RE (6 KRB A RTDS, 00077 5T

ALRLPRAMTHALTRIT TROMICOE, LARMIL, ST AHERFX AKX
B RHPRRTOALARENERERARIT2007,660.747. HEARM
13,708,770. 528, #F2009F12A3181t, XARMELBITRHARBRKGH X
2,007.669. 74 T, #i& AR13, 708, 770. 527T.

AR RRETERARIRARAAMLUARTL 30T TRRET ASLITRAMP, BB
HXRIT. BYIRRMUT. TABTOPEAUTREMEHHEE, RTARS
14, 148, 842. 547C.

ANFHREHFRRARNT RO B S ZARITREBITET TRREARIESE, 18K
RRBEZSAHARTS, 000777, BREMEEEE200948 190 F201058 198
REFBOHAMHRRMITRLCHA. RH, KEIERBRARTRLT SXBRITAE
SHIBITTREBHRN SR, UATNERRAFYHULEHE RS, 2ENRR
ASEBEHARTS, 0855, BRTEMEEE2007FI2A30HE2010£12 4300 WE
FOFA K. BE009F12A31H b, BN £ ML TTR L T T IARITOHRIP I
(RUE B XK HA RS, 00055 7T,

F2009F12A31H, LRBEXNERS, SHMHRN8119%-2.3438%, ARTH KN
4.6170%-5. 31% (20084 12 31t1: 6. 21%-6. 39%).

T2009 121318, T ¥ KEB K 1% 648 Wi i K.
RHESUHN

20004 20084
FIERRAH 2,425 800. 02 9, 710, 000. 00
R{TRE

20004 20084F
RITRRLE 132, 529, 857. 47 83, 336, 295. 60

— s c—————————.

TR iR KR & BA AR 132,529, 657. 475T.

Jgpg: 3 4

FATKET it Q. AR £ AATIEE.

F2009F12A31H. A, RS ERTALTIHE5H) L ERRRBR 6 OB K BT EAXBITE
XIH (2008128318 X).
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ZEW H1F A RBARBRDA NS 2009 IR
T2009F12H318. ERBiLI1EQOKXEMNTEEFRMT.

PEARR E{1& % RETRB
FRRBLUH RS 1. 680, 836. 23 REEMBRE
RUDERERITEEHMRLAF 1, 008, 000. 00 REIERRER

BLESKR I FORBUE &K, AxAARBGHREE.

20006F : 20086
R L #HeART R C® HSART
Ez{F0KER
— & 42,111.00 6.8282 287,542.33 B812.422.94 6 8348 5,552, 58583
— B 1,371.428.00 ©0.0738 101,211,390  571,428.00 0.0757  43,257.10
18. Pt

F20095712f1318. KBk KEDERH &2 5% (A5%) LIERRIVR G R KA RXB A0
KI5, (20082£12A31H: X).

F2009%E12H31H, &M BIDIFEHXBEHAYKE.

20004 ] 20084
A ¥ HEART Hh CE HEARS
i L4038
— %R 648.940.05  6.8282 4,417,436.05 201,428.09  6.8346 1, 891, 794.42
— B (14.512.81) 97971 (142, 183.45) 1,238 87 9.6580 11,966, 25
19. Bt RIKM
20098
F A HRM EEXT FEXRE
I#&. R&. 2
DAY 3.585.231.99 85,082, 515.43  72,865.687.33 15,812, 080. 09
RIEHR - 4,578.829.58 4,578,829 58 -
Hewwn 41,158.00 12,815,737.45 12,856, 895. 45 -
Reb: BARERR 28.073.48 8,585 452.05 8. 583, 525. 51 -
ETRIER 6.437.11  2,286.424.40 2,292,861, 51 -
SR B 3.830.98  1.087.023.44 1,100, 854, 42 -
IHhiRaEe 2,172.74 638, 636. 82 640, 809. 36 -
EHERER 643. 11 228, 200. 94 228, 844. 85 -
THLARE - 2,473,431.74  2,473,431.74 -
SRROMT
BHSH _1,624,896.468 _ 2,012, 860.50 _ 1,806,221 38 _ 1,831 544 58
5,261,286.45 106,963,383 70 94,581 065.48 _17,643, 604. 67
20087
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Teem——— .

| :
| - ;

L ]
ZOIY 527 $ REARRDH RS 2009 &-*M&-NZZ:L»
2] p.X-37) ] EER TR
I#. 8. 2%
M 4,301,308.15 77,780,183.75 78,488,257.91 3, 505.23%.09
RIBHR -~ 4.546,787.32  4,548,787.32 -
#HeRRP - 11.810,127.75 11,768.969.75 41,158, 00
Rep: BARERR 8.007,082.17 7,979,008 71 28,073. 46
Erann 2,208.774.30 2,202, 337.19 6.437.11
kb iRe 8 1,008, 637.32 1,004, 806. 34 3.830.98
Iskum 378, 258. 80 377,084.08 2,172.74
T HERR 208, 377. 18 205, 733. 45 643. 71
TERLRE - 2.581,318.88 2 581,318 86 -
SERONT
BHSHR 677, 145. 01 1,863,185 71 715,434.26 _ 1, 624 896 46

_—— 0 e O, T e e Y

4,078 451 16 08 381, 603.39 68 088 768.10 5 261 286 45

9F [&LRNBINATERLBHARTI 831,544.585C (2008412H310: ARM
1,624, 896. 4677.). :

R E T AR RIS (E 201006 ) F RIS .

20. BB

2009 20085

. 11:¢54 (11, 385, 602. 60) (2.561. 687. 32)
DAFRIBR 2.188,071.08 (372,688 41)
AR 88, 887.03 62,937.78
TibERAKR 281, 208. 60 537, 484. 60

;e 343,758.70 69, 086. 55

EpTEB 177.538.06 205. 488. 70
BERMHM 1,059.172. 1 805, §58. 22

W PIR R 1.853,552.28 1,370, 558. 27

k $i3: 4.184. 71 540. 00
EHiEAR 2, 840. 00 1, 260. 00

(5,368, 310. 42) 118, 220. 39

21. HismAK

20094F 20084F

Rig & REH 33,085, 853.45 57,904, 373.83
HWRREREEH) 3, 368, 958. 71 3, 166, 484.00

prt ] 4,050.911.88 1,981,184, 268

f:41:) : 7,251,079.25 8, 800, 584. 32

47736, 903. 09 89, 852_636. 41

AT AL RIS (A5%) LU E RARBBR G R R MKW T

20089 20084




LY 357+ REARBRGA R 4]

22.

23.

2009 £ S ABE

FERBRRMEAEMRLR -

19, 880, 554. 08

F2009F12A31H. EEBILIENXRIBE(TRUT:

nARK 525§ 1)
AICI T AR R AR B 3.781, 450. 51
FRFRANAMLE 1,023, 600. 00
FENTEC INC. (ULTRA) 1.042, 756, 24

UL BRI 1 EM KRR AKX, R RIRRE BRI,

F2009%12A310, RN XEBRRAGHMROT:

*ALHRE

ARKA
BRMA
R EIERM

5&x#EBXR &8 3] =R 31536

SERMLLE (%)

ARAKIRBAMLE M=%/ 13.380.000.00 9P ALK 27.69
BRCIT PR ARA® WMZH  3.791.450. 51 p2: 23581 7.84
International Forming B=F 3,548, 707.00 640 HUA 1.43
20,700, 157, 51 43.36

F2008%12A3180. EfEE{HKEGRABANMELLNTF:

5xgAXHE &% it SRR R
LSHEGLEE (%)
FERBITARBHIALT B0H  19,860.554.08 3N ALIA 28.43
BRI TP BB BRAE) W=F  3.791,450.51 LR 5.43
ABFEAZRILIPHEHRLE  $=FH  3.950.960 00 p3: 450 5.68
International Forming B=FK 6,234,648 00 37 BLEA 8.92
33,837,612, 57 48. 44
T2009%12A318, HARLUSHIRORIBETRREY:
20094F 20084
R C® HFEARD B CE HESARD
RibEIR
— &t 465.411.84  6.8282 3,177,925.81  340.813.81 6 8346 2,329,324.70
— & 381.385.64  9.7971 3,736,473.25 202,209.84 9. 6590 1,953, 142. 81
—FERBINEERA N G
20094 20084
— A RRNKIAES - 100, 000, 000. 00
L3 GE: 74
105




[

L2

ZCNY AT AAARROAMA Y W9 FHARE
2009F 20084
PR B3 80, 000, 000. 00 -

24.

25.

F: FATEPRiBORITET T REEGRPSE, UBTHFRARRY VL BEMN
AT, BROBBELSBHARTIG, 90757, BETHEAEE09%12A22EHE
20011222 N BB K. MFE20094 127318 L, AL AERBITHKNE
KR/GHARTS, 00075 7T,

F2009F12H318 . EMBERMT:

(=N
i

©w%a

P @i it 0148172009, 12. 25
PEMHORIT2009 12 25

THEMK

20094

XARSHARE

2008£F

ERTABEARESHERYE

BHEAEHEERA L L

ERNERESABERRR
f#Re

RASKERA

NAESRBrEQARAE

S AR AR

RARBSRAERNRE

HibEFEHA R

B

F2009F12A31 8. EEWSAN SR> HXORAHE), AFHRRVERE.

13 4 HE 20094 K &
L Jtd=] )

2011.05.20 AR 3.51 40, 000, 000 00
2011.08.20 AR 3.51 40, 000, 000. 00
£0,000,000. 00

: 291 -4 FEHE FERN

500, 000. 00 500, 000. 00 -

500, 000. 00 . 500, 000. 00 ~

F£8 p3:3 011 EXRE

2, 850, 000. 00 2, 850. 000. 00 -

150, 000, 00 150, 000. 00 -

387, 000. 00 397, 000. 00 -

500, 000. 00 - 500, 000. 00

1,000, 000, 00 1. 000, 000, 00 -

350, 000. 00 350, 000. 00 -

70, 000. 00 70, 000. 00 -

5,317, 000. 00 4,817, 000. 00 500,000. 00

20094 2008

1,850, 95675 -
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ZELY 527 REARRDA NS 2009 44 xnE-ZT o
26. 2.3

AN F LY AT AR T 284, 350,000 007, BRBUARTIT, RESPFZRLEHMT:

20097
F FAK
R 241 ;3 b8y
— AREYRERS
Rt AERL 141, 372, 000. 00 49.72%  171,087.218.00 60. 17%
St
BMAEEHEABFR 127,627, 500. 00 44.88% 121,627, 500. 00 44.88%
BRERAMIE 13, 774, 500. 00 4.84% 42,215, 250. 00 14.85%
BEHR 20, 847, 125. 00 10.53% 1,254 469 00 0. 4a%
ARBRERG ST 171319125 00 60.17% _ 171,097, 219.00 60 17%
= REFHRH
ART#HEAR 113, 252, 781. 00 39.83% _ 113,252, 781.00 39. 83%
TR R A St 113,252, 781. 00 39.83% _ 113 252 781 00 39. 83%
= RHEN 284,350, 000. 00 100.00% __ 284, 350, 000. 00 100. 00%
20082
ki3] - S E¥.3
;1 -4 [12:] i1 4 [34::]
~ ERBRERH
RitAEHRR 148, 280. 750. 00 51.44% 141,372, 000. 00 49.72%
nep.
BMAEEFEAMBBR 127, 627, 500. 00 44, 88% 127. 627, 500. 00 44, 88%
BAHARARR 18.653. 250. 00 6. 56% 13, 774, 500. 00 4.84%
2322 20,943, 375. 00 10 53% 20, 847,125 00 10.53%
HREHRARA ST 176, 224, 12500 81.97% __ 171,319, 125.00 80. 25%
= ERBRHFRH
ARTHiMAR 107, 835, 000. 00 37.86% 113,030, 875. 00 39.75%
Rit 490, 875. 00 0.17% - -
TR FHREG ST 108,125, 87500 38.03% _ 113,030, 875.00 39. 75%
= BRHRLN 284, 350, 000, 00 100. 00% __ 284, 350, 000. 00 100. 00%
21. BALR
20094

FN XEfm EEFERD FRE
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ZEY Hi 5+ REARRAA R ]

28.

29.

30.

2000 MBS

2 -1 339, 525, 324, 56 - - 339,525,324, 58
BEMREALR 5. 898, 400. 87 - - 5,808, 400. 87
RitFEELR 2,422, 500.00 325, 000. 00 - _2,747,500.00

347,846 225. 43 325,000, 00 - 348,171,225 43

KRB AR A BUH MR RIEEE R B (2006) 1048 X AR RRAKBETIBIA L.

2008%F
FUIR AEMM EEAD L33 4
BEUH 338, 525, 324. 56 - - 339,525, 324.56
L) 423581 5. 898, 400. 87 - - 5,898, 400.87
Rig@EALTR - __2,422 500 00 - _ 2,422, 500.00
345,423, 725.43 __ 2,422, 500. 00 - 347,846, 225 43

Eib @A LRI R RIE RS H %5 (1999) 8868 X ¢it A BRI H 4B &

BRALR
2009%

FONW
FEERRAT 82,485 413. 86
200848

FNN
FAEBRRAR 59, 534, 461. 66

MM XEAL FRB
3,835,587, 16 - 86,121,001 02
X Efim RERD FR
2,950,852, 20 - .62,485.413.86

RYEQ R AL T RREE. JH42009F3 280 HPARIL, AL FED R0 1008 B
EREKLPE, BEBALNVRITBNALFERRAESBLL LK, TARRR.

ANFEREERFABES. THRETRRLRE. 288, (IRAXNBEITMFHI

VARG B 5 B R A .

REEF

LEFRKSFRHA

BRT B8 REMPH D

#: RREEBRALNA
BT HARR &R H

FRRSEIGE

BABARRA

20004

103, 868, 333. 81

20084

- 127,928, 78888

87,303, 12562 21, 542, 695. 86

3.635.587.18 2. 850, 952. 20
28, 435, 000. 00 42, 652, 498. 53
139,180, 872. 27 103, 868, 333, 81
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ZEXY #5175 ¥ REARBEH RS

AR DT:
20095F 20084
E:§i 1 PN 1.314, 851, 507. 88 1,392, 429, 098. €9
Rk FH A 39,931, 639. 684 62, 260, 012. 18
1, 354,783,147 60 1,444,880 110 85

B RAFIROT:
20094 20085F
f: 31353 1,142,120, 654. 02 1,285 860, 679. 15

TN FNFARBAMT.
20094 2008¢F

wA 223 ®A &
X143 184,328, 255. 74 184,553,300, 20 283,614, 295.56 258, 305, 323, 71
Wit 55.700,767.58  45,019,404.28 103,665 003.84 85, 579, 269. 54
RRR 1,070, 735,130.38 899, 894, 630. 11  988,530,094.99 884,219, 312. 23
ERE 4,087, 345 268 3, 880 086.07 16,818,704 30 _ 13,989 258.17

— s e S, TER e98

1,314,851, 507,96 1,113 357,420. 67 1,302 420 008.689 1. 242 083 163 65

e e e — e ——— S————————

2009F B EH P BB A DT
4 1] SEBWA
e84 (%)
EFRRAFHMBRLT 128, 349, 879. 28 9.33
LiBAXNEBRLE) 117, 525, 884. 26 8.67
FRARIREANRLAAFTRS 26 123,793, 850. 31 9. 14
Kenwa Company Ltd 86,771, 108.08 8.40
General Motors Corp 80, 776, 463. 56 596
535, 216, 986. 48 39. 50

2008 M LB FAHITSBRA T,
3.1 AELWA
B (%)
Genoral Motors Corp 230, 364, 516. 51 15. 95
FRAMIBMARRLBNELFLE 124, 268, 251. 70 8.80
Kenwa Company Ltd 108, 310, 785. 86 7.29
AEZ LEICHTMETALLR DER GMBH 93,610,116 11 8. 48
ALET BRNEHRBITIRLE 82, 084, 928. 48 5.88
635, 638, 598. 76 44. 00
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ZEIY #5554 B ROH B 8) 2009 S F A&
31 B BRMM
20094F 2008
b:F13: 536, 039. 58 1.890. 00
HIRRERE BHM 6,719, 368. 85 7,648, 184.04
6, 255 406. 43 7,850, 074. 04
iHEERES RS R,
32. AferEsht A
20096 20085F
TRIIEBHM 7,284 399.98 (11,283, 218 08)
33, 31081
20005 20084
BERAFEWH - (8. 930, 225. 00)
SMOEA S R Wiy (7. 184, 127.00) 27, 904, 625. 80
Rit - 150. 00
(7,184 _127. 00) 18,074, 550. 60
FHRENARD., ABBAORAUROITEHERAHH.
34 [2£.3.3:]
20004 20084
nexd 13,871,674 42 25, 856, 809. 08
& HEWA 3,227.427.63 8.7786.453. 01
TR R (W) (2.641,168. 87) 13.831,702. 93
RITFER 1, 892, 202. 03 2,920, 862. 83
9,895 371. 95 35,732 921. 91
35. b 3ad diit P
20094F 20084F
IR % 3.479.742. 81 (3. 388, 834. 89)
FRBM A% 247, 893. 33 3,052, 717. 83
3,727, 636. 14 (316,116 88)
36. WAy S
20094 20084
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2L A m RRARBROA DS

37.

" 38.

2009
ElF ok -Tad i3 £ UEU) 50, 889. 32 141, 397. 92
BTN 6, 375.086. 84 5. 341, 000. 00
AN 243,779, 74 138, 328. 74
it 1,748, 202. 58 828, 387.17
8,418, 958, 49 8,550, 113.83
WAL BRSO BAFINBY T
20094 20084
KB Em~ Rt O
#HE 320. 000. 00 840, 000. 00
SEAASH HHRFIB R IR DAY - 70. 000. 00
HFRNED - 35, 500. 00
Bl gut. 4 3108 3:h] - 148, 500. 00
Seit wAi b B 36 H RN - 900, 000. 00
RERTRENR - 3, 000. 000. 00
HRPCIRBIN - 150, 000. 00
BEEFHIHANE - 100, 000. 00
HO~RFRAE I - 48, 000. 00
EFISHHSWARHMRIAB Y - 249, 000. 00
WIGUBTHREELERENEE 80, 000. 00 -
RBBOFAEIRING 600, 000. 00 -
FRBAEMNN 3,596, 243. 25 -
PRYHH O 2SI, 855, 400. 00 -
BRI RN 300, 000. 00 -
ERGESIRNE Y 334, 000. 00 -
S5RENITEWREIIE 100, 000. 00 -
SEAMERERAF E LR 15. 000, 00 -
FHBRDWING 21, 000. 00 -
FIEEAH RIS 18,383, 59 -
GRIFS RO BRI 19. 700. 00 -
FIGNa-atbnme
El@-$20. 4. £-7:08 .3 135, 360. 00 -
8,375 086 84 5,341, 000. 00
L3125 2]
20094 20084F
EL 89 Fad 13813 256.412.79 15, 753. 89
8 RS - 40, 000. 00
BREBAERTE 198,153, 58 5. 538. 80
KERRERBE 1. 209, 989. 90 1,368, 185. 52
DEERRTY - 1, 220, 000. 00
Rit 131, 004. 80 179, 133. 51
1,795, 561.07 2,828, 618. 82
gzt 3]

1y




— z
- ]
ZLIY #527 A RBARROA LAY 205 4aais 20 |

20094 20085F
ERcligCE Y 3] 7.417,818.83 10, 767, 146. 88
BREGBHRRA 1,415 457.84 (4,741, 721, 34)
8 833 274 47 8,025 425. 54
FAKRRA SN QBROXRIRNTF:
20081 20085F
HALH 95,041, 334.33 27, 133, 029. 38
FEERBHROBRIBGHRA (1) 14,256, 200 16 4, 089, 854 41
FoREATRREGE R (147,367 22) 121,634, 83
EsV0f SIDEY SERE T 0N -4 - 1,883, 457. 89
RARBAIYA (2,191, 584. 42) (77. 964. 01)
FagmuanA 689, 778. 36 572, 271. 91
REENOERE (3. 582, 074. 05)
HRUMERITRNSH | ) (111, 202. 85) -
RWAMARMSH 3,310, 855. 68
RIZAMDRREEHRROWA 108. 518. 73 -
FRiZAMALBE RN NA 1,268, 37737 -
EFQ &R FREPRBHR (5,039, 443. 88) (262, 411.10)
RAMALGHEITN
MIRARA 8 833, 274. 47 6, 025,425 54

————— Si——————

= ARAFARIEE P DRARA O T NHRAABREARB R @ F RRE S
AV BNRBMEARALEFERNHKQRITIER. MBS HME. KAEMR®R
its.

39, L1808

ERFRUS KRR F A 26 B RRRN S0P N, BURITES R ERONXY SR
1.

NGRS RBTE &GRS IO

2009¢F 2008¢¢
L§:3
VAN F A2 5) Bl A AR 5
89 5 008 ) 59 87,393,125 62 21,542,095 88
wi
AT RTENHBAE
MNTEHH 284, 350, 000 284, 350, 000

—————— —————————

ANALHBHEEHAR. EXARSRUSEREASRESSHIE.
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FEXY 52T K ARARROH A

40.

41.

42

b

T R O1R BEEM A MR AL A RO KR SRR TENPEREHE FARBRE

(430150

AR a i

SR RIS BT I R A BN E A SF 2 A
L8 -Takid g
®: BIRRIASE MFRB RN
BT AR 2 2 28 SIAS AR Z AP TR

SNTHRBINNER
B WA ARBESWH LR ARENPE

ROW R 2% H TR

WHRRESREINEXORE
RipEHATERD
BATIhEN
Rit

MRS LEEING RGNS
RipEHRZED
HwERA
®ERA
EAMRITFRR
AR
Rit

EHORBEERFEDOIXHRNE
AL BB~

SBEHRS KL

BANDABHETENRERM:
b 2R
m: AFRIER

BEFEIFB
TR B PPN

20095 20086

500, 000. 002, 422, 500. 00

500, 000. 002, 422, 500. 00
(165, 847. 56) (317.185. 48)

(185, 847.56) (317, 185. 48)

334,152,442 105,314 52

20006 20085

- 86, 033, 882. 00
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- - 100, 000, 000. 00 100, 000, 000. 00
80, 000, 000.00 80, 000, 000. 00 - -
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20094 20084F
[B: A¥8%] 188, 450. 00S. 89 168.817,332. 75
\RE2F 76.216. 28 11,846, 424, 7
2 E3F 2, 907, 832. 81 -
201,434 05478 180, 763,757, 54
T X & BTN IF

E37 4 v EERP L3
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20008 11, 898 3 4250 804 &8 - 4 14 1,803,221 03
20085 10, 892 033 07 ! 03, - - 11,888, 985 33

200 20005

— HEAG  _ oppx 0 KESSR 0 GNAE
0 usw 6 ite a0 HMAW *G it
1.} 1]
w [£Y)
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F2009F12A318, RREBR KL AR KB AR TRABLOHERUAT KT RES T

HELR FHOE® iRtk Hd

Femtec Inc. (Ultra) 43.061,084.44  4,265.888.25  ©.70%

Minor Tire and Whes!l Inc 2.918,075. 11 2,907,832.80 99 65%

AIFBRNPLFABHMRLE) __4,315771.48 520,000.00  12.05%
51,194, 841.03 7,603 721.05

- d:3)

RERaY
el oY 382k
FaER MG

F2008 124310, RS BE KR AT IOA(E 0 538 ITHR 0BT GORTR K HBR & mF

LY F3 FHEE ittt
Eugene Enterprises Co., Ltd 8.455,849. 14 8,455, 849. 14  100. 00%
Minor Tire and Wheel Inc 3,443, 116.19 _ 3,443, 116.18  100. 00%
11,898 965.33 _11, 898, 965 33
20095 3% KF B WY O RV WMk Ak 4 F -
ki ¥: ] HBHEH HINARBE
Eugene Enterprises Co.. Ltd KW 8.455.840. 14 FHHM(AET

Ee

BHEERFE
FRER MY

ABRXH~%

&

F2009%12A310 . K2 T PHIFT1 A 22 B)5% (5%) LLE R G AR 63 8RR 00 (7 7 5% ¥ 4K (2008

#12A318: X).

T2009%12A318, HUKKEBWHEGWT:

5xMAXR 3 7] [T ]
Femtec Inc. (Ultra) W/ 43.961.084. 44 TELA
SEERRAEHNLE W=H 25.361,253.08 3IMAKIA
Fiat Pourchasing Italia S.R.L H=H 20.191.981.23 3P ALA
EBAXAERRLE WZFH  13.794,844.15 3N BUA
Wheeipros |ic W=H _13,502, 07488 67 ALIA

116,811, 947. 89

F2008F12A318, NEKXEENHEDT:

SXMAXR &% [
Femtec Inc. (Uitra) ®=#H 38703.897.73 1K
General Motors Corp. B=H 24,774,889.51 s BLIR
FR[ARESEHRLHE $=H 12.471.934.14 31 BUA
EFERRKERRLEF W=FH 12.12.519.22 3INBUA

& BB REGR B RR
BIEEBY (%)

21.82
12. 58
10.02
8.85
8. 70

57 88

SEWHERS 8]
AIEEBI (%)

21.48
13N
6. 980
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R 2009 20085
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- R 14,129,034, 18 6.8282 96.475.871.19 16, 717.525.20 6.8346 114,257.507.73
- AR 114,409, 481.27 0.0738  8.443.419.72 19,463, 580,00 0.0757  1.473,423.28
— B 2.252.968. 84 9.7971  22.072.561.02 858, 476. 62 9.65%  8.292,025.67
— R 238.009.50  10.9780  2.612.868.29 - - -
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FABNH AT ST
20084 20085F
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EX L] p Y30 EERM
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20005 135, 798 88 - - - 135 198 68
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2 2008 *%Changes

Results for the year (In millions of RMB) (Restated)
Operating Income 209,065 157,044 33.13%
- of Head Office’ 15,204 21.895 15.10%
- of Financial Services 66.663 3.035 -8.72%
- of Non-Financial Services 78,937 74.89%
-Real Estate and Infrastructure 4,703 206.74%
-Project Contracting 10,758 54.32%
-Resources 40.493 12.21%
-Manufacturing 13,512 128.72%
-Information Industry 2,774 77.45%
-Trading and Services 6.698 284.62%
-Unallocated 2.695 -44.69%
-Eliminstion -19.518 14.46%
Profit after Provision for Impairment Losses 25,850 36.86%
-of Head Office’ 14,289 48.11%
-of Financial Services 19,245 8.98%
-of Non-Pinancial Services 6.164 91.83%
-Real Estate and Infrastructure 1,788 101.83%
-Project Contracting 635 16.48%
-Resources 2.52 25.88%
-Manufacturing 910 163.55%
-Information Industry 60 299.88%
-Trading and Services 40 1943.81%
-Unallocated 3.816 —48.88%
-Elimination 16.19%
Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company 32.59%
1. Refers to CITIC GROUP tdefined a3 “the Cumpary” in the consulidated financial statements st ot in page [ 70 10 | 119} ).
B Head Office I Financul Services B Non-financial Services I Unnllo(uﬂ
160.009
119,00
= 139.00 29,005 o
g :f 1o 0.0
. g £0.00 [
2 o).
= .o
0,100
.00 0.0
<008 2009 " 0
Distribution of Operatiog lacome Changes in Operating Income Growth of Operating Income
1Nillias of R\B) (Ndlioos of RMBY
Mo
o 3.1
15,00 20, m
10,000 20,600
Z
5.0 . g
aw
- “%8 2009 . 0 2o 2008 "
Distifbution of Prelis alter Changes in Profit after Provision Growth of Peotit after Peovision for
Pronvision fue Impairnent Lisses for Impairment Losses hpaivinent Losses
(Mt of RAB) Miltions of RV

CITIC Group




At the Balance sheet date {In millions of RMB)
Total Assets
-of Head Office
-of Flaanclal Services
-of Non-Ploancial Services
Real Estate and Infrastruciure
Project Contracting
-Resources
‘Manufacturing
-Information Industry
“Trading and Services
-Us
-Blimination
Total Liabititles
-of Head Office
-of Financial Services
-of Non-Financla) Services
-Real Estate and Infrastructuce
-Project Contracting
-Resources
-Manufacturing
-Information lndustry
~Trading and Services
-Upallocated
-Blimination
Equity Attribotable to Shereholders of the Company
Financial Ratios
Net Profit Growth
Return on Average Total Assets’
Return on Average Equity’
Liability to Asser Ratio®

3

a4 at the beginning and end of the vear.
4. Caliulated by duvidiag total liabilities by tdal assets 33 a1

PL2LIC

the end of the year

20 2008 %Changes
{Restated)
1,624,102 32.62%
195,435 5.1%%
1,320,014 36.86%
291.141 16.41%
91.222 20.31%
16.414 -1.1%
80.293 23.96%
48,036 26.09%
23.212 5.51%
31,903 -11.28%
12.214 103.13%
-194,702 14.08%
1,433,436 34.81%
85,537 -18.57%
1.199.961 40.19%
168.075 27.06%
46,736 44.27%
15,314 -4.13%
57.186 11.51%
20,156 84.30%
10,652 9.58%
18.032 4.44%
44,328 -11.41%
—64,466 12.03%
108.78 24.36%
% /(=P
-10.22% 42.81%
0.9™% 0.03%
13.75% 1.74%
88.26% 1.46%

2. Calculated by diding net prott by the average of ol arsets a3 at the beginning and end of the year
3 Calculsted by dividing net profit atterbutable to sharchulders of the company by the average of equity attibutable i shacehalders

@ Head Office @B Fisancial Sarvices B Non-financial Services I8 Unallocated

Distribution of Tatal Assets

2.00.00
1500001
o). g
[RTX T
S oy
FRTTT

0,00

LR

Changes in Total Assers

Mdlians of RMHY

IMdlions of RAII)

1 gy
1ot 00
1. 4000
[R.UNT
[REAT
ELTY
00,1
00100
.0

Changes in Total Liahitiies

the campany

240,000
2.153.837

pXL IR
(R
1000, 1

000

»

Growth in Total Assers
(Milliuns of KM

160,000
140,00
120001
[D R
0. 000
60.000
RORT
20,008

Growth in Equin Aributable 1o
Shareholiters of the Compaoy
(Mliune ol R
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CITIC Group issued the first tranche of the 2009 medium-term notes in China's

Februar
y Inter-bank bond market, an RMBS3 billion five-year MTN issue at 3.85%.

Section W9 of the Algeria East-West Expressway, constructed by the CITIC-

March CRCC (China Railway Construction Corporation) Consortium and the largest
overseas contract ever awarded 10 a Chinese company, opened to traffic ahead
of schedule.

CITIC Pacific Ltd. underwent a management change. Mr. Chang Zhenming,
April President of CITIC Group was appointed Chairman and CEO of CITIC Pa-
cific.

CITIC Group, CITIC Guoan Group and Baiyin Nonferrous Metals Co., Ld.
May jointly founded CITIC Mining Technology Development Co., Ltd. to carry out
venture prospecting and develop mineral resources.

CITIC Group raised its stake in Macarthur Coal Limited, an Australian listed
June company, by 13,809,328 shares to 22.44% and remained the company’s largest
shareholder.

CSRC (China Securities Regulatory Commission) approved the merge of CIT-
IC Fund Management into China Asset Management (China AMC). As of the
end of 2009, China AMC was an apparent industry leader, its AUM topping
RMB300 billion.

CITIC Group was on the Fortune Global 500 list for the first time, ranking the

JUIY 415th.

China Investment Corporation took a 40% interest in CITIC Capital Hold-
ings Ltd. in consideration of HKD1.86 billion. After the transaction, CiTIC
Pacific Ltd. and CITIC International Financial Holdings Ltd. each held 27.5%
of CITIC Capital Holdings Ltd.

"o CMIC Greup
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August

Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holding Co., Ltd. successfully launched the
anti-jamming AsiaSat 5 to replace the older AsiaSat 2.

September

CITIC Guoan Group issued two MTNs, including an RMB1 billion five-year is-
sue at 203bps above one-year term deposit rate and an RMB1 billion seven-year
issue at 220bps above the same (the issuer had an option to adjust the spread
above the fundamental rate and the investor a put option at the end of the Sth
year}.

October

CI'TIC Group celebrated its 30th anniversary in a variety of ways and through
aseries of events.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Ltd. (CNCB) acquired a 70.32% stake in
CITIC International Financial Holdings Ltd., marking the completion of the
Group’s effort to consolidate its commercial banking portfolio.

CITIC Guoan Football team won the Chinese Super League 2009 championship.

CITIC Pacific 14d. transferred a 14.5% Interest in Cathay Pacific Airways Ltd.

December

China CITIC Bank Corporation Ltd. (CNCB) announced that BBVA was to
raise its stake in CNCB from 10.07% to15% by exercising its call option on the
Bank. After the transaction, CITIC Group's shareholding in CNCB decreased
to 61.78%. The transaction will strengthen the long-term strategic partnership
between the two sides.

CITIC Guoan Group signed an Equity Transfer Agreement with Suntime Inter-
national Techno-Economic Cooperation (Group) Co., Ltd. to acquire a 21.69%
stake in CITIC Guoan Wine Industry Co., Ltd. the latter held. After the acquisi-
tion, CITIC Guoan Group was to become CITIC Guoan Wine's largest share-
holder with a 42.65% stake.

‘The Board of Directors of CNCB reviewed and approved a financing scheme
that would allow the Bank raise up to RMB25 billion in 2010 through public of-
ferings of subordinated debts or hybrid capital bonds to boost its Tier 2 capital.
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2009 marks the 30th anniversary of the tounding of CITIC Group. During the
past year, the Group took a series of measures against a complicated and challeng-
ing business dimate, which include, among others, timely adjusting investment
plans in certain arcas; defusing the crisis arising from CITIC Pacific’s AUD futures
contracts; consolidating commercial banking and engineering contracting port-

folios; and establishing a Risk Manag Department at the Group leve. ‘These

measures constituted an etfective response to the international financial crisis and
provided valuable experience for problem solving amidst extreme complexities.

With notable i

pr in its key busi indicators, CITIC Group achieved a

sound um of rapid and ined growth in 2009.

As of the end of 2009, consolidated total assets of CITIC Group stood at
RMB2.1538 tritlion, an increase of 32.6% over the beginning of the year; consoli-
dated net assets RMB135.2 billion, up 24.4%; operating income RMB209.1 billion,
up 33.1% year-on-year (yoy); total profit RMB35.4 billion, up 36.9% yoy; and
consolidated net profit RMBI18.9 billion, up 32.6% yoy. In 2009, CI'TIC Group got
on the Fortune Global 500 list for the first time, ranking the 415th.

.. : BT L
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Financial Services

Financial Services

CITIC Group offers a broad range of financial services including

commercial banking, investment banking, trust, insurance, fund

2 asset £ and futures, which provide the
advantage of comprehensive services and synergy with strong
brand recognition in the market place. In 2009, CITIC Holdings
drove collaboration among financlal services and integrated oper-
ations further: a team organizing comprehensive financial services
offered by subsidiaries and affiliates was set up and disseminated
the experiences emerging from the iHangzhou regional joint meet-
ing. A platform on which public subsystems are shared continued
10 be built and operated.

As of the end of 2009, 10tal assets of CITIC Group's financial ser-
vices stood at RMB1.8066 trillion, an increase of 36.9% compared
to the beginning of the year; operating income in 09 RMB66.7
billion, a decrease of 8.7% yoy; and net profit RMB21 billion, an
increase 0f 9% yoy.

S CITIC Grovp

Financial Services:

P&L Indicators and Changes
(RMB 100 million)
(2005-2009)

Operating 1220m

Tota! profit
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Commercial Banking

Commercial banking is a major pillar of CITIC Group's
financial services. The Group controls China CITIC
Bank Co. Ltd., a listed comp in Mainland China,

PUBLIC

it

CI1IC Baak's presarr weakh unegameot wernce

sets under management nearing RMB80 billion, credit

card issuance 9 million, profit more than doubled. and

which owns 100% of CITIC Ka Wah Bank through
CITIC International Financial Holdings Ltd. in Hong
Kong.

(1) Commercial banking in Mainland China. CIT-
1C Bank made considerable improvement in all busi-
ness lines in 2009. It continued to lead the corporate
banking market among small- and medium-sized joint
stock commercial banks, with corporate savings top-
ping RMBI 1rillion, corporate loans RMB800 billion,
and a solid 5.6% market share in international settle-

ment. Its share in retail banking grew steadily, with as-

p | savings RMB200 billion. Fee-based income
exceeded RMB4 billion. As of the end of 2009, total
assets of CITIC Bank stood at approximately RMB1.8
trillion, an increase of 34.5% over the beginning of the
year; and net profit in 09 RMB14.32 billion. The Bank
witnessed a drop in both the ratio and balance of non-
performing loans. Provision coverage ratio continued
to rise. Capital adequacy ratio was in line with regula-

tory requirements.
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Indicator 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Total assets 5.949.93 7.06859 10.112.36 13,192.55 17750.31
Net assets(note) 237.13 318.25 84136 1,19051 1027.98
Operating income 135.40 178.30 278.38 416.80 408.01
Net profit 3148 37.26 82.90 13262 143.20
Capital adequacy ratio” 8.11% 941% 15.27% 14.32% 10.14%
Core capital adequacy ratio 5.72% 6.57% 13.14% 12.32% 9.17%
NPL ratio 4.14% 250% 1.48% 1.36% 0.90%
Provision coverage ratio 79.88% 84.62% 110.01% 150.03% 162.28%

Note:

1. Excluding the effect of the retraactive adicsiment occursing trom CITIC Bank ™ s purchase of 70 32% stake :n CITIC Interstatanal Fnanoal Haldmgs.

the net assets alnbutable to sharekolders 1n 2008 amousited 1o RMBYS.3 bilion

2. CITIC International Frauncal Koldings was not taken mnto conswderation 1n terms of capital adequacy ratia, core captal adequaxy rato, NPL catio of provigon

coverage tai101n avcordance with refevant regulations

{2) Commercial banking overseas. [naccordance with the stra-
tegic planning of CITIC Group, CITIC Bank acquired a 70.32%
stake in CITIC International Financial Holdings at 1.43x P/B,
representing a successful restructuring of the Group's commer-
cial banking portfolio. While allowing CITIC Bank to carry out

international operations, the deal injected capital and vitality

Investment Banking

In 2009, the securities business of CITIC Group continued to per-
form well. CITIC Securities became the market share leader in un-
derwriting, brokerage, research and sales and trading. The overseas
market was explored, and a second-round capitalization of CITIC
Securities International completed. Having raised RMBY billion,
Mianyang Industry Fund became the largest RMB industry fund in
China. In 2009, CITIC Securities continued to be the industry No.1
in both operating income (RMB22.01 billion, up 24.3% yoy) and net
profit (RMB8.98 billion, up 23% yoy).

CITIC Geoap

into CITIC Ka Wah Bank, a subsidiary of CiFH. It will also fa-
cilitate future collaboration to explore cross-border structured
finance. Having absorbed the losses on Lehman Minibond Se-
ries, CITIC Ka Wah Bank recorded a net profit of over HKD900
million in 2009.

China Securities Co., Lid.. CITIC-Kington Securities Co.,
Lid. and CITIC Wantong Securities Co., Ltd. were CITIC Se-
curities’ key subsidiaries. As of the end of 2009, China Securities
had RMB66.01 billion of total assets and RMB7?.31 billion of net
assets; and net profit In 09 was RMB2.62 billlon. CITIC-Kington
had RMB22.16 billion of total assets and RMB2.26 billion of net
assets; and net profit in 09 was RMB990 million. CITIC Wantong
had RMB12.12 billion of tota} assets and RMB2.09 billion of net
assets; and net profit In 09 was RMB520 million.




pusLIC
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CITIC Securities: Key Business Indicators (2005-2009) (RMB100 million) z
. >
Indicator 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 )
52|
Total assets 203.16 639.21 1,896.54 1368.88 2068.07 E
Net assets 5646 12492 515.99 55222 615.99 E
Operating income 9.18 59.91 30871 177.08 22007 E
Total profit 379 3399 199.04 9561 133.02
Net profit 4 2435 123.89 73.05 89.84 §
-
1
i
Trust

CITIC Trust Co., Ltd. pioneered several medium- and long-term trust funds; provided Beijing, Tianjin and

Chongging with tens of billions of yuan worth of infrastructure financing; i d in agribusi 8

CITIC Guoyuan Agricultural Trust Fund; and made headway in SME financing, asset management and equity

v, . tal kN \

Upboldiog the castamer- fst phtiosophy. s128f of CITIC Thast climbed up Movat Gverest 1o sign contracts with Customess.
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investment. Operating Income in 09 stood at RMB2.08 billion, an increase of 3.5% yoy; net profit RMB960
million, up 2.8% yoy; and trust assets RMB206.8 billion. CITIC Trust’s performance on these measures was

among the best in the industry.

CITIC Trust: Key Business Indicators (2005-2009) (RMB100 million)

Indicator 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Operating income , 139 397 14.66 20.05 20.75
Incl. fee income 0.61 1.68 6.37 13,93 11105
Net profit 058 1.30 6.58 9.33 9.59
Trust assets 140.83 38551 1961.64 1607.79 2067.81
Insurance

CITIC Prudential Life Insurance Co.. Ltd., a joint venture between CITIC Group and UK-based Prudential
plc, increased selling through agents and other ways, and developed a more balanced product structure. Ac-
cording to the new accounting rules, the company recorded a premium income of RMB2.398 billion, a net
profit of RMB87.47 million, and an embedded value of RMB3.32 billion. It is the first profit-making year for

the company, whose life insurance portfolio will continue to run in the black.

Fund Management

CITIC Group offers fund management services through China Asset Manag Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of CITIC Securities, and CITIC Prudential Fund Management Co., Ltd., a 49%-held subsidiary of CITIC

Trust.

1In 2009, CITIC Securities completed the merger of CITIC Fund Management and China AMC. As of the end
of 2009, China AMC remained the industry leader in AUM (over RMB300 billion); its net profit in 09 was
RMBI.11 billion.

CITIC Prudential Fund Management, of which CITIC Trust and Prudential plc each holds 49%, had RMB22.8
billion of AUM. Its key business indicators hit historic highs: operating income in 09 stood at RMB224 mil-
lton, and net profit RMB47.01 million.

CITIC Gowp




Other Financial Services

CITIC Group maintained a good momentum of growth
in asset management, equity investment, futures and

other financial services.

CITIC Asset Management Co., Ltd. was actively pro-
moting its strategic restructuring. While continuing
with market-based acquisition and disposition of non-
performing assets, the company made initial success in
providing pawn service as well as short-term financing
for SMEs through Zhonganxinbang Asset Manage-
ment Co,, Ltd., and made progress in preparations for a
new financial leasing company. lts operating income in
09 reached RMB 335 million, and net profit RMB36.54
million, an increase of 59.8% yoy.

As of the end of 2009, CITIC Kingview Capital Man-
agement Co., Lid. managed RMB3.573 billion of equi-
ty fund assets; operating income stood at RMB34.507
million, and net profit RMB23.45 million.

With a 40% interest, China Investment Corporation
became CITIC Capital Holdings Ltd’s new sharehold-
er. CITIC Capital Holdings, a subsidiary of CIFH, had
USD2.8 billion of AUM. CITIC International Assets
Management Ltd. was pushing ahead direct invest-

ment and special funds management services.
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Non-Financial Businesses

Non-Financial Businesses

The non-financial portfolio of CITIC Group covers real estate
and civil infrastructure, engineering contracting, energy and re-
sources, manufacturing, information technotogy, and trade and
services. CITIC Group responded to a hostile market climate with
a series of measures which included enhancing the management
of CITIC Pacific, restructuring business portfolic and tightening
risk control, thanks to which all business lines grew in a healthy
way in 2009 and registered gratifying results.

CITIC Town Bak by CHIC Real Lstate

CITIC Group

As of the end of 2009, total assets of CITIC Group's non-finan-
cial businesses stood at RMB363.7 billion, an increase of 19.9%
compared to the beginning of the year, operating income in 09
RMB139.5 billion, up 70.9% yoy. and total profit RMB13.8 bulion,
up 38% yoy.




Real Estate and Civil Infrastructure

As of the end of 2009, total assets of the real estate and
civil infrastructure stood at RMB109.7 billion, an in-
crease of 20.3% compared to the beginning of the year;
operating income in 09 RMB14.4 billion, an up 206.7%
yoy; and total profit RMB3.6 billion, up 101.8% yoy.

(1) Real estate.  Real estate is one of CITIC Group's
keybusiness areas. In 2009, CITIC Real Estate Co., Ltd.
followed a well-paced approach, adjusting its land re-

serve layout and increasing investment in key cities in-

ferred and exited from four projects, with a GFA of
225,000 m*. Management processes were standardized,
with the city assessment and decision-making system
and project investment decision-making process es-
tablished and total budgetary management introduced.
In 2009, floor space newly constructed was 3.097 mil-
lion m?, floor space completed 1.233 r'nilllon m?, and
residential property sold and pre-sold 1.806 million m?
for RMB18.99 billion, with RMB15.81 billion already

received. A total of 838 mu of Jand under primary de-

cluding Shanghai, Tianjin, Guangzhou, Shenzhen and

Dalian. The company launched 10 new projects, with a

gross floor area (GFA) of 7.935 million m”; and trans-

top was transferred for RMB1.31 billion. Oper-
ating income in 09 amounted to RMB10.85 billion, and
net profit RMB1 billion.

CITIC Real Estate: Main Primary Land Development Projects (2009)

Project Equity interest Land area (mu)  Equity land area (mu)
Lot X1, Yizhuang, Beijing : 80% 227 1817
Urban West, Dujiangyan 70% 4,071 2,850
CITIC Shudu, Chengdu ’ 100% 7,343 7.343
Liping-Baiyin Lake, Jinggangshan 100% 2,327 2327
Boao, Hainan 100% 183,000 183,000

Real Estate and Civil Infrastructure:
P&L Indicators and Changes (RMB 100 million)
(2005-2009)

Toial profit
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Equity  Planned investment  Floor space

Project Trpe Status interest  (RMB100 million) (10,000 m)
Residential/Apartment/  Construction in
CITIC Town, Beijing Hotel/Office Progress (CIP) 100% 22472 178.10

Hotd/Commercial/

Dalian Port Office In plan 80% 186.33 12269
Asian Games Town, Guangzh Residential Inplan 20% 584.00 438.00
... .. Residential/Apartment/
Ceniral Business District, Tianjin HoteV/Office In plan 51% 196.36 12160
Shanyu Lake, Nanhai Residential Villa/Hotel/ cie 0% 168.02 162.94
Apartment
ot . Residential/Apartment/
CITIC Bay, Zhuhai Commercial cIp 100% 83.36 78.07
Ligang South Bay, Guangzhou | Residential Inplan 100% 6299 60.29
. . i ' Residential/Villa/
CITIC New Town, Changsha Commercial/Hotel cre 100% 57.29 183.00
| .
Baocheng Zone 26, Shenzhen Residentiall Apartment/ cip 100% 5572 53.00

Commercial

Residential/Villa/
CITIC Town, Changchun Commercial/Exhibition cip 60% 9222 159.62
centre/Apartment

CITIC Forest Lake, Dongguan ~ *  Residential/Villa cp 100% 4557 7190
CITC Future Town, Chengdu Residential CIp 100% 26.19 $8.20
Riverside Town, | Mixed-use project In plan 100% 93.98 86.09
Huizhou Reswdential In plan 100% 2492 57.36
Qingjian Lake, Suzhou ¢ ResidentialrVilla In plan 100% 2022 2194
CITIC Juntai, Tianjin ' Residential/Villa CcIp 70% 23.98 18.30
Shcngbo‘ Sh:mgilai Residential In plan 51% 30.65 13.12

N CITIC Group




CITIC Pacific continued to view its real estate investments in Mainland China as a core business. Focused on

Shanghai, other major cities in the Yangtze River Delta and Shenzhou Peninsula of Wanning, Hainan, it had a
total developable floor space of 5.09 million m? and invested property of 221,000 m*. In 2009, its development
prajects on the mainland went smoothly: the Lujiazui New Financial District project in Pudong, Shanghai was
to be completed: and residential properties in Shanghai, Wuxi, Yangzhou and Jiangyin sold well. The company’s
main property holdings in Hong Kong include CITIC Tower and DCH Commercial Centre, with a floor space of
285,000 m’, and the Discovery Bay project to be developed with a floor space of 231,000 m®. In 2009, its real estate
business made a net profit of HKD920 mililon.

(2) Civil infrastructure. The civil infrastructure busl-  oil terminal, the largest in China, and the 50,000 ton

ness of CITIC Group mainly includes expressways, Guanwai Liquid Chemicals Terminal were built. The
ports and undersea tunnels with investment from and

operated by CITIC.

operating income of CITIC East China Group in 09
was RMB2.47 billion, and net profit RMB570 million.

A consortium formed by CITIC Infrastructure Invest-
ment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of CITIC East China Group,
CITIC Construction and Chongqing Expressway
Group won the bid for and has begun construction of
the Jiangnan Exp y in Ch
vestment of RMB8.5 billion. The Chongqing-Guizhou

with a total in-

8q1ng

CITIC Pacifichasa 71% interest in the Eastern Harbour
Tunnel and a 35% in the Western Harbour Tunnel in
Hong Kong. In 2009, the daily average traffic through
the Eastern Tunnel was 62,987 vehicles, representing
27% of the market; and that through the Western Tun-
nel 48,222 vehicles, 21% of the market.

Exp y and Chengdu-Chongqing Exp y in-
vested by CITIC East China Group ran smoothly: the
toll revenue growth in 2009 of Chongging-Guizhou
Expressway was the hig.hesl among expressways in
Chonggqing. In 2009, CITIC Daxie Development Co.,
Ltd. accelerated its business transition. The business
structure of CITIC Port Investment Co., Ltd’s lique-
fied oil products terminals took shape: a 300,000 ton
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Engineering Contracting

As CITIC Group consolidated the assets, human resources and
business lines in engineering contracting, CITIC Construction,
a world-dlass contractor, emerged as the implementing entity
of the Group's entire engineering contracting portfolio. As of
the end of 2009, total assets of engineering contracting stood at
RMB16.2 billion, down by 1.2% compared to the beginning of
the year; operating income in 09 RMBI16.6 billion, up 54.3% yoy;
and total profit RMB700 million, up 16.5% yoy.

With painstaking efforts of all parties concerned, the Algerian
Expressway invested and constructed by CITIC Construction
opened to traffic ahead of schedule; 26.6% of the Social Housing
Project in Angola has been completed; the Thermal Power Plant
Project in Brazil was progressing smoothly and expected to be
completed by June 2010; the Social Housing Project in Venezuela
was moving ahead according to plan; the Diesel Engine Plant in
Myanmar was completed at the end of 2009; design of the Ce-

ment Plant in Belarus was ¢ 1

d and the proc went
well; Lines 1 and 2 of the Subway in Tehran were issued Comple-
tion Certificates, and Phase | of the Northern Section went into
operation. All of these projects won high praises from the heads
of state or government as well as the people of the host countries.
Issues with regard to the quality and delay of the Coking Project
in Brazil were well addressed. After constructive communica-
tion and negotiation with the owner. risks were under effective
control and the construction continued. CITIC Construction
has invested in and is the General Contractor of the Jiangnan
Expressway in Chongqing. In 2009, RMB29.327 billion worth
of new contracts were signed, bringing in an operating income
of RMB15.94 bitlon, an Increase of 55.1% yoy, and a net profit
of RMB450 million, up 3.1%. CITIC Construction ranked 59th
among the Top International Contractors in 2009 and was the

6th largest in China.

CITIC Group

PUBLIC

Engineering Contracting:
P&L. Indicators and Changes
(RMB 100 million)
{2005-2009)
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Construction Contracts of CITIC Construction (2009) g
>
New contracts Contracts in progress g
(RMB100 million) {RMB100 million)
Sector _ o o E
2009 2008 2009 2008 E
Civil Buildings 1719 345 401.29 355.36 E
Transportation . 173.69 156.58 35069 26315 L -
Industrial Manufacturing - [} 4101 - sl 5093 N ;
! = :
Metallurgy & Chemicals 4 15 3141 31.36
Energy & Electricity : 239 3.16 ) 34.69 3245
Total 29327 2057 869.08 733.25

Nate

. Cantracts 1n progress refer lw the lotal of uncempleted contracts

3 New contracts nlude sigred comracts vet to come st effect

Central and Southern China Municipal Engincering Design & Research Institute (CSCMEDRI) and Wuhan Ar-
chitectural Design Institute (WADI), subsidiaries of CITIC Group, are competitive and influential engineering
design institutes in China. CSCMEDRI focuses on urban design and was a market leader in terms of overall
strength in 2009. WADI, which maostly designs large-scale building complexes, was among the Top 60 Engineer-

ing Designers in China for a third year in a row with business activities in 25 countries.

The Social Houslag Progect i Angola lovested 2ad coastructed by CITIC Coagiruction
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Energy and Resources

CITIC Group enjoys economy of scale and competitive edge in
the energy and resources sector, covering petroleum, coalmines,
power generation, iron ore, manganese ore, salt lakes, alumini-
um, ferroalloy and superconductor materials. Despite the nega-
tive impact of dramatic price fluctuations in primary products as
a result of the global crisis, the relevant subsidiaries responded

with calm and kept the business going.

CITIC Resources Holdings Ltd. strengthened risk control and
market position in 2009 and realized an operating income of
HKD19.43 billion, an increase of 3.5% yoy, and a net profit of
HKD120 million, down by 43.4%. The Karazhanbas Oilfield in
Kazakhstan reduced capital expenditure and increased produc-

The iron ore project in Australs tgvested by CITIC Pacibic.

CITIC Group

tion through an improved operation and management. In 2009,
crude oil production reached 1.867 mdlion tons, an increase of
2.1% yoy. Drilling operations have begun at the Yuedong Oild-
field in Liache, which is expected to produce oil in 2010. Devel-
opment of the Bembele Manganese Project in Gabon sped up.

CITIC Metal Co., Lid. continued to expand and strengthen long-
term strategic partnerships with leading steel producers in Chi-
na by improving technological development capabilities and the
quality of service. lis ferroniobium import accounted for 73.9%
of the national total, and iron ore import 7.5 million tons. Op-
eratlng income in 09 stood at RMB8.17 billion, and net profit
RMB380 million.




Despite market fluctuations, CITIC United Asia In-
vestments Ltd. registered an operating income of
HKD11.23 billlon in 09, and a net profit of HKD110
million, a decrease of 36.9% yoy. China Platinum Co.,
L1d. realised an operating income of HKD8.S billion,
an increase of 2.1% yoy, and a net profit of HKD270
million, up 2.1%.

‘The Gansu-based Baiyin Nonferrous Metals Co., Ltd.,
jointly invested by CITIC Group and CITIC Guoan
Group, made headway in capacity expansion and reno-
vation of existing mines and smelting facilities. Its op-
erating income in 09 stood at RMB8.99 billion, and net
profit RMB350 milllon.

In 2009, Qinghai CITIC Guoan Sci-tech Development
Co, Ltd., a subsidiary of CITIC Guoan Group, gen-
erated a revenue of RMB690 million and a net profit
of RMB210 million. Its Research Centre for Compre-
hensive Use and Development of Salt Lake Resources
in Qinghai was designated by the National Develop-
ment and Reform Commission as a joint engineering
rescarch centre between the central and local govern-

ments.

CITIC Pacific pressed ahead with its iron ore project
in Australia. It is the largest overseas magnetite invest-
ment ever made by a Chinese company, and, when
completed, will offer a steady long-term supply of pre-
mium raw materials to China’s major steel producers

including the mills under CITIC Pacific.

Energy and Resources:

P&L Indicators and Changes

(RMB 100 million)
(2005-2009)

Operating 1oote

Total prefy
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Manufacturing

The manufacturing business of CITIC Group, which includes
heavy machinery, special steels, cement, power batteries and
auto parts, registered a good momentum of growth. As of the
end of 2009, total assets of manufacturing stood at RMB60.6 bil -
lion, an increase of 26.1% compared to the beginning of the year,
operating income in 09 RMB30.9 billion, up 128.7% yoy, and to-
1al profit RMB2.4 billion, an increase of 163.6% yoy.

CITIC Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. has become one of the world’s
largest mining and cement machinery manufacturers. By build-
ing an R&D centre that encompasses engineering, products and
processes, the company has brought its innovation capability to
the next level. its Heavy Mining Equipment Lab is the first Key
National Laboratory set up by a heavy machinery manufacturer.
Efforts to forge a “New CITIC HIC” were accelerated: a cutting-
edge platform for advanced equipment manufacturing was built;
the main body of its central piece, an 18,500 ton oil hydraulic
press, was at the final stage of installation. In 2009, order ntake
was worth RMB11.04 billion, and accumutated backlog of orders
RMB21.7 billion. Operating income was RMBS5.88 billion, an in-
crease of 17.5% yoy, and net profit RMB410 million, up 31.4%

yoy. By all business indicators, the company achieved a record

PUBLIC

!
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Manufacturing:

P&L Indicators and Changes
(RMB 100 million)
(2005-2009)

performance. Tol profi
&y_l’rodugl_s_ of CI_'I'IC&-  Industries (2009)
Output (MT) Output value (RMB10,000)
Sectors . - _ — - =
2008 2007 2008 2007
Coal (mines) 21619.2 20804.4 | 96986.6 76081.0
Metallurgy 36404.9 28776.9 | 1215469 83438.2
Building materials 123195.7 88990.6 ‘ 261617.0 212012.2
Electricity 5680.7 1745.2 : 195947 23970.0
Non-ferrous chemicals 12065.6 17484.0 i 51165.4 67805.4
i
Others 1040.8 23165 215984 341588
Total ; 200006.9 160117.6 572509.0 497466.6

CITIC Group




A workshop of Dicastal Wheed Manufactunng Co. Lid

Thanks to effective risk control, innovation, restructur-
ing and market expansion, Dicastal Wheel Manufac-
turing Co., Ltd. achieved rapid growth in production
and sales which hit historic highs and entrenched its
wheel

factur-

With an annual capacity of over 7 miltion tons, CITIC
Pacific is China's largest special stedl producer. In 2009,
especially at the beginning of the year when market de-
mand was weak, CITIC Paclfic Speclal Steel Company,

leadership in global al
ing. The company recorded an operating income of
RMB3.56 billion in 2009, and a net profit of RMB110

million.

To ensure a steady long-term supply of raw materials
to the Peari River Delta, Macau Cement Manufactur-
ing Co., Ltd. has secured quality resources in Heng
County, Guangxi Province, and is building a 6 million

ton clinker plant.

CITIC Guoan MGL Co,, Ltd. continued to lead the in-
dustry in technology and scale. It has been appointed
by Beijing Public Transport Holdings Ltd. to provide

batteries to its all-electric buses.

[< ing of Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel, Hubei
Daye Special Steel and Shijiazhuang Steel, focused on
improving independent innovation capabilities while
accelerating the execution of new projects, realizing a

net profit of HKD1.42 billion.

CITIC Machinery Manufacturing Co., ld. took solid
steps to overcome business slump and keep the business
running, Through total cost management and total qual-
ity management, the company cut its losses. Following the
government call to “build large power gencrators while
shutting down smaller ones’, it has completed the acquisi-
tion of small generator capacities. Under the guidance of
the Group headquarters, it has developed a preliminary

plan to reform itself and turn a profit.
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Information Technology

The focus of CITIC Group’s IT business is digital TV. As of the
end of 2009, total IT assets stood at RMB24.6 billion, an increase
of 5.5% compared to the beginning of the year, operating income
n 09 RMB4.9 billion, up 77.5% yoy, and total profit RMB1.1 bll-
tion, up 299.9% yoy.

The Pentium One backbone network of CITIC Networks Co,.
Ltd. operated smoothly. Great Wall Broadband Network Service
Co., L1d. increased its income and stopped losses. Valued-added
services were offered through Chongqing CITIC Networks' digi-
tal channels, and district- and county-level networks integrated.
The Network had 1.6 million subscribers including1.13 million

AsaSat 12t #o tarth Sestion

CITIC Group

digital subscribers, 300,000 more than the year before. Having
integrated all networks within the province, Henan CITIC Net-
works boasted 3.17 million subscribers, up 500,000 yoy.

CITIC Guoan Information Industry Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
CITIC Guoan Group, has further integrated cable networks
and digitized content. By the end of 2009, it had 21.48 million
subscribers including 10.96 million digital subscribers; its cable
business recorded a net profit of RMB185 millton in the year, an
increase of 56% yoy. Pre-1PO preparation for Jiangsu Provincial

Network and Wuhan Broadcast Network has begun.
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With the successfut launch of the anti-jamming AsiaSat 5, one of the highest-power
satellites in Asia, Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holding Co., Ltd. consolidated

its market leadership. AsiaSat 5 has now replaced AsiaSat 2 successfully.

A leading telecom company in Asia, CITIC 1616 Holdings Lid. provides telecoms
hubbing and other value-added services for corporate and individual clients in 62

countries and over 440 international telecom operators. lts profit continued to grow

JAOdTY INTWIOVNVIN @

in 2009. Operating income reached HKD2.72 billion and net profit HK1)370 mil-
lion. In February, 2010, the company acquired, with consideration paid in both cash

and shares, a 20% interest in Companhia de Telec icacoes de Macau from

CITIC Pacific, whose holding in CITIC 1616 Increased from 52.6% to 60.65%.

Trade and Service

CITIC Tlanjin Investment Holding Co., 14d. forged ahead with financial
back-office outsourcing and document delivery services. China CITIC

Press explored airport bookstore franchises: it has won 21 franchises at

airports including Beijing Capital International Airport and Hangzhou
Xiaoshan International Airport. It continued to lead in business publica-

tion and was awarded as a “Class [ Press in Social Sciences” by the General

Administration of Press and Publication in 2009. CITIC Offshore Hell-
copter Co., Ltd. carried out an increasing number of missions and its share
In the offshore oilfield aviation service market remained over 65%. CITIC
Travel Co.. Ltd. further explored the tourism market and became the first
travel agency in China that organizes travellers from different regions of

the Mainland China to visit Taiwan.
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Focuses in 2010

In the light of current situations and future needs, CITIC Group has identified its guidelines tn 2010: it will follow
the principles of the Centrat Economic Work Conference; carry forward Uts fine traditions and setze opportuni-
ties; tap into its overall strength and synergy; begin to build a systematic, routinized, specialized and sophisticated
operational and management regime and enhance risk management to elevate the overall competitiveness of the
Group. In accordance with these objectives, CITIC Group and its subsidiaries and affiliates will focus on the fol-

lowing aspects:

(1) Development of the 12th Five Year Programme

An outline for the development of CITIC Group during the 12th Five Year Programme period which will allow for

compliance, guidance, impl ion and adjustment will be developed. A systematic study of strategic issues

concerning sustainable growth of the Group will be conducted, which will identify the Group’s objectives, priori-
ties and tasks in the next five years. In line with the Group master plan and their own resources and capabilities,
subsidiaries and affiliates will develop their own five-year plans which will include fresh ideas and measures to

make their core business more profitable and competitive.
(2) Reform and integration

‘To mect the Group's strategic goals and objectives, internal resaurces will be further integrated, and business
structure optimized, to build a systematic, routinized, specialized and sophisticated operational and management
regime featuring clear objectives, scientific decision-making, effective allocation, smooth functioning, rules to
follow, controllable risks, well-defined responsibilities and well-deserved reward and punishment. While subsid-
iaries will operate in a more specialized and profitable way, the overall strength and synergy of the Group will be
given full play, helping achieve sustained, steady and balanced growth.
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(3) Implementation and supervision of major investments and contracted projects

Many CITIC projects including the expressway in Algeria, social housing project in Angola, and iron ore resourc-
s in Australla, are at critical junctures. The implementation and superviston of major projects will be enhanced:
the system for dynamic management of major projects will be improved, and tracking, inspection and risk man-
agement and control tightened, to ensure quality and progress; emergency response in major projects will be
improved; and comprehensive inspection and evaluation as well as whole process supervision and management

will be conducted to ensure the projects are matched by outcome.

(4) Risk management in all aspects of operations

Compreh risk manag, will be introduced, and the philosophy and processes of risk management will
be made an integral part of the Group's business and management practices. The risk management functlon will
be enhanced: risk management and internal control systems will be improved, a risk management information
system established, and a risk culture developed, which will combine to constitute a risk management architec-
ture that covers all operations, all employces and all processes. It will make risk management CITIC Group's new

strategic advantage.
(5) Acceleration of the shift in business model

Steady and rapid business growth will go hand in hand with the shift in business model; the fatter provides de-

velopment opportunities as well as vibrancy and sustainability. Performance assessment and remuneration man-

heidi

¢ sy at ics will be improved, and benchmarking introduced, to encourage subsidiaries to
change the way they do business, specifically to shift away from relying on growth in slze and Invesiment to
relylng on better resource efficiency, advances in technology and innovations in products, services, processes and

management.
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Keenly aware that it can never develop without the support of
the government and the community, CITIC Group has sought
to promote social good in a variety of ways thus contributing
to developing a harmonious society. In 2009, we invested nearly
RMB100 million in such social programmes as aid to Tibet, pov-
erty reduction, afforestation as well as disaster rellef, education,
charity and environmental protection, which helped build up a

pusitive corporate image.

—— Aid to Tibet. CITIC Group provides partnership assis-
tance to Xainza County, Tibet Autonomous Region. In 2009,
CITIC spent RMB15.4 million and compieted a number of aid
programmes, including the settlement programme for nomadic
livestock farmers, road hardening and development of a crime
prevention and control system. CITIC Nagqu Hotel will open for
business in 2010. Local infrastructure, transportation, nomadic
settlement and production and living standards were greatly im-
proved and our efforts were highly praised by the government

and people of Xainza.

—— Poverty Reduction. We extend targeted assistance to Yu-
anyang County and Pingbian County of Honghe Hani and Yi
Autonomous Prefecture, Yunnan Province. in 2009, Chairman
Kong Dan, former Chairman Wang Jun and Vice Chairman and
President Chang Zhenming of CITIC Group took a field trip to
Honghe Prefecture and made a grant and donation of RMB7.05
million. Our efforts to help build local industries went well,
which considerably improved the production and living stan-

dards of the local people.

— Alforestation. Qur Huangyangtan Sand Control Project in

Xuanhua County, Hebei Province is under way. CITIC Huang-

CITIC Group

PUELIC
FILE
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yangtan Eco-technologies Co., Ltd. was established to make the
best of the 20,000 mu premium artificial pasture grown and
maintained over the past eight years and the over 100,000 mu
natural pasture rehabilitated through enclosure. A number of
industries including livestock farming, pomology and olericul-
ture and eco-tourism were explored. While helping to finance
desertification control, they also contributed to local economic

development.

—— Disaster Relief. In 2009, CITIC Group donated RMB6 mil-
lion to flood-stricken Hunan, Hubei, Jiangxi and Guangxi; RMB3
million to the snowstorm-hit Xainza County, Tibet Autonomous
Region: and RMB5 million to the regions In Taiwan affected by
typhoon Morakot, helping the disaster-stricken populations re-

sume production and rehabilitate in a speedy manner.

—— Fducation. CITIC Group and its subsidiaries have invested
heavily in building Hope Schools, financlng poor students and
providing university scholarships in support of education. In
2009, the Group took an active part in the reconstruction of ar-
eas hit by the Wenchuan earthquake, donating RMB25 million
to build a CITIC kindergarten 1n Dujiangyan City and CITIC
Hongshi Elementary School in Pi County.

—— Charity. CITIC Automobile worked with Beijing Tongren
Hospital to organize a medical team which performed cataract
surgerles on 345 financially distressed patients in 2009, who re-

gained eyesight thanks to the widely acclaimed programme.

--— Sports. Inspired by the spirit “Guoan, to be No.1", CITIC
Guoan Football Team won the Chinese Super League 2009




CING Guaan rootbell feam won the Chinese Super League 2009 championshp

championship, which made CITIC Group proud and
contributed to football development in Beijing. Mean-
while, CITIC Go Team jointly set up by CITIC Group
and Beijing Chess Institute won the second place in the

National League (Group A) 2009.

—— Corporate Social Responsibilities Overseas. In

conducting the many large international

nical support and technical training to the locals while
doing the Algerian East-West Expressway and Angolan
Social Housing projects. It has participated in local di-
saster rescue and relief and poverty relief, funded local
education and sports, and built cement grinding sta-
tions, ports and docks and other infrastructure which
were delivered to local governments free of charge,

winning accolades from the host governments and

gineering
projects it has undertaken, CITIC Group attaches great
importance to its social responsibilities by taking an

active part in local social programmes.

CITIC Construction, a subsidiary of CITIC Group, has

been offering free medical services, agricultural tech-

local ¢ ities. By showcasing the strength and
image of Chinese companies, it helped improve their
international rep\ilal\on and influence. It also served
to deepen the friendship between China and people of
the host countries, helping to establish China as a large
responsible developing country and contributing to
friendly relationships, especially economic and trade

ties, with the rest of the world.
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SUPERVISORY BOARD AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Chairman: Kong Dan

Vice Chairmen: Chang Zhenming
Wang Chuan

Executive Directors: Yung Chi Kin Wang Jiong
Mi Zengxin Zhao Jingwen
Dou Jianzhong Chen Xiaoxian
Li Shilin
Wen Jinping

Directors: ju spabeiic Order) Chan Hui Dor Lam  Pu Jian Wang Dongming
Guo Ketong Qiu Yiyong Wang Jianzhi
Guo Zhirong Ren Qinxin Xuan Erniu
Hong Bo Sun Xiaowen Xu Yudi
Ju Weimin Sun Xinguo Zeng Chen
Li Kang Sun Yalei Zhang Jijing
Luo Ning Sun Yufeng

0 CITIC Growp




Chairman of Supervisory Beard:

Supervisors:

Pavt-time Supervisors:

President:

Vice Presidents:

Chief Financial Officer:

Assistant Presidents:

Note:

Ding Zhongchi

Dou Hongquan

Lin Meifang

Han Bin Yu Chunhe
Zheng Xuexue Zhang Liwen
Chang Zhenming

Mi Zengxin Zhao Jingwen
Dou Jianzhong Chen Xiaoxian
Li Shilin

Wang Jiong

Ju Weimin

Luo Ning Sun Yalei
Wang Dongming Zhang Jijing

1. On December 9, 2009, Mr. Wang Chuan was relieved of the office of Vice Chairman.
2. On February 26, 2010, Mr. Guo Ketong assumed the office of Assistant President.
3. On April 24, 2010, Mr. Li Shilin was relieved of the office of Executive Director

and Vice President.

4. On April 24, 2010, Mr. Ju Weimin and Mr. Zhang Jijing assumed the office of Executive

Director and Vice President.
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Kong Dan

Chang Zhenming

Wang Chuan

Yung Chi Kin

CITIC Group

Born in May 1947, Chairman of CITIC Group since July 2006.

Senior Economist. Graduated from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences with a master’s degree in political economics.

Previous posts: Vice President, President, Vice Chairman of China Everbright
Group; Vice Chairman and President of China [nternational Trust & Investment
Corparation.

Bom in October 1956, Vice Chairman & President of CITIC Group since July
2006.

Senior Economist. Graduated from New York [nsurance Institute with a mas-
ter’s degree in business administration.

.Previous posts: Vice President of CITIC Industrial Bank; Exccutive Director
& Vice President of CITIC Group; Vice Chairman & President of China Con-
struction Bank.

Born in June 1948, Vice Chairman of CITIC Group since July 2004.
Senior Economist. Graduated from the Correspondence College of Renmin

University of China with a college degree in industrial economy management.
Previous posts: Head of Jilin Branch, Head of the Party Disciplinary Inspection
and Vice President of Agricultural Bank of China; Vice Chairman & President
of China Everbright Bank, Vice Chairman of China Everbright Group.

Bom in January 1942, Executive Director of CITIC Group since December 1989.
Graduated from the Department of Electrical Engineering at Tianjin University.

Previous posts: General Manager of Sunburst Energy Devel Inc; Chair-

P

man of CITIC Pacific Ltd.; General Manager, Vice Chatrman of CITIC Hong Kong
(Holdings) Ltd.
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Mi 7.engxin. Born in December 1950, Executive Director and Vice President of CITIC
Group since May 1997.

Senior Engineer. Graduated from Beijing University of Iron and Steel Tech-
nology with a bachelor's degree in pressurized metal processing and Beijing
University of Technology with a master's degree in solid mechanics.

Previous posts: Vice President of CITIC Development Co., Ltd.; Chief Execu-
tive Officer of CITISTEEL USA Inc.

Dou ]ianzhong Born in February 1955, Executive Director & Vice President of CITIC
Group since April 1998.

Senior Economist. Graduated from Beijing International Business and Eco-
nomics University with a bachelor’s degree in English and Department of
International Finance of the College of International Economics at Liaoning
University with a master’s degree in economics

! Previous posts: Vice President, Executive Vice President and President of
CITIC Industrial Bank; Assistant President of China International Trust &
Investment Corporation.

I
|
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Li Shilin X Born in January 1950, Executive Director & Vice President of CITIC Group
since’ June 2000.
Graduated from Shenzhen University with a college degree in corporate
management.
Previous posts: General Manager of CI'TIC Guoan Industrial Development
Co., Lid.; Deputy General Manager of CITIC Develop Co., Ltd.; Gen-
eral Manager, Chairman of CITIC Guoan Group; Assistant President of
" China International Trust & Investment Corpuration.

Wen Jinping Born in December 1950, Executive Director since November 2000 and Sec-
retary of the Party Discipline Inspection Commission of CITIC Group since
August 2002. Senior Engineer of Political Work. )
Graduated from the College of Economics & Management at Beijing Union
University with a Eollege degree in economic law.

Previous posts: Deputy Director-General, Director-General of Human Re-
sources Department, Secretary of the Party Committee, Director-General of
the Department of Supervision, Assistant President, Head of the Party Disci-
plinary Inspection of China International Trust & Investment Corporation.
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Wang Jiong

Zhao Jingwen

Chen Xiaoxian

Ju Weimin

CITIC Group

Born in March 1960, Executive Director & Vice President of CITIC Group
since November 2001.

Graduated from Shanghai University of Finance & Economics with a mas-
ter's degree in finance.

Previous posts: Deputy General Manager of CITIC Shanghai Co., Ltd.;
General Manager, Chairman of CITIC Shanghai (Group) Co., Ltd.; General
Manager, Chairman of CITIC East China (Group} Co., Ltd.; Assistant Presi-
dent of China International Trust & Investment Corporation.

Born in July 1954, Executive Director & Vice President of CITIC Group
since November 2001.

Graduated from China University of Political Science and Law with a mas-
ter's degree in economic law.

Previous posts: Deputy Director-General of the Supervisory Office, Direc-
tor-General of the Department of Supervision and Legal Department, Assis-
tant President of China International Trust & Investment Corporation.

Born in June 1954, Executive Director & Vice President of CITIC Group
since October 2004.

Senior Economist. Graduated from Northeastern University of Finance &
Economics with a doctor’s degree in finance.

Previous posts: Deputy Head of Beijing Branch of the People’s Bank of Chi-
na; Deputy Director-General of Beijing Branch of the State Administration
of Foreign Exchange; Head of Beijing Branch, Vice President and Executive
Vice President of China Merchants Bank.

Born in August 1963, Director since March 2000 and CFO of CITIC Group
& Chairman of CITIC Trust & Investment Co., Ltd. since December 2002.
Graduated from Renmin University of China with a master’s degree in ac-
Cl)unllng‘

Previous posts: Deputy Director-General, Director-General of the Depart-
ment of Finance; Managing Director of Shortridge Co., Ltd; Chief Accoun-
tant of China International Trust & Investment Corporation.




Luo Ning

Wang Dongming

Sun Yalei

Zhang Jijing

PUSLIC

Born in March 1959, Director since March 2002 and Assistant Presi-
dent of CITIC Group & Vice Chairman of CITIC Guoan Group,
Chairman & General Manager of CITIC Networks Co., Ltd. since July
2001.

Graduated from PLA Academy of Communications (Wuhan) with a
college degree in communications engineering.

Previous posts: General Manager of the First Branch of China Uni-
com; Executive Deputy General Manager, General Manager, Chairman
of CITIC C ations Project Manag Co., lid; Chairman &
General Manager of CITIC Network Management Co., lid; Chairman
& General Manager of CITIC Networks Co., Ltd.; Assistant President of
China [nternational Trust & Investment Corporation.

Born in August 1951, Director since March 2000, Assistant President
of CITIC Group & Chairman of CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. since Au-
gust 2001.

Senior Economist. Graduated from College of International Studies of
Georgetown University with a master’s degree in internatlonal finance.
Previous posts: General Manager of the International Department of
China Securities Co., Ltd.; Vice President of China South Securities;
Vice President, President of CITIC Securities Co., Lid;

Born in April 1968, Director since April 2006, Assistant President of
CITIC Group & Vice Chairman and General Manager of CITIC Guo;
Group since July 2004. :
Graduated from Renmin University of China with a bachelor’s degree
in industrial economics & management.

Previous posts: General Manager, Vice Chairman of CITIC Guoan
Information Industry Co., Ltd.; General Manager of CITIC Guoan
Group.

Born in September 1955, Director since March 1998, Assistant President
of CITIC Group & Director-General of Strategy & Planning Department
since September 2005.

Senior Economist. Graduated from Chinese Academy of Social Sci-
ences Graduate School with a master’s degree in quantitative econom-
ics.

Previous posts: Deputy General Manager, General Manager of CITIC
Australia Pty Ltd; Director-General of Strategy & Planning Depart-
ment of China International Trust & Investment Corporation.
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Investor relations are highly valued and well managed and
more effective avenues of communications are established

After the global financial crisls in 2008, China resolutely adopt-
ed a proactive fiscal policy and a moderately relaxed monetary
policy, and implemented a stimulus package aimed at tackling
the crisis and expanding the domestic demand. As a result, the
economy and employment in China was soon stabilized. CITIC
Group adjusted its investment plan in a timely manner accord-
ing to the annual plan formulated at the beginning of the year
and realised a good improvement of key business indicators. [n
order to give shareholders, creditors and the general public a
clearer and fuller picture of the Group in terms of its operations,
business development and financlal positions, CITIC Group
continued to attach importance to communicating with stake-
holders both inside and outside the Group. As a result, commu-
nication has become more effective, and financial information

more transparent.

With reference to the information disclosure standards for listed
companies and based on its own situation, CITIC Group not
only disclosed the financial conditions of the Head Office in an
all-dimensional way, but also stepped up guidance on informa-
tion disclosure of its subsidlaries and affiliates by specifying the
scope and the practice of disclosure. In the meantime, the Group
honoured its disclosure obligations as a debtor by regularly up-
dating its web portal, chinabond.com.cn and chinamoney.com.
cn on its financtal statements and material matters, communi-
cating with and submitting financial data to creditor banks and

answering questions from creditor banks and bondholders.

CITIC Group

CITIC Group continued to communicate with shareholders, rel-
evant ministries and departments as well as regulators. At the
headquarters level, senior executives attended important con-
ferences, events and forums and received or visited a variety of
financial institutions and investment agencies. At the same time,
through visits, seminars and thematic briefings, functional de-
paruments kept the relevant government agencies and regulators
informed about the Group's operations and financial profile as
well as key subsidiaries and progress of major projects. In 2009.
the Ministry of Finance unveiled a serics of regulations concern-
ing the financial management of financial holding companies,
which provide specific guidelines for the Group in conducting
financial management. CITIC Group strictly followed these reg-

ulations in information reporting and disclosure.

CITIC Group continued to have a good refationship with rating
agencics including Standard & Poor’s, Moody's, Rating and In-
vestment Information, Inc. and China Cheng Xin International
Credit Rating Co. Ltd. Regular meetings were held to provide
the latest information on the Group's development strategies, op-
erations and financial strength. The followlng table provides the

relevant ratings and actions:




Rating agency Rating (Defy;rll?(z):)w) Rating Action
Long-term Foreign Currency BBB
Counterparty Credit Rating
S&P Short-term Foreign Currency A2 gngo‘;;:d from BRE-IA3" on Nov.
Counterparty Credit Rating
Rating Outlook Positive
Long-term Foreign Currency Senior Bax2
Unsecured Debt Rating Rating Outlook upgraded from
Moody’s Baseline Credit Rating 12 ;Ztlagle" to “Positive” on Mar. 1,
Rating Outloak Stable
Foreign Currency Issuer Rating BBB+
R&l Long-term Bond Rating BBB+
Rating Outlook Stable
: Corporate Credit Rating AAA
cext | 2009 MTN (Tranche 1) Rating AAA
2001/2002/2003 CITIC Bond Rating AAA
! 2005 Corporate Bond Rating AAA
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A. Governance Structure

CITIC Group

Board of Supervisors

b

Baard of Directors

!
v
Board of Executive
Directors

Senior ©

—= Trade Union

I——= Corporate Culture Department

—— Audit Departmem

——» Legal Department

—= Department of Supervision

—= Risk Management Department

— D of Personnel & Ed:

——= Finance Department

——= Strategy & Planning Department

———# General Office

Subsidiaries and Affiliates

— Trade & Service

—» 1T

L—» Manufacturing

" Energy & Resources

% Engineering Contracting

— Real Estate & [nfrastructure

(—# Investment Holdings

—#% Finandal Services

CITIC Gruap
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1. Shareholders

hli<h

The C

|
P is a congl ate

d upon the
approval of the State Council and with funding from
the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of Chi-

na. It is a state-authorized investment organization.

2. Board of Directors, Board of Executive Directors

and Senior Management

{1) Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of 31 members, Includ-
ing a Chairman and a Vice Chairman. The Board of
Executive Directors is a standing body of 11 members
including the Chairman, the Vice Chairman and Ex-
ecutive Directors. At present, all members of the Board
of Executive Directors are appointed or removed by the

State Council.

(2) Board of Executive Directors

The Board of Executive Directors makes decisions on
such matters as business strategles, financtal budget,
business plans, financing, investment and asset dis-
position schemes, structure of management bodies,
company rules and policies and remuneration and
Incentive schemes; reviews financial accounts, profit
distribution and loss compensation plans as well as
consolidation, spinoff, alteration and dissolution plans;
and drafts registered capital alteration, bond issue and

Articles of Association amendment schemes.

There are several sub-committees under the Board of
Exccutive Directors. Among them, the Risk Manage-
ment Committee is a specialized body under and re-
porting to the Board of Executive Directors. The main
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include: reviewing the Comprehensive Risk Manage-
ment Report of the Company; reviewing risk assess-
ment mechanisms for major decisions, major risks

and major business processes; reviewing risk manage-

ment policies and solutions to major risks; evaluating
and discussing risk management systems and policies,
overall risk profile and changes in major business risks,

and providing guidance in this respect.

(3) Senior Management

‘The Senior Management is responsible for managing
business operations and making decisions within its
power as authorized by the Board of Directors and the

Board of Executive Directors.
3. Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors, composed of aChairman and
several Supervisors, is a supervisory body dispatched
by the State Council. The Chairman of the Board of Su-
pervisors attends or designates his/her representative
to attend meetings of the Board of Directors and other
relevant meetings as s/he sees fit. During the Reporting
Period, the Board of Supervisors oversaw and exam-
ined business operations of the Company, managerial
actions taken by Directors and the Senior Manage-
ment, and business and financial positions of the Com-
pany, conducted on-slte and off-site inspections of the
Company's subsidiaries, and cxamir;ed and provided

guidance for the Company’s internal audit system.
4. Employees

Adhering to the “Put People First” approach, the
Company pays great attention to the utilization of
employees'initiative and creativity and has strived to
provide our employees with a competitive remunera-
tion and incentive plan and a wide platform on which
they can fully demonstrate their talents and capabili-
ties. At the end of 2009, the total number of employees
worldwide was 125,215,
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B. Measures to Enhance Corporate Governance

1. Strategic management and control at the Group level to en-

hance operational and investment management capabilities

The Group headquarters made further progress in the imple-
mentation of Group-wide strategies. With resource integration,
the strategic positioning and business model of subsidiaries and
business lines were further clarified. By concentrating and opti-
mizing internal resources, the Group was able to complete major
projects of strategic importance.

Ruci 1
P

g and budgetary were enhanced,

and investments by and operations of subsidiaries standardized.
Major investment management system was improved, and man-
agement of and control over investment activities intensified.
Major projects tracking system was also improved, and super-
vision of key subsidiaries and major projects tightened, so that
associated risks and problems were identified and addressed in

a timely manner.

Performance it and ation T 8 for
subsidiaries and affiliates were improved. A performance as-
sessment system that encompassed such indicators as efficiency,
scale, quality and synergy encouraged and helped subsidiaries to

develop and compete in a more effective way.

CITIC Grecp

2. Further consolidation to drive specialized operations at sub-

sidiaries and enhance core competencies

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the consoli-
dation of its commercial banking portfolio. China CITIC Bank
acquired a 70.32% stake in CITIC International Financial Hold-
ings Limited. CITIC's commercial banking business has become

an integral whole capable of international operations.

By consolidating its engineering contracting assets and business,
CITIC Construction has become the implementing entity of the
Group’s entire engineering contracting portfolio, which will help
project the CITIC Construction brand and raise overall com-

petitiveness.

3. Financial management and financial risk controf

‘The size of Group's new loans and guarantees was kept under
strict control. The debt monitoring system at subsidiaries was
improved, which offered more dynamic monitoring of their
debts, guarantees and pledges and helped reduce credit and

guarantee-related risks.



Centrallzed fund management for digible non-financial subsidiaries was in place 10 improve capital efficiency and

control capital and credit risks.

During the Reporting Period, a set of rules including those governing financial management and asset evaluation

were substantlated and revised, and the financial accounting system Improved, to prevent financial risks.

4. Strengthened internal audit and more effective oversight

During the Reporting Period. the Group's internal audit system was further improved. The organizational struc-
ture for internal audit was strengthened, with an internal audit and supervisory structure that featured centralized
management and tiered accountability in place. Audit functions were set up at financial subsidiaries and relatively

larger non-financial subsidiaries with greater auditing needs.

Internal audit and supervision were intensified, covering almost all tler-one subsidiaries. Audit, follow-up audit

and audit trail helped ensure that problems identified were addressed and corrected.
5. Legal review of major contracts to prevent legal risks

During the Reporting Period, legal risks were circumvented, and legal basis established for major business pro-

8! through invol in project feasibility studies, asset investigations. negotlations, drafting and

amendment of legal documents and the provision of legal opinions.
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Risk Management

The Company was faced with the following risks during the Re-
porting Period:

« Strategic risks: Faced with many uncertainties in the global
economic recovery, the Company was challenged to assess inter-
national and domestic situations as well as industry and market
trends and to position its development accordingly.

o Policy-related risks: Busi devel at the C or

P P

its subsidlaries might be affected as the result of changing mac-

ro-polictes including monetary, fiscal, industrial, regional devel-
opment and environmental policies, and changing international

political landscapes.

« Financial risks: With business expansion and investment diver-
sification, there was a greater demand for the size and liquidity
of capital from capital expenditure and day-to-day operations.
‘This might cause higher debt levels and ratios at the Company
or lts subsidiaries, resulting in greater difficulty in financing and
higher cost of capital. Amidst many uncentainties in the cur-
rent business dimate, the Company or its subsidiaries might see
a gap between expected returns on its investments and the real

results.

o Market risks: Given worldwide recessions, which resulted in
private investment and consumption slowdown, weak demand
and overcapacity both at home and abroad, and continued wors-
ening of the global trade environment, the market of the Com-
pany or its subsidiaries might shrink. Worldwide liquidity surge
and high volatility in major currencies pushed international
commodity and domestic real estate prices to historic highs.
Subsidiaries in resources and energy, engineering contracting,
real estate, manufacturing and trade were likely to see violent

swings in market prices. The Company or its subsidiaries’ fund

CITIC Group

PLaLIc

positions or investment portfolios might suffer as result of fluc-

tuating prices of capital market products.

o Legal risks: With businesses covering a broad range of indus-
tries and geographic locations, the Company had to improve and
adjust its management and practices in line with changing inter-

national and domestic legal and regulatory environments.

« Opcrational risks: As the Company and its subsidiaries’ busi-
ness grew and developed, their operations might be affected by
external factors such as foreign and domestic social and cultural
environments, natural and geographical conditions and external
emergencies as well as internal management, information sys-

tem or human resources issues.

« Credit risks: The Company or its subsidiaries’ borrowers or
counterparties might be unable or unwilling to honour their

contracted obligations.

The Company took the followlng measures against the afore-

mentioned risks:

1. Provide central planning for strategic management and re-
source atlocation to improve overall competitiveness and sustain-

ability. Under the umbrella of strategic ma

strategics
for industries, business segment growth, products and regions
were clarified. Resources were optimized: priority was given to
better positioned, technology intensive and growing businesses

and segments to ensure the realization of overall objectives.

2. Improve the decision-making process and management mech-
anism for major investments with a view to making decisions

more scientific and management more effective. Management




systems for major investments were revised, rules of
procedure for major investment decision-making im-

proved, and project review and approval procedures

dardized

to make i

decision-making
more scientific. Key business lines and major projects
were given better guidance and management, and proj-
ect analysis and evaluation systems perfected, to keep

project and investment risks under strict control.

3. Better implement and supervise investment projects
to circumvent operational risks. Business processes
for major invested and contracted projects were stan-
dardized, professional operating models formulated,
and contract management tightened, to ensure qual-
ity and progress of major projects. Process control was
further strengthened so that problems were identlfied
and addressed in a timely manner, and objectives met.
Security measures for major project development were

enhanced, and emergency planning improved.

4.Impl comprehensive risk g to make
the work more systematic. The Company has begun to

explore a proper risk management model and imple-

ment comprehensive risk g By incorporat-
ing the philosophy and processes of risk management

into operational and

puaLic

FILE

5. Implement sound financia) policies to ensure the
safety and liquidity of funds. A prudent provisioning
policy was adopted, allowing for full impairment pro-
visioning. Financial inspections and supervision were
carried out to encourage standard accounting practices
at subsidiaries and ensure the effectiveness and integ-
rity of internal control. Financial tracking and analysis
of and feedback for key subsidiaries and investments
gthened, and debts, g

es managed in a dynamic way. A financing platform

were st

and pledg-

was established at the Group level to expand financ-
ing channels, optimize debt structure and effectively

reduce corporate financtal risks.

6. Provide better legal suppont. Legal review of major
projects and documents and legal justification for ma-
jor decistons were enhanced. Better management and
guidance were provided for major economic disputes
to safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of the
Group. Trademark management and protection were
routinized to maintain a sound corporate brand im-

age.

7. Step up human resources management and train-

ing. The HR management system was furthered with

h

activities, building a

on the ation and incentive scheme

4 B

risk culture and establishing a system that enc

P

and and appointment of the senior man-

all business activities, all employees and all processes,
the Company was able to make risk management more
systematic, professional and rule-based. Risk analysis
helped subsidiaries identify their key risks, strengthen
existing systems, and optimize management and busi-
ness processes, towards a long-term mechanism that

enhances risk resistance in day-to-day operations.

agement. Employee training was given much attention
with a view to preventing personnel risks in daily op-
erations, helping achieve sound and sustainable opera-

tions,
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ZhongruiYuehua Shen Zi {2010 No.05855
To CITIC Group:

We have audited the accompanying financtal statements of C[TIC Group (referred to as “the Citic Groug"), consisting
of balance sheet and consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2009, income statement and consulidated income
statement, statement of changes in owners’ equity and consolidated statement of changes in owners’ equity, cash flow

staternent and consolidated cash flow staiement for the year then ended, and notes 1o the financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management Is responsible f{or the preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the Accounting Regulations for Financial Enter-
prises and the Accounting Regutations for Business Enterprises. This responsibility includes: designing,

Je g and ining internal controls relevant to the preparation of financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate

accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditor’s Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Chinese Auditing Standards for Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assur-

ance whether the financial statements are free from materlal misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. 'The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assess-
ments of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of

the financial statements In order 1o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but

CITIC Greap
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not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting made by

g as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe.that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the Chinese Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, the Accounting Regulations for Financial Enterprises and the Accounting Regula-
tions for Business Enterprises and, in ail material respects, glve a fair view of “the Citic Group's financial
position and consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2009, the resulis of operations and con-

solidated results of operations, and cash flows and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

RSM China Centihed Public Accountants Centified Public Accountants
Beijing, China
28 April 2010 Name of CPA: Zhang Fugen

Name of CPA: Jin Zhao
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2009
Expressed in thousands of RMB

ASSETS

Note 2009 2008
Current Assets:
Cash and depousits s.(1) 301,216,256 296,998,314
Short-term loans 5.(2) 771,651,740 497,076,748
Receivables 5.03) 51,229,428 38,523,676
Short-term investments 5.(4) 109,847,106 126,472,283
Other current assets 5.5) 64,261,533 55,272,361
Total Current Assets 1,298,206,063 1,014,343,382
Long-term Assets:
Medium and long-term loans 5.2) 522,412,679 305,440,801
Long-term investments 5.(4) 175,554,173 174,777,860
Fixed assets 5.(6) 114,951,654 95,551,953
Other long-term assets S(7) 42,712,156 33,987,772
Total Long-term Assets 855,630,662 609,758,386
Total Assets lIS3.536,775 - 1,624,101 .768__
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009
Expressed in thousands of RMB

LIABILITIES AND INVESTOR'S EQUITY Note

2009

2008

Current Liabilities:

Short-term deposits from customers 5.(8) 1,058,651,163 665,379,262
Short-term financing 5.(9) 36,357,469 44,895,075
Payables 5.(10) 93,949,071 81,501,867
Other current liabilities 5.11) '3,988,8 15 12,631,295
Total Current Liabilities 1,192,946,518 804,407,499
Long-term Liabilities:
Long-term deposits from customers 5.(12) 538,975,070 453,465,289
Medium and long-term borrowings 112,015,361 88,319,408
Long-term bond payables 5.(13) 62,837,454 57.556,303
Other long-term liabilities 5.(14) 25,705,224 29,687,184
_To(zl Long-term Liabilities 739,533,109 629,028,184
Total Liabilities 1,932,479,627 1,433,435,683
Equity
Capital 5.(15) 55,357,720 39,942,191
Reserves 5.(16) 60,969,157 54,537,045
Profit for the year 18,892,122 14,248,703
Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Company 135,218,999 108,727,939
Minority interests 86,138,099 81,938,146
Total Investor's Equity 221,357,098 190.666:‘08—5—-
Total Liabilities and Investor's Equity 2,153,836,725 1,624,101,768
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2009
Expressed in thousands of RMB

Note 2009 2008
Operating income 5.(17) 209,064,922 157,043,809
Operating costs 5.(18) 142,897,486 98,441,501
Operating expenses 5.(19) 28,302416 22,079,392
Investment income 6,181,333 4,176,126
Bustness taxes and surcharges 4,746,455 4,154,647
Operating Profit 39,299,898 36,544,395
Add: non-operating income 1,096,333 646,490
Less: non-operating expenses 388,072 217,574
Profit before Prov-;sion for Impairment Losses 40,008,159 36,973,311
Less: provision for impairment losses 5.(20) 4,630,445 11,123,785
Profit afier Provision for Impairment Losses 35,377,714 25.349.52;‘
Less: income tax 7,131,165 5695728
Net Profit 28,246,549 20,153,798
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the company 18.892,122 14,248,703
Minority interests 9,354,427 5,905,095

CITIC Group




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS'EQUITY

10 GRrROUe

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN OWNERS’ EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2009
Expressed in thousands of RMB

Ownery'equity srtribateble to sharcholders of the wompany

~ = Minerity Tota
Foreign interems OO ¢
Pdmcpidl  Couw  Sephs  Reuned  adeng g equity
(o Share capieal)  reserves  Teserves amings  tandgon
diffecence
1.Balunce ot the Ead of Lagt Year 39219 46566066  9.464.283 13482.591 <221.561 109438570 82026484 191465054
Add; Change of accounting pdicy - 197006  -582.122 -325.615 - -710831 -88.338 -798,96%
Prior yeas adpastments
N.Balance ot the Beginning of the Year J9MLI91 46763071 8832161 13361977 21561 108727939 81938146 190,666,085
NLChanges in Equity for the Year {*-* decrease) 15415529 4982130 2744776 3550775 -30%151 2491060 4199953 30691013
(1} Net profit for the year - . . 18492022 - 14892122 934428 28,4655
(11)GainsLoss recognued directly in equey - 4982130 1,32082% -1001.870  -302.151 4998939 5154474 -155.535
1. Net changes 1 faic value of svaitable-for- sale
fnancial assets
2. Effect on changes 0 other owners” equiy of 7 .
investee units under equity method - 4982130  1.320813 -1.001.870  -302,15t 4998924 -514474 155,550
3. Effect on income ta rdsted o nems to owners’ equey
4 Others - - 16 16 - 16
Subzotal of {TJand (1) . 4982130 132082¢ 17890252 -302.151 23891060 4199953 28091013
(111) Equaty bolders’ comnbutian and decrease of apeal 2,600,000 - . . . 2600000 - 2,600,000
1 Coatribution by equity holders 2,600,000 . . E - 2600000 - 2600000
2.Equiy setted thase-based payments
3 Others
(IV) Appropnations of profits . < lADSE 1429
1.Appropriations foc sarphus reserve . < 1423948 1423548
2 Appropraations for general risk fund
3 Dstribution 1o equity holdens {or shareholders)
4 (xhens
(VTransens within equcy 12.815.529 . .a2m18529
1. Pud-in capaal(or share capital) increased by capital
ceserve transler
2Pud-in capital(or share capital} mcreased by surptus
reserve transfer
3. Loss covered by surplus reserve
4 Others 12.815,529 . © 12815529
V. Balance al the end of the year 55357720 51745301 11626938 17012752 -523.712 135218999 86,138,099  221.357.098
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2009
Expressed in thousands of RMB

Item Row Amount
T({as_h.ﬂows from Operating Activities: - T
Cash received from sales of goods or rendering of other services 1 129,882,235
Cash recetved from customers* savings and deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2 456,549,294
Net cash received from depasas with the central bank 3
Cash received from all types of assurance 4 2,429,980
Cash received from interest, charges and commission 5 62,476,448
Net cash received from lending 6 2,947,904
Net cash received from buying back 7 3,142,497
Refund of taxes 8 1.098.856
Other cash received relating to operating activities 9 47,367,124
" Sub-total of cash inflows ) ’ 10 705,894,338
o Cashpmdﬁ)rgo;(isandscn\ocs ) 11 . -1-04.804.263
Net cash paid for Joans to customers 12 336,686,279
Net cash paid in deposits in banks and other financial institutions 13 35,835,212
Cash paid for all types of assurance 14 171,892
Cash paid for interest, charges and commission 15 20,493.694
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 16 13,814,116
Cash paid for all types of taxes 17 17,604,522
Other cash paid relating to operating activities 18 185,438,728
o ..Sub-lolal of cash :)"l;lﬂows B 19 ) 714‘848,77
_N-el cash flows from operating acl;vilics T i 20 -8,954,368 B
-24 Cash flows from i;vrsling ac(ivili;;: ’ - T
Cash received from disposal of equity investments 21 228,783,224
Cash received from return on investments 22 2281311
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets 23 769,456
Net cash flows from disposal subsidiaries and other operating units 24 28,287,354
Other cash received relating to investing activities

25

2,472,763

CITIC Groug




PLBLIC
ILE

......... Lo
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

UtICGROUY

Sub-total of cash inflows 2% 262,594,108
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets 27 21,808,302
Cash paid on investments 28 213,704,717
Net cash paid on obtain subsidiaries and other business units 29 15,301,164
Cash paid on other investing activities 30 2,072,672
Sub-total of cash outflows 31 252,886,855
Net cash flows from investing activities 32 9,707,253

3. Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash recetvied from vestors 33 4,834,665
Inchuding; Cash received from minority shareholders of subsidiaries 34 344,448
Cash receivied from borrowings 35 107.235,532
Cash receivied from issuing bonds 36 1,970,000
Cash receivied from other financing activities 37 825,008
Sub-total of cash inflows T8 114,865,205
Cash repayments of borrowings 39 99,330,636
Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profits 40 4,596,800
Induding: Dividends or proft paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries 41 17.485
Cash payments for interests a2 6,063,904
Cash payments on other financing activities 43 5,234,345
Sub-total of cash outflows 44 115,225,685
Net cash flows from financing adtivities 45 -360,480
4, Effect of foreign exchange rate on cash 46 148,452
_5 . Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 47 i 540,857
Add: cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 48 218,938,822
6, Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 49 219,479,679

ANNUALREFORI 200 75




BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2009

Expressed in thousands of RMB
ASSETS Note 2009 2008
Current Assets: -
Cash and deposits 6.(1) 18,749,011 17,517,263
Short-term loans 6.(3) 744,123 767,209
Receivables 6.(2) 19,993,482 16,820,548
Short-term investments 6.(4) 5,284,706 7.275.009
Other current assets 6.45) 12,870,376 14,308,844
. Total Current Assets 57,641,698 ..S.;.l88.873
Long-term Assets:
Medium and long-term loans 6.(3) 632,670 165,870
Long-term investments 6.(4) 146,612,484 137,397,432
Fixed assets 6.(6) 69,374 74,893
Other long-term assets 6.7) 619,798 608,108
Total Long-term Assets B 147,934,326 i “l 38,246,303
Total Assets V 205,576,024 195,435,176

"o CITIC Growp
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BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

Asat 31 December 2009
Expressed in thousands of RMB

LIABILITIES AND INVESTOR’S EQUITY Note 2009 2008
Current Unb;ii.l;: T o
Short-term deposits from customers -
Short-term ﬁnancing 6.(8) 1,384,520 8,304,396
Payables 6.(9) 13,915,711 10,608,495
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities o 15,300,231 o 18;9_1;;2;91_
Long-term Liabilities:
Long-term deposits from customers -
Medium and long-term borrowings 23,613,705 30,623,326
Long-term bond payables 6.(10) 30,741,068 27,757,632
Other long-term liabilities 6.(11) - 8.243,396
Total Long-term Liabilities B . ) o 54,354,773 - ___66.:6_24.;54_ -
i _To(;l_Llab lt;es T 69,655,004 85.53_7,245_
Investor’s Equity
Capital 6.(12) 55,357,720 39,942,191
Reserves 6.(13) 59,445,529 55,777,785
Profit for the year 21,117,771 14,177,955
Total Investor’s Equity T 135,921,020 109,897,931
Total Liabilities and Investor’s Equity o T 205,576,024 195,435,176
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INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2009
Expressed in thousands of RMB

Note 2009 2008
Operating income 6.(14) 25,201,131 B 21,894,894
QOperating costs 6.(15) 2,571,517 5,063,385
Operating expenses 401,605 703,806
Business taxes and surcharges 97,916 82,837
Operating Profit 22,130,093 16,044,866
Add: non-operating income 20,884 15,049
Less: non-operating expenses 68,687 21,006
Profit before Provision for lmpdrmel;l Louu 22,082,290 16.038‘909“-
Less: provision for impairment losses * 964,519 1,780,387
__;;oﬁ( after Provisi—m.l for lmpalr-;nenl Losses 21,117,771 ;:1.258.522
Less: income tax 80,567
Net l_’roﬁ_l_ ) 21,117,771 l4,l77,9"55. i
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’EQUITY

CIHIC GROUP

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2009
Expressed in thousands of RMB

Ownen'equity attributable to sharcholders of the company

Podwaapid  Copual  Surplus  Rewned  exdumge o equity
(orSureaped) rewrvs  raeves  amag  tanduan
diflerence
1Balwnce at the End of Last Year NSLIN 6NBATL | AT DT A 110K - 110608563
Add. Change of accountng policy . 19706 58121 325416 B TY3Y) L7082
Prior year adrustments
11Batance at the Beginning of the Year I9MLISL 47105578 BI8LI6I ponsss o 109897931 . 109.897931
111.Changes in Equity for the Year (*-* decrease) 15415519 2565 2707 Sasne 320 26023089 . 26003089
(1) Net proft for the year n17m - nanm - aam
(NG Loss recognized directly n equay 2538565 1320828 -15537% 30 2308318 . 28318
1 Net changes u faur vake of avallable-for-sale fnancial assers
: 55: a‘fy"ﬂf:h':d“h" gmmers’ equiy of mvesiee unty 2538565 1320813 15535 - asen - a0ss22
3 Effect on income tax rduted to nems 1o owners’ equity
4.0then . . 16 4320 304 . 304
Subtocal of {Dand (1)) 2538565 1320829 19564015 320 23423089 . 23423089
(1) Equity holders’ contnbution and decrease of capttal 2,600,000 . . . . 2600000 2600000
1.Contribution by equity holders 2600.000 260,000 . 2600000
2 Equay settied share-based payments
3. Othens
(V) Appropriatons of profis . ©1ASME - 1A248
| Approptiations for surplus reserve . ClABSE A28
2Appropriations for general nsk fund
3.Distribution to equity halders (or sharehalders)
4 Cthers
(V)Teangfers within equiy 1281559 . 12815509
1.Pad-in capual{or share capaal) increased by capral ceserve trangfe:
2 Paid-m capmal(or share capaal) mcreased by surplus reserve transler
3 Loss covered by surplus ceserve
4.0thens 12815529 . 1281589
IV, Balance at the end of the year _—s:;-v-.;o OIS 1AW 2 A \BSNOD . 1senon
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2009
Expressed in thousands of RMB

Item Row Amount
1. Cash Flows from Operating Activities: T
Cash recetved from sales of goods or rendering of other services 1 -
Cash recetved from customers' savings and deposits from banks and other
financial institutions :
Net cash received from deposits with the central bank 3
Cash received from all types of assurance 4
Cash received from interest, charges and commission 5 1,344,041
Net cash received from kending 6
Net cash received from buying back 7
Refund of taxes 8
Other cash received relating to operating activities 9 4,819,571
Sub-total of cash inflows o 10 6,163,612
Cash paid for goods and services B ’ Ton
Net cash paid for loans to customers 12
Net cash paid in deposits in banks and other financial insanutions 13
Cash paid for all types of assurance 14
Cash paid for interest, charges and commission 15 2,657
Cash paid for all types of taxes 16 40,802
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees and other cash paid relating to operating activitics 17 1,433,637
- Sub-total ofcahW B T ST _l.!;- 1,477.096
Net cash flows fron‘l;.p.eraling activities T N e 4,686,516
2. Cash flows from investing activities: B T 20
Cash received from disposal of equity investments 21 15,613,416
Cash received from return on investments 22
Net cash received from dispasal of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets 23 135
Net cash flows from disposal subsidiaries and other operating units 24
Other cash received relating to investing activities 25

CITIC Grezp
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 Sub-total of cash inflows 2 15,613,551
Cash paid 10 acquire fxed assets, intangible assets and other long term assets ) 10,140
Cash paid on investments 28 5,371,577
Net cash paid on obtain subsidiaries and other business units 29 -
Cash paid on other investing activities 30 -
Sub-total of cash ousflows o 31 5,381,717
Net cash flows from investing activities - 32 10,231,834

3. Cash flows from financing activities: 33
Cash receivied from investors 34 2,600,000
Induding: Cash reaeived from minority shareholders of subsidiaries 35 -
Cash receivied from borrowings 36 17,238,616
Cash receivied from issuing bonds 37 -
Cash receivied from other financing activities 38 -

" Swotdofahinflows 39 19,838,616
Cash repayments of borrowings 40 mnga
Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profits 41
Induding: Dividends or profit paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries 42 -
Cash payments for interests 43 2471463
Cash payments on other financing activitics 44 3,395,365
Sub-total of cash outflows - 4 33578802

" Net cash flows from financing activities ' % 13,740,186

4. Effect of foreign exchange rate on cash 47 53.584_

—5 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 48 1,231,748
Add: cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 49 17.517.263

6. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year S0 I8,7;9,ET
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
Expressed in thousands of RMB
1. Company Status

CITIC Group (referred to as “the Group™) is a multi-business group company, established in 1979 upon the approval of
State Councli of PRC. As at 31 December 2009, the registered capital of the CITIC Group Head office (referred to as “the
Company”) is RMB 30 billion. The legal representative of the Company is Mr. Kong Dan. The registered address of the
Company Is 6 Xinyuannanlu, Chaoyang District, Beijing. The Group mainly engages in financial services, investment hold-
ing, real estate and civil infrastructure, manufacturing, resources development, trading and services, information industry

and project contracting business etc.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of the financial statements are in conformity with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the
Accounting Regulatio}:s for Financial Enterprises and the Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC (MOF).

3. Principal Accounting Policies and Estimates

(a) Accounting Year
‘The accounting year of the Group is the calendar year from 1 January to 31 December.
(b) Basis of Preparation

The financial have been p d on an accrual basis.

T
(¢) Reporting Currency
‘The reporting currency of companies of the Group in mainiand of PRC is the RMB. The reporting currency of the Group's

bsidiaries out of mainland of PRC is adopted in accordance with the local accounting standards.

(d) Translation of Foreign Currency Transactions and Financial Statements

Non-financial institution entities record foreign currency transactions in a unified ledger. Foreign currency transactions
during the year are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. At year end, monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into RMB at the exchange rates, quoted by the People's Bank of China (the
“PBOC"), ruling at the balance sheet date. Financial institutions record foreign currency transactions in multi-currency
ledgers. The ledgers denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD at the exchange rates quoted in the London
market, which is announced by the PBOC, ruling on the last day of the accounting year, and then translated from USD 1o
RMB at the exchange rate quoted by the PBOC ruling on the same day.
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Except for the exchange gains or losses retating directly to the construction of fixed assets (see note 3(1)), exchange differences
arising from foreign currency transactions and exchanges are dealt with as foreign exchange gains or losses for the current

period.

The financial of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB by current exchange rate method. Financtal state-
ments of foreign currencies are translated into RMB at year end exchange rates. Year end exchange rates are the exchange
rates quoted in the London market, which is announced by the PBOC, ruling on the last day of the accounting year, and the
exchange rate quoted by the PBOC ruling on the same day for the translation from USD to RMB. The exchange differences
are recorded as differences from translation of financial statements denomlnated in foreign currencies.

(e} Cash and Cash Equivatents

Cash and cash equivalents include: cash, deposits, short-term inter-bank placements and highly liquid investments that are
capable of being converted into known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

(f) Provision for Bad Debts

Provision for bad debts is estimated by management based on the general consideration of aging analysis, recoverability of
receivables (including accounts receivable and other receivables), and individual measurements at year end.

(g) Loans, Provision for Loan Losses and Writing Off of Loans

(1) Loan classification

— Short-term, medium and long-term loans: loans are classified according to their orlginal maturity terms. Loans originally
maturing within one year (Including one year) are classified as short-term loans, and loans originally maturing over one year
are classified as medium and long-term loans.

— Overdue loans: loans not repaid on maturity or rescheduled maturity dates; advances arising from discounted bills or bill
acceptances with insufficient collateralized deposits and not yet repaid until the due dates; overdue trade finance for inward
and outward bills, and advances arising from off balance sheet credit facilities such as letters of credit and guarantees.

— Discounted bills: not-yet-matured bills discounted by the Group for customers or other financial institutions; rediscount-
ed received from the central bank, other inter-banks or financial institutions.

(2)  Loans are initially recognized at the amounts actually drawn. Discounted bills are initially recognized at the par value.
Interest income from discounted bills is recognized on an accrual basis on amounts provided and at an applicable interest rate
over the terms of the bills. As at the balance sheet date, the par value of the discounted bills and the relevant unrealized inter-

est income are separately listed in the balance sheet.
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(3) Provision for loan losses and writing off of loans.

Loans are classified into five categories: normal, speclal-mention, substandard, doubtfut and loss.

When there is objective evidence that a loan is impaired, provision for loan losses is made based on the estimated loss cover-
ing specific losses, non-individually identified potential losses, and potential losses artsing from soverelgnty risk, geographic
risk, industry risk, or particular types of loans. At the end of each year, the Group assesses the recoverability of each type
of loans and estimates potential losses. The provision for loan losses is measured as the difference between the carrying
amounts of the loan and its estimated recoverable amount. Provision for loan losses is made based on risk grading, while
other factors such as the borrowers' solvency, willingness to repay and past repayment records, market value of the collateral
and support from the guarantors are also taken into account when assessing the overall risk and recoverability, and to deter-
mine whether a loan is impaired and provision is properly made.

When a borrower or guarantor fails to repay his loan principal or interest, and uses the collateral to settle the debt, the re-
spective loan principal together with the recognized interest, is transferred to repossessed assets with the corresponding pro-
vision for loan losses transferred to provision for impairment on repossessed assets at the same time.

When a Joan is considered uncollectable after the Group has completed all the necessary legal procedures, upon approval
from managements, the loan is written off against the provision for loan losses. If 1n a subsequent period the loan previously
written off is recovered, the provision for the loan losses against the loan in the amount of the recovery will be reversed.

(h) Entrusted Loans and Investments

Entrusted loans are funded by the customers who entrust the Group to grant loans to designated borrowers for specific pur-
poses at terms (such as maturity period and interest rate) specified by the customers. The Group is responsible for granting
and monitoring the usage and repayment of entrusted loans.

Entrusted investments are also funded by the customers who entrust the Group to Invest in accordance with the defined
scopes. Balances of entrusted loans and entrusted investments are represented at the amounts granted or invested.

(i) Derivative Financial Instruments

‘The Group’s derivatives include spot forelgn exchange, forward forelgn exchange, currency swaps, Interest rate swaps and op-

tions, which are undertaken in resp toc ‘requi or for the Group's risk management purposes.

(j) Inventories
Inventories Include assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business (goods ot finished goods), assets in the production

process for sale in the ordinary course of business (work in process). and materials and supplies that are consumed in pro-
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duction (raw materials).

Inventortes of the Group mainly consist of raw material, products in progress, self-made semi finished products, low value
consumables and packaging materials, merchandise inventory and consignment stock etc. They are stated at actual cost and
managed by perpetual inventory system.

(k) Investments

{1) Short-term investments

The initial cost of a short-term investment s the total consideration pald on acquisition of the investment, excluding cash
dividends which have been declared but unpaid or unpaid interests on debentures which were due at the time of acquisition.
Except for cash dividends which have been declared but unpaid at the time of acquisition and interest on debentures which
is due but not yet paid at the time of acquisition. cash dividends and interest are set off against the carrying amount of short-
term investments when actually received by the Group. Upon the disposal or recovery of a short-term investment, the differ-
ence between the carrying amount and the actual amount received is recognized as profit or loss for the current period.
Short-term investments are carried at the lower of their cost and market value, and a provision for short-term investment is
made for any excess of the cost over the market value at the year end.

(2) Long-term equity investments

Where the Company controls, jointly controls or exercise signtficant influence over an investee enterprise, the long-term equity
investment is accounted for under the equity method whereby the investment is initially recorded at cost and adjusted there-
after for any post- acquisition change in the Company’s share of the shareholders’ equity in the investee enterprise.

Where the Group does not control, jointly control or exercise significant influence over an investee enterprise, the long-term
€quity investment is accounted for under the cost method by stating it at the initial investment cost. Investment income is
recognized when the investee enterprise declares a cash dividend or distributes its earnings.

Upon the disposal of long-term equity investments, the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount
of the Investments Is recognized as profit or loss for the period.

(3) Long-term debt investmens

‘The initial investment cost of a long-term debt investment is the total consideration amount paid for acquisition of the Invest-
ment, but excludes any unpaid interest that was due at the time of acquisition. Such interest receivable is separately accounted
for under receivables. Where the total consideration paid includes accrued interest that is not yet due at the time of acquisi-

tion, such interest is separately accounted for under long-term debt investments.
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The premium or discount on debentures represents the difference between the nominal value and the initial investment cost
of the debenture after the deduction of relevant taxes and accrued interests which are not yet due for payments.

The premium (discount) on investments in long-term debentures is amortized on a straight-line basis over the holding
period, and 1s treated as an adjustment to the interest income.

(1) Fixed Assets and Construction in Progress

Fixes assets are assets with comparatively high unit values held by the Group for producing products or rendering service. They are
expected to be used for more than one year.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment. Construction in
progress is stated in the balance sheet at cost less provision for impairment.

All direct and indirect costs that are related to the construction of fixed assets and incurred before the assets are ready for their
intended uses are capitalzed as construction in progress. Those costs inchude borrowing costs (including foreign exchange differences
arising from the loan princtpal and the related interests) of specific borrowings for the construction of the fixed assets during the con-
struction period.

Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when it is ready for its intended use.

Fixed assets are deprectated by using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and the esti-
mated rates of net residual value on cost adopted for the Group's fixed assets are as follows:

Classification Estimated useful Life Réidual Value (% of cost)
Land Use Rights T -Term.s of the land lease o -
Plant and Buildings 15-40 years 3%-5%
Transportation Equipment 6-8 years 3%-5%
Machinery and Equipment : 5-15 years 3%-5%
Others 3-10years 3%-5%

{m) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are long-lived assets that do not have physical appearance, held by the Group for producing products, ren-
dering services, leasing, or operation management. Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at the actual cost incurred

at the time of acquisition and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the beneficial pertods.
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(n) Long-term Deferred Expenses

Long-term deferred expenses represents cxpenses already paid but are amortized over a period of more than one year. Long-
term deferred expenses are stated at the actual payments and subsequently amortized as follows:

(1) Operating lease payments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the actual terms of the respective leases.

(2)  Other expenses pald are amortized on a straight-line basis over their respective beneficial periods.

When the long-term deferred expenses which are unlikely to be able to bring economic benefit to the Group in the subse-
quent periods, the balances will be charged to the income statement upon recognition.

(0) Pre-operating Expenses

Except for the expendtture incurred for acquiring or constructing the fixed assets, other expenses incurred during the start-
up period are aggregated in long-term deferred expenses and then fully charged to the income statement in the month opera-
tions commence.

{p) Provision for Impairment of Assets

‘the carrying amounts of assets (including entrusted loans, inventories, long-term investments, fixed assets, construction in
progress, intangible assets and other assets) are reviewed regularly to determine whether their recoverable amounts have de-
clined below their carrying amounts except loans {see note 3(g) ) and receivables(see note 3(f) ). The Group will perform an
impairment test to determine whether there are signs indicating that the carrying amount of an asset is concerned to be difficult to
recover. When impairment has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount. The amount of deduc-
tion is recognized to be the impairment loss of the asset.

The recoverable amount is the value of an asset treated as the greater of its net realizable value and the present value of the es-
timated future cash flows obtainable from the asset’s continuous use including the disposal at the end of its usefu] life.
Provision for impairment loss is mcasured on an item by item basis and recognized in the income statement for the current
period.

If there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount and as a result the estimated recoverable
amount is greater than the carrying amount of the asset, the impairment loss recognized in prior years is reversed. Reversals
of impairment losses are recognized in the income statement for the current period. Impairment losses are reversed to the
extent of the asset’s carrying amount that no impairment loss had been recognized in prior years. In respect of the reversal of
an impairment loss for a long-term cquity investment, the reversal starts with the impairment losses that had previously been

recognized in the income statement and then the impairment losses that had been charged to the capital surplus.
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(q) Repossessed Assets

(1) Repossessed assets are the assets repossessed by the Group through debt restructuring or effective control and the
Group can legally realize through auction, transfer or any other procedures.

(2) Repossessed assets are recorded at the value of the cancelled-out portion of the loan principal and the recognized
interest income. At the same time, all the corresponding loan provisions are transferred to provisions for impairment
on repossessed assets.

(3) Provision for impairment on repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and recoverable amounts at the end of each accounting
period. Provision for impairment is measured as the difference between the recoverable amounts and the carrying amounts
of repossessed assets.

(4) Disposal of repossessed assets

If the proceeds from the disposal of repossessed assets exceed thelr carrying amounts, the difference will be recognized as
non-operating revenue. If the amount is less than the carrylng amount, the difference will be recognized as non-operating
expenses.

(r) Issued Bonds

Issued bonds are recognized as liabilities at the total amount received upon issuance. The difference between the total amount
of issuance and the total par value is treated as the bonds discount or premium, and is amortized on a straight-line basis
throughout the terms of the bonds.

Interest expenses are accrued based on the coupons. Interest expenses plus amortization of discount or premium and
the issuance costs together, are charged to income statement as financial costs in the period.

(s} Income Tax

Income tax is recognized by using the tax-effect accounting method. Income tax for the year consists of current tax paid and
payable, and the movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax is calculated by applicable tax rate on the taxable income.

Deferred tax is measured for the differences between the accounting income and the taxable income arising from the timing
differences in recognizing income, expenses or losses between the accounting and tax regulations. Income tax expense for
the year is recorded into income statements; tax payable is provided by applicable tax rate on taxable income; deferred tax

assets or liabilities are recorded at applicable tax rate on timing differences. Subsequantly. the amount reversed is recorded in
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opposite accounting entries.

The Group adopts the income tax prepaid monthly (quarterty) in advance and yearend declaration method. The final setlement is
made withln five months after the year end, which settles the tax payable and refund.

() Revenue Recognition

When 1t is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, the amount of revenue and relevant costs can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognized as follows:

(1) Interest income *

Interest income from loans is recognized on an accrual basis on the time-proportion with reference to the principal outstanding
and the interest rates applicable. For loans overdue (including rescheduled loans) and not yet recovered for more than 90
days, or loans with interest overdue for more than 90 days, the accrual interest is discontinued and is accounted for as an
off-balance sheet item. Recognized Interest receivables of such loans set off against interest income in the income statement,
and turn to be accounted for as an off-balance sheet item. Repayment for a non-accrual toan will be firstly set off against the
outstanding loan principal. It is only when the loan principal is fully recovered that any excess amount received can be
recognized as i;lteral income for the period.

(2)  Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be reliably measured, revenue is recognized in lhe.
income statement with reference to the completion stage of the transaction. When the outcome of the transaction involving
the rendering of services cannot be reliably measured, revenue is recognized only to the extent of the costs incurred that are
expected to be recoverable.

Income from property management service is recognized when the service is rendered; it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group; and the revenue and costs can be reliably measured.

(3)  Insurance income

Insurance income is recognized on an accrual basis, starting from the time when the related insurance obligation becomes
effective in accordance with agreed terms of signed nsurance contract.

(4) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods 1s recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods has been transferred to
the buyer; the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor

effective control over the goods sold; the economic benefits associated with the transaction will be received by the Group; and
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the relevant amount of revenue and costs can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognized when the construction s completed; the completion certificate is issued by
the relevant government authorities; the sales agreement is signed; and the evidence of the customer payment in accordance
with the term of the sales agreement is received. Usually, the evidence of the customer payment is the receipt of deposit of
over 20% of the agreement amount or the payment schedule of the remaining amount being confirmed.

(5) Revenue from Contracts of construction

When the outcome of a construction contract can be reliably measured, revenue associated with the construction contract
is recognized at the balance sheet date by using the percentage-of-completion method. When the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be reliably measured, revenue is recognized only to the extent of the contract costs incurred that are recover-
able.

(6) Other revenue

Other revenue is recognized on an accrual basis.

{u) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs incurred on specific borrowings for the construction of fixed assets are capitalized into the cost of the fixed
assets during the construction period until the fixed assets are ready for their intended uses, when expendltures for the assets
are being incurred; borrowing costs are being incurred; and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for their intend-
ed uses are in progress.

Except for the specific borcowings for the construction of fixed assets, other borrowings are recognized as expenses for the
period and charged to the income statement as part of the financial costs.

(v) Employee Benefits

According to the relevant regulations in PRC, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries established basic pension schemes

in 1998. For each employee, the basic pension cost is accrued based on 28% of the total salary, of which 8% is borne by the

employee and 20% is borne by the Company and its d ic subsidiaries. By the end of 2009, the Company and its domes-
tic subsidiaries have made adequate accrual for this basic pension.

‘The Company and centain of its domestic subsidiartes also established annuity schemes, the related cost is accrued based on 8%
of the total salary of an employee, of which 4% is borne by the employee and 4% is borne by the Company and these

subsidiaries. By the end of 2009, the Company and these subsidiaries have made adequate accrual for the annuity.
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(w) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are made when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of outflow can be reliably estimated.

When the possibility of an outflow of economic benefits caused by the settlement of the above obligation is low, or the outflow
amount cannot be reliably measured. this obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability.

(x) Related Parties

‘Two or more parties are considered to be related parties when at any time during the relevant financial period: if one party
has the power, directly or indirectly, to control, jointly control or exercise significant influence over another party, or vice ver-
sa, or where one or more parties are subject to common control from another party, they are considered to be related parties.
(y) Segmental Reporting

A seg is a distinguishable cc

p 1t of the Group that is engaged either in providing distinguished products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

During the reporting period, the reported business segments of the Group include: financtal services, real estate and civil in-

frastructure, manufacturing, resources, trading and services, information industry, project contracting and unallocated items.

4. Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) The Group prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with refated regulations.

The consolidated financial statements are consolidated by the financial statements of the Company and all of its principal
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009. Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company directly or indirectly: holding
50% or above equity shares directly or indirectly; carrying more than half of the voting rights; controlling the composition of
the board of directors; or governing the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The investments in subsidiaries are accounted under equity method in the Company's financtal statements, and these subsidiaries
are consolidated at the end of the accounting year.

‘The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared base on the individual financial statements of the Company
and fts consolidated subsidiaries. Material intra-group transactions, including any intra-group unrealized profits and balances, are

el J through the p

paration of the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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(b) Principal subsidiaries (included in the consolidation of the Group for year 2009) are as follows:

Name Shareshedd (%)  Registration location Principal activities Type .
CITIC Holdings 100% Beijing Finandial services  Limited labdmies cn:\pa:y .
China CITIC Bank Corparation I 1d. 66.71% Beijing Fimandial services  Limued liabilities company :
CITIC Prudential Life Insurance Co, Lzd. 0% Guangzhou Financial services  Limited liabid s company '
CITIC Trust & Investmena Co, Lid. 100% Beijing Fimancial services  Limited liabilities company
CITIC Asset Management Corporation Ltd. 100% Beijing Fimndalservices  Limited liabdities oompany ;
CITIC Guoan Group 100% Bajing Investment holding  Limuted liabilities company I
CITIC Real Estate Co.ltd. 8837% Beijing Real estteand  Limued liabdities company :

avil infrastructure .
CITIC East China Group 100% Shanghai Realestateand  Limited liabdities company |
CITIC Tianjin Investment Halding Co. I1d, 100% Tianjin Realstateand  Limited liabdities comparny

il in
CITIC Construction 100% Bejing Pruject contracting  Limated liabilines company
Central and Southem China Municppal Engineering ~ 100% Wuhan Project contracting  Limited liabilities company |
Design & Rescarch [nstitute .
‘Wuhan Architectural Design Institute 100% Wuhan Project contracting  Limited liabities comparny
CITIC Metal Co,, Lid 100% Bajing Resources  Limited liablities company
CITIC Mining Techndogy Development Ca, Lid.~ 84.70% Beijing Resources  Limited liabdities comparny
CITIC tnvestment Holding Co.ltd 100% Beijing Manufacturing  Limited liabilties company
CITIC Heavy Industries Ca, Ltd. 96.71% Luoyang Mamufacturing  Limized liabil ties company
CITIC Bohai Aluminfum Industrics Holding Co Lid  100% Qinhuangdao Manufacturing  Limited liabdiries company
CITIC Machinery Manufacturing Co, Lid, 100% Beijing Manufacturing  Limited liabdines campany
CITIC Networks Co. Lad. 100% Shenzhen Information industry  Limited liabilties company
Beijing Capital Mansion 100% Beijing Services  Limited liabilities company
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Name Sharesheld (%)  Registration location Principal activities Type
CITIC Shenzhen Investment Group Ca., m 100% Shenzhen Trading Limmdljabﬂniaa‘mnwny
CITIC Automobile Co., Lid 100% Bdijing Trading  Limited liabdities company
CITIC International Economic Consultants Co. Lid. ~ 100% Bejjing Services  Limited liabdities company
CITIC Ningbo Group 100% Ningbo Services  Limited liabilities company
CITIC Travel Ca. Ltd. 100% Beijing Services  Limited liabilities company
China CITIC Press 100% Beijing Publishing  Limted liablities company
China Zhonghaizhi Corporation 51.03% Shenzhen Services  Limued liabtties comparry
CITIC Heavy Machinery Co. zd. 100% Luoyang Services  Limited liabies company
Beijing CITIC Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. 100% Bdijing Services  Limited liabdities company
CITIC Hong Kong (Holdings) Ltd. 100% Hong Kong Investment holding  Limited Ltabdlities company
CITIC Pacific 14d. 5752% Hong Kang Investment holding  Limited liabilties company
CITIC USA Holding Inc. 100% UsA Imvestment holding ~ Limited liabilities company
CITIC Power Imvestment Co, Lid. 100% Hong Kong Realestateand  [amated liabdnies company
cml infrastructure
CITIC Australia Pty. Limited 100% Australia Resources  Limited liablities comparry
CITIC United Asia Investments Lid, 100% Hong Kong Resources Limited liabilities company
Keentech Group Lad. 100% British Virgin Istands Resources  Limited liabilities comparry
Macau Cement Manufacturing Co. L1d. 77.89% Maau Manufacturing  Limited liabilities company
Sundance Forest industnes 11d 100% Camada Manufacturing  Limited liabdities company

CITIC Asia Satellite Holding Comparty 1.1d. 100% British Virgin lslands Information industry  Limited liabiltics company
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5. Interpretation for Important Accounts of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Cash and Deposit

2009 2008

Deposits with the central bank 220,077,623 203,243,244
Cash and cash equivalents 54,199,289 53,195,079
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 26,939,344 40,559,991
Total 301,216,256 296,998,314

(2} Loans to Customers

2009 2008

Shart-term loans
Short-term loans to customers 523,679,255 387,381,477
Discounted bills 47,315,174 43,567,760
Securities held under resale agreements 185,202,883 57,698,177
Trade finance for inward and outward bills 16,278,164 8,806,942
Less: prowision for short-term loans 823,736 377,608
Total short-term loans 771,651,740 497,076,748
Medium and long-term loans
Medium and long-term loans to customers 538,460,991 320,271,160
Less: provision for medium and long-term loans 16,048,312 14,830,359
Total medium and long-term loans to customers 522,412,679 305,440,801
Total loans to customers . 1,294,064,419 802,517,549
(2} Analysis by categories (short-term loans to customers, medium and long-term loans 10 customers):
Short-term loans (including short-term loans to customers, discounted bills and trade finance for inward and outward bills)
By nature: 2009 2008
Unsecured loans 202,601,136 208,566,680
Loans with guarantees 193,772,308 134,320,724
Loans secured by properties 144,007,559 66,422,594
Loans pledged by monetary assets 46,891,590 30,446,181
Total ) 587,272,593 439,756,179
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Medium and long-term loans
By original maturity:
2009
1-5 years over 5 years Total
Unsecused loans 79.713.047 66,962,957 146,676,004
Loans with guarantees 33,202,209 99.552,148 132,754,357
Loans secured by properties 75.866.777 121,972,404 197,839,181
Loans pledged by monetary assets 13,619,597 47,571,852 61,191,449
Total ” 202,401,630 336,059,361 538,460,991
2008
1-5 years over 5 years Total
Unsecured loans ) 62,935,733 37,668,440 100,604,173
Loans with guarantees 40,324,792 17,176,169 57,500,961
Loans secured by properties 52,583,638 76.598,168 129,181,806
Loans pledged by monetary assets 13,280,444 19,703,776 32,984,220
Total ) 169,124,607 151,146,553 320,271,160

(b} Analysts by risk grading (short-term loans to customers, discounted bills, trade finance for inward and outward bills, medium and

long-term loans to customers):

2009 2008
Normal 1,106.092,880 732,148,528
Special -mention 8,295,877 16,822,105
Total performing loans 1,114,388,757 748,970,633
Substandard 3,235,019 1,595,962
Doubtful 6,389,264 8.289.840
Loss 1,720,544 1,170,904
Total non-performing loans - 11,344,827 11,056,706
Total 1,125,733,584 760,027,339
By the nature of non-performing loans (including substandard, doubtful and loss):

2009 2008
Unsecured loans 3,585,744 3,076,438
Loans with guarantees 2,859,233 4,216,343
Loans secured by properties 4,467,769 3,331,338
Loans pledged by monetary assets 432,081 432,587
Total 11,344,827 11,056,706
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(c) Analysis by industry (including short-term loans to customers, discounted bills, trade finance for inward and outward bills, medium
and long-term loans to customers):

2009 2008
Manufacturing 210,571,037 168,775,957
Transportation, storage and postal services 102,207,195 65,147,545
Wholesale and retail 85,872,374 51,948,914
Production and supply of clectric power, gas and water 85,105,581 57,777.818
Water conservancy,environmental and public utility management 74,603,763 36,592,030
Finance 62,781,277 9,202,073
Leasing and commercial services 50,771,991 31,916,604
Public and social organizations 49,559,516 22,003,691
Property development 46,321,931 42,566,940
Construction 34,513,593 23,352,298
Others 175,144,712 123,581,606
Total corporate loans 977.452.970 632,865.476
Total individual loans 148,280,614 127,161,863
Gruss amount of loans 1125,733,584 T 60027339
Less: provision for loan losses 16,872,048 15,207,967
Net carrying amount of loans o 1.108.861,536 744819372

(d) Analysis by geographical spread (including short-term loans to customers, discounted bills, trade finance for inward and

outward bills, medium and long-term loans to customers):

2009 2008

Domestic 1,059,602.069 704,915,792
Overseas 66,131,515 55,111,547
Including: Hong Kong SAR 60,683,745 47,288,631
Others 5,447,770 7.822.916

Gross amount of loans 1,125,733.584 760,027,339
Less: provision for loan losses 16,872,048 15,207,967
Net carrying amount of loans o 1,108,861,536 744,819,372
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LINC GROUP
(e) Provision for Loans Losses
Total provision for impairment losses Movement
Opening f al Recovery of Value of due to other Closing
balance ~ Charge for  Value recovery- value Subtotal  Write-off balance
the period  written back written off feasons
Lrovsion for shortterm 1, o8 1.314,164 867,818 135 #6211 83 823736
Provisionformedium | o369 4512330 1839742 178344 2494204 LIB01 18260 16048312
and long-term loans
Total 15,207,967 5,826,494 2,707,560 178,479 2,940,455 1,148,031 -128,343 16,872,048
(3) Receivables
2009 2008
Accounts receivable 13,259,780 11,771,252
Other receivables 24,904,484 16,879,302
Less: provision for bad debts 7,538,276 2,361,954
Prepayments 10,720,106 8,367,595
Notes receivable 4,843,397 3,995,042
Interests receivable 4,243,297 3.941,661
Dividends receivable 668,030 746,757
Assurance receivable 128,610 184,021
Total 51,229,428 38,523,676
Provision for Bad Debts
Total provision for impairment losses Movement
Opening Recoveryof Valueof (0 other Closing
balance Charge for  Value recovery- value Subtotal write-off balance
the period  written back written off reasons
Provision for 7.361,954 622.037 555,112 17,958 48967 77310 204665  7.538.276
bad debts ;
Total 7,361,954 622,037 555,112 17,958 48,967 77,310 204,665 7,538,276
{4) Investments
2009 2008
Short-term investments 98,923,845 111,547,967
Long-term debt investments due within 1 year 10,923,261 14,924,316
Total short-term investments 109,847,106 126,472,283
Long-term debt investments 109,806,882 107,007,496
Long-term equity investments 65,747,291 67,770,364
Total long-term investments 175,554,173 174,777,860
Total investments 285,401,279 301,250,143
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(a) Short-term investments

2009

Gross Provision Net

Bonds issued by PBOC 18,098,055 . 18,098,055
. Government bonds 10,538,198 10,538,198
Bonds issued by financial institutions 22,592,421 22,592,421
Corporate bonds 32,937,178 32,937,178
Debt securities issued by PRC palicy banks 8,282,673 8,282,673
Total bonds 92.448,525 92,448,525
Fund 1,590,450 15,905 1,574,545
Entrusted investments 1,700,460 - 1,700,460
Others 3,220,615 20.300 3,200315
Total 98,960,050 36,205 98,923,845

2008

Gross Provision Net

Bonds 1ssued by PBOC 52.576.066 52.576.066
Government bonds 17,660,996 17,660,996
Bonds issued by financial institutions 1,359,574 1,359,574
Corporate bonds 25,642,832 25,642,832
Debt securities issued by PRC policy banks 4,170,305 4,170,305
Total bonds 101,409,773 101,409,773
Fund 1,569,751 15,665 1,554,086
Entrusted investments 1,513,527 1,513,527
Others 7,113,113 42,532 7.070.581
Total 111,606,164 “5-8,197 111,547,967

(1) The government bonds, the PBOC bills and the debt securittes issued by PRC policy banks held by the Group are traded in the

inter-bank bond market.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CIIC GROLUP

(i) Analysis by market value

2009 2008
Net book value Market value Net book value Market value
Bonds issued by PBOC 18,098,055 18,098,055 52,576,066 52,576,066
Government bonds 10,538,198 10,538,198 17,660,996 17,660,996
Bonds issued by financial institutions 22,592,421 22,592,421 1,359,574 1,359,574
Corporate bonds 32,937,178 32,937,178 25,642,832 25,642,832
Debt securities issued by PRC policy banks 8,282,673 8,282,673 4,170,305 4,170,305
Total bonds 92,448,525 92,448,525 101,409,773 101,409,773
Fund 1,574,545 1,574,545 1,554,086 1,554,086
Entrusted loans and investments 1,700,460 1,700.460 1,513,527 1,513,527
Others 3,200,315 3,200315 7,070,581 7,070,581
Total 98,923,845 98,923,845 111,547,967 111,547,967
(b) Long-term debt investments
2009
Gross Provision Net
Bonds issued by financial institutions 12,972,753 514,490 12,458,263
Government bonds 34,597.962 34,597,962
Debt securities issued by PRC policy banks 20,876,424 20876424
Corporate bonds 12,981,062 12,981,062
Bonds issued by PBOC 22,983,910 22983910
Others 5.911,513 2,252 5,909,261
Total 1 10,32.{,;24 516,742 109,806,882
2008
Gross Provision Net
Bonds issued by financial institutions 23,290,325 738,569 22,551,756
Government bonds 21,047,577 . 21,047,577
Debt securities issued by PRC policy banks 24,612,037 24,612,037
Corporate bonds 7,628,619 55,135 7,573,484
Bonds issued by PBOC 21,876,115 21,876,115
Others 9.347.327 800 9.346,527
Total 107,802,000 794,504 107,007,496
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(¢} Long-term equity investments

2009 2008
Investments in:
Listed companies 30,191,669 33,682,375
Unlisted companies 46,417,122 43,274,704
Totat 76,608,791 76,957,079
Less: provision for impairment 10,861,500 9,186,715
Net carrying amount 65,747,291 67,770,364
(d) Provision for investments
Total provision for impairment losses Movement
Opening Recovery Va.!ue of due to other Closing
balance  Charge for Value recovery- of value  Subtotal  Wrile-off balance
theperiod  written back written off reasoms
;’:’;“""‘:’['Bf“' shorttem gg 197 5,240 - mam a9 36,205
:;;';::’: IJZ;S"’“"‘"’“ 794,504 19721 - 49.721 327483 516742
Provision for long-term 5140515 3 140347 387,209 1753138 155449 77.09%  10.861,500
equity investments ) .
Total 10,039,416 2,195,308 387,209 27,232 1,780,867 155,449 -250,388 11,414,446
(5) Other Current Assets
2009 2008
Inventories 58,877,745 47.673.090
Less: provision for inventories 1,135,317 1,060,925
Derrvative financial instruments 3,266,474 6,252,932
Entrusted loans 486,735 976.115
Less: provision for entrusted loans 185,713 399,298
Other items of current assets 2,951,609 1,830,447
Total ] B 64,261,533 55,272,361
(a) Analysis of inventories by usage
2009 2008
Merchandise inventory 9,713,259 9,921,942
Raw materials 5456586 4,272,339
Self-made semi finished products 3,314,438 1,480,404
Products in process 2,781,866 2,182,336
Low value bles and packag 1 123,110 56,354
Consignment stock 45,864 46,185
Others 37,442,622 29,713,530
Total 58,877,745 47,673,090
Less:provision for inventories 1,135,317 1,060,925
Net carrying amount 57,742,428 46,612,165
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CLIC GROUP

{b) Analysis of inventories by industry

2009 2008
Real estate and civil infrastructure 36,722,094 31,916,614
Manufacturing 9,677,250 7,676,460
Resources 8,438,176 4,861,996
Trading and services 3916356 3,021,964
Information industry 111,891 184,415
Project contracting 10,894 11121
Unallocated 1,084 520
Total 58,877,745 47,673,0%
Less: provision for inventories 1,135,317 1,060,925
Net carrying amount 57,742,428 46,612,165
(¢) Provision for entrusted loans and inventories
Opening Total provision for im;::lrmenl tosses Vadue of Movement Qosing
balance  Chargefor Valuerecovery- ~(CO0Y 0y oy duetoother ) e
theperiod  writtenback written off feasom
:":"nz:':: f;’:m 39998 74307 17377 . 203,070 - -10815 185713
Provision for inventories 1,060,925 305,454 1,610 - 303,844 225,051 -4,401 1,135,317
Total 1,460,223 379,761 278,987 o 100,774 225,051 -14,916 1,321,030
(6) Fixed Assets
2009 2008
Fixed assets 111,298,037 96,140,067
Less: accumulated depreciation 32,105,515 26,335,327
Fixed assets value 79,192,522 69,804,740
Less: provision for impairment 308,517 653,823
Fixed assets net ) 78,884,005 ) 691—;
Construction in progress 36,047,856 26.,080.126
Less: provision for construction in progress 186,137 185,889
Construction in progress net 35,861,719 25,894,237
Material for construction 185,949 488,545
Disposal of fixed assets 19,981 18,254
Total 114,951,654 95,551,953
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(a) Costs of the fixed assets:

Opening balance Additions Disposals Closing balance
Land use rights 12,952,408 441,435 207,138 13,186,705
Plant and buildings 30,271,765 7,314,029 1,325,674 36,260,120
Transportation equipment 5,027,558 1,233,531 172,299 6,088,790
Machinery & equpment 40,772,992 . 8178033 994,681 47,956,344
Others 7,115,344 1,105,286 414,552 7,806,078
Total 96,140,067 18,272,314 3,114,344 111,298,037
(b} Accumulated depreciation:

Opening balance Additions Written back Closing balance
Land use rights 323,835 91,398 4,426 410807
Plant and buildings 4,854,741 1.457.794 107,245 6.205,290
Transpontation equipment 1,276,570 936,986 124,284 2,089272
Machinery & equipment 16,075,662 3,339,534 424,309 18,990,887
Others 3.804.519 877,388 272,648 4,409,259
Total 26,335.327 6,703,100 932,912 32,105,515

(c) Provision for impairment:

Total provision for impairment losses

Opening Recove T Valueof Movement Closing
balance Charge for Value recovery- ofva!urey Subtotal  Write-off dueto o‘}s‘" balance
the period  written written off reason:
Provision for fixed assets 653,823 15,048 393492 - 378,444 - 33,138 308,517
Induding:
Land use rights . - - - - - 1,022 1,022
Plantand buildings 40,854 10,178 - - 10.178 - 3.963 54,995
Transportation equipment 2,511 . - . . 5130 7.641
Machinery & equipment 582412 3,359 393492 - -390,133 - 22,875 215,154
Others 28,046 1,511 . 1,511 - 148 29.705
Provision for construction 185,689 9% . 3 % . 152 186,137
in progress
Total 839,712 15,144 393,492 - -378,348 - 33,290 494,654
{7) Other Long-term Assets
2009 2008
Intangible assets 18,429,104 14,367,215
Less: provision for intangible assets 58,444 46,139
Net intangible assets 18,370,660 14,321,076
Deferred tax assets 4,300,596 5,152,560
Long-term receivable 4,048,380 187,001
Less: provision for long-term receivable 1,970 1971
Net long-term receivable 4,046,410 185,030
Long-term deferred expenses 1,812,331 1,349,582
Repossessed assets 1,114,626 904,671
Less: provision for repossessed assets 378,724 314,357
Net repossessed assets 735,902 590,314
Circulation right for equity separation 125,550 129.518
Less: provision for circulation right for equity separation 1,255 1,295
Net circulation right for equity separation 124,295 128,223
Other items of long-term assets 13,321,962 12,260,987
Total 42,712,156 33,987,772

12 CITIC Groap




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UG GROUY

Provision for impairment:

Total provision for impairment losses

. Movement N
Opening Recovery Value of due to other Closing
balance  Chargefor Valuerecovery- ~ o) 1 oL writeoff balance
theperiod  written back written off reasons
m“" for reposscssed 314,357 64,368 - - 6468 - 1 378
Provsion for long-term 1971 - - - - - 1 1,970
?ﬁﬁ:ﬁfu‘;ﬁﬁ;’l 1,205 - - 0 -40 - E 1,255
Provision for ntangble 46139 2503 - 742 1761 - 1054 58444
Total 363,762 66,871 . 782 66,089 - 10,542 440,393
(8) Short-term Deposits from Customers
2009 2008
Short-term depoasits 687,139,580 416,565,318
Short-term savings deposits 92,764,011 146,133,852
Depoasits {rom banks and other financial institutions 278,747,572 102,680,092
Total 1,058,651,163 665,379,262
(9) Short-term Financing
2009 2008
Short-term loans 22,658,579 35,522,257
Current portion of long-term liabilities 5,787,204 8,049,289
Assets sold for repurchase 4,099,716 1,027,219
Interbank borrowing 3811970 150,362
Short-term bonds payable - 145,948
Total i 36,357,469 44,895,075
(10) Payables
2009 2008
Receipts in advance 23,934,561 19,604,615
Accounts payable 22,628,632 15,365,753
Salary and compensation of employees payable 8,746,510 6,459,555
Interest payable 7372799 7,284,443
Tax payable 3,765,104 5.991,141
Bills payable 2,460,138 3.196.926
Dividend payable 503,665 415,373
Reinsurance and policy dividend payable 198,464 112,526
Other payables . 24,339,198 23,071,535
Total 93,949,071 81,501,867
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(11) Other Current Liabilities

2009 2008
Derivative financial instruments 2,886,021 11,125,035
Accrued expenses 27.879 372,041
Estimated liability 122,769 128,722
Entrusted savings 10,969 20,004
Other items of current liabiities 741,177 985,493
Total 3,988,815 12,631,295
(12) Long-term Deposits from Customers
2009 2008
Long-term deposits 419,867,754 344,345,434
Long-term savings deposits 119,107,316 109,119,855
Total 538,975,070 453,465,289
(13} Long-term Bond Payables
2009 2008
Total long-term bond payables 62,837,454 57,556,303
Inc: the Company 30.426,115 27,081,664
China CITIC Bank Corporation Ltd. 17,487,855 17.511,358
CITIC Resources Holdings Lud. 6,397,344 6,492,589
CITIC Guoan Group 4,969,837 2913,542
CITIC Pacific [1d. 3,556,253 3,557,150
5 The intemal transaction of the long-term bond payables of the Group has been offset during consol:dation
(14) Other Long-term Liabilities
2009 2008
Derivative financial instruments 5,824,159 14,136,067
Deferred tax liabilities 5,708,990 5,195,357
Long-term reserves 3,793,679 6,098,973
Long-term payables 3.411,545 3,015,051
Other items of long-term liabdities 6,966,851 1,241,736
Total ) 25,705,224 29,687,184
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHIC GROUP

Deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
2009 2008 2009 2009

Amount formed by: )

Provision for loans and reserves 1,103,556 1,849,381 - 30
Compensation for tax loss 67,4% 732,350 - 95,684

Provision for bad debts 206,011 305,437 -14.968 20,504

Provision for i -term

impaiment of ong 19,834 130,563

Changes in fair value 183,193 165,572 1,665,938 1,113,080

Provision for inventorics 63,521 75,025 -

Tax deductible 2,049,865 1,138,394 -120,626 -

Provision for impairment of fixed assets -152497 -11.882 - 17

Accumulated depreciation -1,727 1,558 2,859,857 2283914

Others 761,344 766,162 1,318,789 1,914,504

Total 4,300,596 5,152,560 5,708,990 5,195,357
(15) Capital

Opening balance ‘l:::::;::r zz:jx Closing balance Note

Capital 39,942,191 15.415,529 - - 55,357,720 E

% Thas stem represents the paid-in vapital allocazed by the Minustey of Finance of the Peoples Republic of Chana (MOF) The increased amount of RMB 15.415.529 thou-
sand includes the vansterred capital RMB 12815529 thousand obtaned from profits according to the Documens Cai {2009{Na 149 and RMB 2,600,000 thousand abtained
fram the income 1ax refund according 10the Decument Car [ 2009]Na i7¢-No 163

(16) Reserves

2009 2008

Capital reserves 51745301 46,763,171

Surplus reserves 11,626,938 8,882,161

Opening balance of retained earnings -1,879.370 -886,726

Difference from lation of financial d d in foreign currencies -523.712 -221,561

Total 60,969,157 54,537,045

Retained earnings:

Amount
Closing balance of 2008 (exduding the net profit of 2008) -561,111
Add: adjustments of opening balance -325.615
Other adjustments -
Opening balance of 2009 (exduding the net profit of 2008) -886,726
Add: the net profit of 2008 14,248,703
Opening balance of 2009 13,361.977
Less: appropnations for surplus reserve 1,423,948
Paid-in capital increased by retained earnings transfer 12,815,529
Add: gain and losses recognized directly in equity -1,001.870
Closing balance of 2009(excluding the net profit of 2009) -1,879,370
Add: Transferred from net profit of 2009 18,892,122
Closing balance of 2009 17,012,752
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(17) Operating Income

2009 2008
Operating income of non-financial services 134,898,457 80,553,302
Interest income 57,112,025 62,795,830
Fees and commissions 5.815.837 5,472,016
Exchange gains 2,443,207
Insurance income 2,398,268 3,714,159
Other operating income 6,397,128 4,508,502
Total T 209,064,922 157,043,809

(18} Operating Cost

2009 2008
Operating cost of non-financial services 116,384,895 65,953,268
[nterest expenses 23,966,998 28,000,390
Cost of insurance business 1,753,672 2,245.734
Cost of fees and commussions 791,921 1,207,872
Exchange losses 1,034,237
Total 142,897,486 98,441,500

(19} Operating Expenses

2009 2008
Staff costs 13,779.730 10,469,649
Depreciation 1.525.879 1,486,845
Rental charge 1,428,168 959,016
Entertainment expenses 1,246,201 1,143,945
Transportation expenses 924,383 917.290
Amortisation 833,865 597,596
Publicizing expenses 755,308 397.002
Sundry expenses 638,010 507,899
Professional service charge 611,149 355917
Postage expenses 434,820 374,132
Other operating expenses 6,124,903 4,870,101
Tod 7 - 28,302.416 T 22,079.392
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CIIICGROUP

(20) Provisions for Impairment Losses

Charge for Value recovery- Recovery of value Total provision

the period written back written off for 2009
Pravision for short-term investments 5.240 . 27,232 -21,992
Provision for bad debts 622,037 555,112 17,958 48,967
Provision for inventories 305,454 1,610 - 303.844
Provision for loan losses 5,898,134 2,707,560 178,479 3,002,095
Provision for entrusted loans 74307 277,377 - -203,070
Provision for long-term investments 2,190,069 387,209 - 1,802,860
Provision for fixed assets 15,048 393492 - 378,444
Provision for construction in progress 96 - - 96
Provision for intangible assets 2,503 - 742 1,761
Provision for repossessed assets 64,368 - - 64,368
Provision for other long-term assets - - 40 -40
Total 9,177,256 4322,360 224,451 4,630,445

(21) Supplemental Information of Cash Flow Statements

(a) Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities

Item Amount
LReconcliliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities
Net profit 28,246,549
Add: provision for impairment loss of assets 4,630,445
Depreciation of fixed assets 4,545,032
Amortization of intangible assets 320,535
Amonrtization of long-term deferred expenses 464,889
Decrease in prepaid expenses(deduct:increase) 24,284
Increase in accrued expenses (deduct:decrease) 59,049
Losses on disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and other -1,229,855
long-term assets(deduct:gains)
Losses on scrapping of fixed assets 20,936
Financial expenses (deduct:gains) . 5,281,462
Losses from investments (deduct:gains) +6.181,333
Deferred tax credits (decuct:decrease) 1,365,597
Decrease in inventones (decuct: increase) -11,130,263
Decrease in operating receivables (deduct:increase) -423910,714
Increase in operating payables (deduct:decrease) 388,539,019
Net cash flows from operating activities -8.954,368
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2Investing and financing activities that do not affect cash receipt and payment
Conversion of debt into capital
Convertible bonds to expire within one year
Fixed assets under finance leases
3.Net increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash at the end of the year

207,287,890
Including: cash on hand 5,126,368
Deposit at bank which can be paid at any time 42,148,063
Other monetary assets which can be paid at any time 5,292,044
Deposits with the central bank 89,147,000
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 25,164,415
Inter-bank placements 40,410,000
Cash equivalents at the end of the year 12,191,789
Induding: short-term bonds investment (maturity within 3 months) 12,176,000
Less: cash a1 the beginning of the year 210,478,549
Less: cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,460,273
Net increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalents 540,857
(b) Cashand Cash Equivalents
2009 2008
Amount of cash and cash equivalents in balance sheet:
Deposits with central bank 137,003,431 107,676,937
Cash and deposits (excluding deposits with central bank) 51,119,320 92,271,368
Inter-bank placements 31,341,465 18,987,409
Short-term investments 15,463 3,108
Total 219,479,679 218,938,822
Carresponding amount in balance sheet:
Deposits with central bank 220,077,623 203,243,244
Cash and deposits (excluding deposits with central bank) 81,138,633 93,755,070
Inter-bank placements 55,453,976 19,053,591
Short-term investments 98,923,845 111,547,967
Total 455,594,077 427,599,872
Less: short-term investments {maturity more than 3 months) 236,114,398 208,661,050
Cash and cash equivalents 219,479,679 218,938,822
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CI'tit GROUP

6. Interpretation for Important Accounts of the Company’s Financial Statements
(1) Cash and Deposit

2009 2008
Deposit at bank 18,531,949 16,927,241
Other monetary assets 217,062 590,022
Total 18,749,011 17,517,263
(2) Receivables

2009 2008
Dividends receivable 480,851 389,557
Interests receivable 42,487 62,034
Other receivables 24,972,392 22,074,702
Less: provision for bad debts 5,502,248 5,705,745
Total ) 19,993,482 16,820,548
(3) Loans to Customers

2009 2008
Net amount of short-term loans . 744,123 767,209
Net amount of medium and long-term loans 632,670 165.870
Total 1,376,793 933,079
(4) lavestments

2009 2008
Short-term investments 5,284,706 7,275,009
Long-term investments 146,612,484 137,397,432
Total ' ’ 151,897,190 144,672,441
(a) Short-term investments

2009 2008
Delegated management assets 1,700,460 4.236709
Stocks 300,000 300,000
Fund 1,590,450 1,566,497
Other investments 1,730,000 1,230,000
Total short-term investments 5,320,910 7,333,206
Less: Provision for short-term investments 36,204 58,197
Net carrying amount 5,284,706 7,275,009

#¢The market vatue of the thort-term investments at 31 December 2009 is 5.320.910 thousand. and a1 31 December 200815 7.333.206 thousand.
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{b) Long-term investments

2009 2008
Listed companies directly or indirectly held 118,042,015 113,317,618
Other unlisted companies 36,750,486 31,100,854
Others 225,200 80,000
Total long-term investments 155,017,701 144,498,472
Less: provision for long-term investments 8,405,217 7,101,040
Net carrying amount - 146,612,484 137,397,432

2008 the market value is RMB 158.532.400 thousand.

3% Analysis by industry:

£ As a1 31 December 2009, the marker value of listed companies directly of indirectly held by the Company ts RMB 314.475.490 thousand; whie as at 31 December

2009 2008
Financial services 95,804,619 94,846,873
Investment holding 30,880,125 23,934,007
Resources 8,620,885 8,086,737
Real estate and civil infrastructure 7,945,530 6,347,986
Manufacturing 5,167,278 4729914
Information industry 3,776,894 3,856,715
Trading and services 1,395,356 1,787,798
Project contracting 1,427,014 908,442
Total tong-term investments 155,017,701 144,498,472
Less: provision for long-term investments 8,405,217 7,101,040
Net carrying amount 146,612,484 137,397,432
(c) Provision for investments

Opening Recovery of value o Movement due to .
balance written off Value of write-off other reasons Closing balance

Provision for short-term 58.197 27,033 5.240 36,204
investments
Provision fur long-term 7.101,040 1,304,177 8405217
investments
Total 7,159,237 27,233 1,309,417 8,441,421
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHIIC GROUE

(5) Other Current Assets

2008 2007
Entrusted loans 13,528,133 15,664,703
Less: provision for entrusted loans 659,447 862,517
Swap 1,690 6,658
Total 12,870,376 14,808,844
Provision for entrusted loans
i Recovery of value
Opening Y Value of writeoff  Movement dueto Closing balance
balance written off other reasons
Provision for entrusted loans 862,517 - -203,070 659,447
Total 862,517 -203,070 659,447
(6) Fixed Assets
() Costs of the fixed assets:
Opening balance Additions Disposals Closing balance
Plant and buildings 20,015 356 19,659
Machinery & equipment 41 41
Transportation equipment 18,457 5.011 3,429 20,039
Others 918,957 2,205 1,422 919,740
Total 957,470 7,216 5,207 959,479
(b) Accumulated depreciation:
Opening balance Additions Written back Closing balance
Plant and buildings 9.947 1,032 332 10,647
Machinery & equipment 34 2 - 36
Transportation equipment 10,812 5.846 2.862 13,796
Others 861,784 $.196 1,354 865,626
Total - 882,577 12,076 4,548 890,105
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(7) Other Long-term Assets

2009 2008
Intangible assets 1,162
Long-term deferred expenses 174799 157,843
Repossessed assets 125,645 125,758
Long-term receivable 195,060 195,124
Circulation night for equity separation 124,294 128,221
Total 619,798 608,108
5 The long-1erm deferred expenses represents the costs of issuing bonds.
(8) Short-term Financing

2009 2008
Short-term loans 4,399,190
Current portion of long-term liabilities 1,384,520 3,905,206
Total 1,384,520 8,304,396
(9) Payables

2009 2008
Accounts payable 262,388 201,731
Other payables 4,843,626 2,459.340
Consigned investments 8,802,218 7,946,735
Tax payable 7479 689
ﬁll 13,915,711 10,608,495
(10) Long-term Bond Payables

Cut-off Date Interest rate (%) (in Ong?no:l"c?:::::; Oosm(g‘:a]l;\t{l;

YEN - B
96 Samurai Sep.19.1996- Sep.19,2016 495 10.000,000 741,068
RMB
01 CITIC Dec.19,2001 —Dec.19,2011 398 3,500,000 3,500,000
02CITIC S$ep.26,2002—Sep.26,2017 408 4,500,000 4,500,000
03 CITIC 4 billion Dec.12,2003—Dec.12,2013 45 4.000.000 4,000,000
03 CITIC 6 billion Dec.12,.2003—Dec.12,2023 5.1 6.000,000 6,000,000
05 CITIC 5 billion Dec9.2005—Dec.9,2015 Basic interest rate +1.48 5,000,000 5,000,000
05 CITIC 4 billion Dec.9,2005—Dec.9.2025 46 4,000,000 4,000,000
gz::’g:;‘d']':::"" Feb.18,2009—Feb.18,2014 385 3,000,000 3.000.000
Total 30,741,068

date

i Repayment projection 02 CITIC.02 CITIC. 05 CITIC 4 billion and U mediurm: term zotes 3 bilion are designated (o pay the 1terests annuzly and ta pay the
principie at the matur:ty date. 03 CITIC. 05 CITIC 5 bdlion a6 96 Samurar are desigziated to pay the interests semi-annually and to pay the principle at the marusity
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(11) Other Non-current Liabilities

2009 2008
Derivative financial instruments - 8,243,396
Total ' ’ - ' 8,243,396
(12) Capital
. Increasein Decrease in .
Opening balance year current year Closing balance  Note
Capital 39,942,191 15,415,529 55,357,720 *

% This itern represents the paid-in capital allocated by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of Chira (MOF) The increasad amount of RMB 15,415,529
thousand inch:des the transierved capital RMB 12.815.529 thousand obained from profits a cording to the Document Cur {2009]Na 149 and RMB 2 600,000 thousand
obaned from the ncome tax refund according 1o the Dacument Car {2009}No.17¢-No. 168

(13) Reserves

2009 2008 Note
Capital reserves 49,644,143 47.Id§.578 #*1 N
Surplus reserves 11,626,938 8,882,161
Opening balance of retained earnings -1.879372 -264,094 *2

Diffe e from translation of financial d

in foreign currencies

53,820 54,140

Total

59,445,529 55,777,785

%1 The movements of the copital reserves represents the Company’s wdjastments akong with the changes of 1is invested companies’ capilal ceserves accorcing o

the egity method. The amount is RMB 2.538.565 thousand
42 Movements of retuned earnings

Amount
Closing balance of 2008 {excluding the net profit of 2008) 61,522
Add: adjustments of ()p}ning balance -325,616
Other adjustments
Opening balance of 2009 (exchuding the net profit of 2008} -264,094
Add: the net profit of 2008 14,177.955
Opening balance of 2009 13,913,861
Add: gain and losses recognized directly in equity -1,553.756
Less: appropriations for surplus reserve 1,423,948
Paid-in capital increased by retained earnings transfer 12,815,529
Closing balance of 2009(excluding the net profit of 2009) -1,879,372
Add: Transferred from net profit of 2009 21117771
Closing balance of 2009 19,238,399
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(14) Operating Income

2009 2008

Investment income 23,642,521 20,021,721

Interest income 1,153,882 1,498,188

Exchange gains 160,339 -

Income of fees 68,508 43,377

Other operating income 175,881 331,658

Total i 25,201,131 21,894,894
# Investment income

2009 2008

Income from short-term investments 675,861 885,036

Income from long-term investments 22,966,660 19.136,685

Induding: recognized income{loss) according to equity method 22,722,061 19,033,895

Income from stock transfer 431,501 281,594

Dividends from invested companies 31,867 40,896

Others -218,769 -219,700

Total ) B i B 23,642,521 20021721
(15) Operating Cost

2009 - 2008

Interest expenses 2,532413 3,238,969

Fxchange losses - 1,799,056

Cost of fees 12,447 5.440

Other operating expenses 26,657 19.920

-To(al - ) 2,571,517 5,063,385
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITC GROUP

7. Segmental Reporting

(a) Business segments

2000
Real catate
Fuaancid Project Information  Trading end .
e, Aodadl Resowces  Manotaruring "oy o0 Hewdoffie Undicaed  Flimisaton  Tota!
nfagrcmre
Operatng income 682647 WSS IS0 40SSEE NSS4 1STSLOM 3L L40SST LAY RSMS
Operatng couts 129%013 SHODI  ISSORISE  ALEASES s TS 28MEN LTSN TS uRPe s
Operating expenses 170180 1535873 AN LMD 1RSI0 e 1993888 01805 i 029 mmae
Investment incame ey 1264092 e Lamwd EYOT T M 554003 006 sIsn
Busmess tazes ind 200357 1218207 1552 2151 808 san 155085 97916 “ . L3aess
surchages - - - g g
Operating protx n%1264 A2 WIS WWNT 2480 IONS BRI LN LSRN DATAN 399948
::;:‘:" operaung s sam 18033 08564 19,348 Iy 8750 w884 106 . 105633
Less: non-cperating
s 506 4 @ 3233 w0 L0 @y ey [t . won
Profl belore provision H1514% A% 739367 219618 LA 1005319 B 2002% L9019 BAEAD  0MEIN
for opurmart kosses 191 - & - i
Lew provusion for 5 . ; .
smparement bosses 3170588 161487 16 16881 0.} 8815 434378 IASHY 4587 4620445
Proft ahar provisan for .
mparment losses 2572912 2809212 739351 3T LWSH 1076.74 826395 217 1950706 NA40.650 8ITIIN
Lexs incame rax FALIRLY
Ketprof 21246509
Net profi sunbutable
o shareholders of the (LY R0
company
Muoruy interests 9350417
2009
Realestate !
g wd divil MO pesources Munafirunng '“:;“‘“"‘ Tadingend  pojofice Undocmed  Elminaton  Totl
. nberrere | CORUTAUg ey servies
Assets 1306554274 10976359 161801 95303 OSAT0  NSWN0 IS WSSO MAIW9 I2OHSS  LISIIENS
Labdives 1221200 AV LASLIEs 630053 DM DSAR0 ISELSTS 4S04 WIETI 2T 19T
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2008
Real estate
Fowdd anl Mok Reware Mumfunrieg 0TS Tdmd ym e Uediscd  Hmiswios  Tou!
infrastructare dag y e
Operaung income Py AN RIS QRSH 1351208 umss AAN NI 26mAB 19510463 15700009
Opersting corts WML WL06 IISIH0 IS namsis 1303583 SISSD SD6IS wam 2SI SIS
Opersung experses 15361051 % mon  Lesny 1364254 neos tmon e @51 59 20mI0
Investment income e 1413 s s mas 05203 o] X7 MM s
Besnewstuzesand 1m0 646537 157481 By wm 1305 B Liss?
Wr‘-hllvl " - 3 "
Operairg profit . 26882011 8223 61920 146670 ;282 226501 #7517 16044084 P X 17833631 H.5H43%
Ade noc-opereang 22846 s we W 18 w7 nia 13049 0o® sasn
Les 209 operaung 356 16002 76 454 12 10456 %70 3100 un nism
e
Profi before provion 4,5y 1399519 6MAY 3R 1001815 1798 IR 16038509 IASAE TANAN ST
for Empurment losses g g f
Less provision for N 5
ot 27934 s124 a6 1258891 91351 10592 W0 LI 0
Profi dtec promsion o ) oy, 1788273 MI6 152058 Si0464 29260 LYV RPN IASAH DA M
for umpairment losses - 7 - - ¥ - . M
Less 1ncome tax 549718
Netprofa 015,798
Net profit snnbutable
ta shazeholders of the [T
company
Minonty ntercs 5505095
2000
Red cstate

Famail wdcond Proje  Reowces  Muafirriny [ormeton Tdnged yoome Undocked  Eimingion  Toul

e e Contradting ndustry savices
Assers 1120013763 91221576 1641440 802934 4303629 BIT7E NS00 1B 12213387 AMILANT 1A24181,768
Lubdes RETF WIRDL IS0 STUa5878 WIS 10180 ONND BSSTMS MIIRID S0 14458
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(b) Geographical segments
2009 2008
Domeic  Hongkoosg SAR  Others  Ebimination Tow! Dommc MW onern  Ehmineion  Toul

Operating ncome. 137015495 MM 1251828 +3.500.143 209064522 112,380,999 36081160 995.1%) -3,196,501 157001009
Operating conts 03185 L7 %30 A0S WTIAM MATION Dty 7521% FZC I Y]
Opentrg apenses 2892009 6354.599 116209 81 28302416 19962140 100234 166427 1809 2079
laresmont income 2369216 (X270 “wone 3159028 [RUSE 4357438 2868304 s 401 41760
Business waes and 41098 Hi 4248455 4108674 s LIssT
mrcharges - 744 ! .
Operating profa 12159962 1315847 535508 65579 198 IS8 OIS0 19304 S9N eSMI9
Add don-ofrating 632483 3450 109%31) 81026 65484 46430
Dcome

Less ron-openung 316753 71319 3mon 219672 2058 urSH
apenses

m:;:r:’lm‘: 2475192 1355107 545,508 6519 000819 MIIHE 1010940 19398 se9en BIBIN
Less provision for 3909015 [nI%) 2268 4630445 74N 2297540 [0 11123785
\mpurment lowes 3% 160 - 23973 - 13

Profi after promuon 2538577 12363216 532640 63719 3537771 23520477 7811902 1076 SO ISMISL
for imparment losses

Less: income ux. 31065 $595.728
Net profe 28246549 20.153.794
Net prof attributeble

to sharcholders of the 1ss2in 10248703
campany

Munority Interests 9354427 590,09

2009 2008
Domestic  HoogKongSAR  Othas  Ellmination Total Domestic MO Oy Eimnwion  Tow
Agets, 19X .57142¢ 01916313 901019 56329 2153808725 141192560 pox] 3350309 23570583 1.624.101.768
Liabdties [ECTUE R L YO R T 060N LSRANAN  1ISRATS NLISON 2747 SN0 LRI
8. Related Party Transactions
The transactions with related parties of the Group in 2009 included transactions in operating activities with those associates and joint

ventures of the Group. These transactions were in terms of normal business contracts and lines, and traded at market prices. All the intra-
group transactions of the Group are not disclosed since they have been eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial state-
ments.

ANNUAL REPORE 200 117




s

PLZLIC
FILE

(2) Transactions with related parties (income statement items)
With related parties Total amount incurred As percentage of
in 2009 in 2009 the total amount (%)
Operating income 98,288 209,064,922 0.05%
Operating cast 137.911 142,897,486 0.10%
(b} Balances of receivables and payables arising from related parties (balance sheet items}
2009 2008
With rlstedpaties  Tooporene ® e e Wi relted pantes T belince g
(%) amount (%)
—
Recervables 687.980 51229428 1.34% 880,022 38.523.676 228%
Short-tem investments 1,000 109,847,106 0.00% 180,347 126472,283 014%
Shon-term loans 771,651,740 0.00% 744,382 497,076,748 0.15%
(nher cumment ansets 10682 64,261,533 0.02% 5,272,361 0.00%
Medium and long-term loans 500,000 522412679 0.10% 975.000 305,440,801 032%
Liabilitiex T
Short-term deposits from customers 22253320 1058,651,163 210% 11.369.270 665.379.262 1L71%
Payables 52469 93.949.071 0.06% 62099 81501867 0.02%
Other current habdities 29011 3988815 0.73% 12631.295 0.00%
Long-tesm deposits from customers 134,685 538,975,070 002% 171,546 453,465,289 004%
Medium and ong.-term borrowings 37 112,015,361 0.00% 49560 43.319.408 0.06%
9. Contingencies
{1) Commitments
2009 2008
Consolidated The Company Consolidated ‘The Company
TLoan Commitment i
Loan guarantee 67,294,591 - 67.535,046 -
Issuing a L/G 89,935,761 18,852,202 73,702,540 21,772,870
Issuinga L/IC 53,539,209 35.003.830 .
Acceptance Bills 305,216,616 222,735,122
Credit cand commitment 40,596,804 - 44,874,087 -
Debt guarantee 1,436918 13,720,340 2,549,979 11,190,120
Subtotal 558,019,899 32,572,542 446,400,604 32,962,990
1 Capital commitment
Approved but not signed contracts 3,584,322 23,943,658 -
Contracts signed but not paid 19,342,290 994,761 -
Subtotal 22,926,612 24,938,419 -
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Tl Operating lease commitment

Within 1 year (include 1 year) 1.315,673 - 1,057,016
More than | year and less than S years (includes 5 years) 3,062,644 - 2,375.904
More than § years 1,421,934 1,201,018
Subtotal 5,800.251 - 46398 .
Total 586,746,762 32,572,542 475,972,961 32,962,990

% The internal commiment of the Group has been néset during consolidation

{2) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are off-balance shect instruments, including forward, swaps, and option contracts conducted in exchange
and interest market.

The following tables provide the nominal amounts and the fair value of derivatives of the Group and the nominal amounts are analyzed at
the balance sheet date. The nominal amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet date:
they do not represent amounts at risk.

2009 2008

Nominal Fair value Nominal Fair value

amount T ets Liabilities ~ Amount Assets  Libilities
Interest rate contracts 175,686,963 1,959,396 3696510 263136647 3,995,843 8,364,684
Exchange contracts 269,655,680 1951070 1525245 225571142 2,893,603 6,286,411
Credit contracts 1,563,510 13,468 65,595 1,157,346 13,000 62,000
Total 446,906,153 3,923,935 5287350 489,865,135 6,902,446 14,713,095

(3) Outstanding litigations

As at 3] December 2009, the Group was the defendant in certain pending litigations. The total amount involved in these litigations was
PP ly RMB 444,920 thousand

10. Comparative figures

Started from 2009, subsiduaries, such as CITIC Guoan Group, etc.,of the Group, implemented “Enterprise Accounting Standards™(new), which

decreased the total assets RMB7,485,565 thousand, total liabilities RMB 6,686,596 thousand and the owners’ equity RMB798.969 thousand at
2008 year end
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CITIC Group
Telephone: 86-10-64660088

Fax: 86-10-64661186
Address. Capital Mansion, § Xinywannantu,

Chaoyang District, Beling 100004,
G
Website: hitp:// www.citic. com

Financial Serv

CITIC Holdings

Telephone: 86-10-59661838

Fax: 86-10-84861342

Address: Captal Mansion, 6 Xinyuannantu,
Chaoyang District, Beijing 100004
China

Website htp/www.edtic.com

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

(listed company)

Telephone: 86-10-65558888

Faz: 86-10-65550801

Address: C Block, Fuhua Mansion, No8
Chaoyangmenbei Dajie Dongcheng
District, Beijing 100027, China

Website hitpy/bank eatic com

CITIC Intermational Financial Holdings Limited
Telephone: 852-36073000
Fax: 852-25253303
Address: Suites 2701-9. CITIC Tower, 1 Tim

Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Webute: http:/fwww.citicifh com

CITIC Prudential Life Insurance Co., L.td.

Telcphone: 86-20-87521966

Fax; 86-20-87521932

Address: 60/F. CITIC Plaza, No.233 Tianhe
Beilu, Guangzhou Guangdong
Province 510620, China

Website hitp//www.cilic- prudential.com.cn

CITIC Trust Co., Itd.

Telephone: 86-10-84861327

Fax: 86-10-84861380

Address: Capaal Mansion, 6Xinyuannanly,
Chacyang Disirict, Beijing 100004,
China

Website: hitpfwww.cattic.com/citict

122 CITIC Group

CITIC Assets Management Corporation Ltd.

Telephone: 86-10-85323911

Fax: 86-10-85323916

Address: Ta Yuan Diplomatic Office Building,
No.14 Liangmahe Street, Chacyang
District, Beijing 100600, China

Website hitp//www.ecitic.com/citiccap

CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. (listed pany)

CITIC Guoan Information Industry Co., Ltd.

{listed company)

Tedephane: 86-10-65082288

Fax: 86-10-65061482

Address: No.| Guan Dong Dun Beijic.
Chaoyang District, Bajing 100020, China

CITIC Guoan Grand Epoch City International
Confe and Exhibition Co., L1d.

Telephone: 86-10-84588388

Fax: 86-10-84865567

Address: Capital Mansion, 6 Xinyuannaniu,
Chaoyang District, Beijing 100004,
China

Website: http://www.cs.ecitic.com

Telephone: 86-755-82485226

Fax: 86-755-82485225

Address: 32nd Floor, Building B, Zhangmin
Time Square, N 12 Sungang
Road, Shenthen, Guangdong
Province 518029, China

Investment Holdings

CITIC Hong Kong (Hotdings) Ltd.

Teephone: 852-28202111

Fax: 852-28772771

Address: 32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, | Tim Mei
Avenue, Central, Hong Kong

Website: http:/fwww.citicpacific com

CITIC Pacific Ltd. (listd company)

Telephone: 852-28202111

Fax: 852-28772771

Address: 32nd Roor, CITIC Tower, } Tim Mei
Avenue, Central, Hong Kong

Website: hitp:/ fwww cilicpacific com

CITIC Guoan Group

Telephone: 86-10-65010855

Fax: 86-10-65010854

Address: Guean Mansion, No.1 Guoan Dong
Dian Beijie, Chaoyang District, Beijing
100020, China

Website hitp://www.guoan citic com

CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd.

Telephone: 86-10-65010857

Fax: 86-10-65952296

Address; Guoan Mansion, No.1 Guan Dong
Dian Beijie, Chaoyang Dustrict, Beijing
100020, China

Telephone: 86-316-8587896

Fax: B6-316-8587895

Address: Xianghe Economic Devdopment Zone,
Hebei Province 065402, China

Honglian 95 Information Industry Co., Ltd.

Telephone: 86-10-65098265

Fax: 86-10-65098265

Address: Room 1812, 225 Chaoyangbeilu,
Chaoyang District, Beijing 100022, China

China Anhua (Group) Corporation

Tdephone: 86-10-64442789

Fax: 86-10-64442714

Address: 6* Floor, Anhua Development
Building, 35 Andinglu, Chaoyang
District, Beijing 100029, China

Beijing CITIC Consortium National Stadium

Operation Co., Ltd.

Tedephone: 86-10-84373020

Fax: 86-10-84373058

Address: 1 National Stadium Nanlu, Chaoyang
Disiric, Beijing 100101, China

CITIC 21 CN Ca., td. (Jistd company}

Telephone. 852- 25880050

Fax: 852-25871688

Address: 6208 Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kang

CITIC Guoan Wine Industry Co., Ltd.
(listd company)
Telephone: 86-991-8882439 8871867
Fax: 86-991-8882439
Address: 751 West Runbow Road East, Urumchi,
Xinjrang Uigur Autonomous Region
830063, China

CITIC USA Holding Inc.

Telephone: 1-302-6555725/6555176

Fax: 1-302-6555061

Address- 1201 N Market St Ste. 1602 Wilmington,
DE 19801



Real Estate and Civil Infrasteucture

Engineering Contracting

8 CITIC Real Estate Co.. Ltd.
Telephone: 86- 10-64666052
Fax: B6-10- 64666090
Address: Capital Mansion, 6 Xinyuannanlu,
Chaoyang District, Beijing 100004, China.

CITIC South China Group
Tedephone: 86-20-38770068
Fax: 86-20- 38770668
Address: 75/F, CITIC Plaza, No 233 Tianhe
Beilu Guangdang Provinoe 510613, China.
Website hutp://www.south citic.com

CITIC Shenzhen Group

Telephone: 86-755-25938888

Fax: 86-755-25938889

Address CITIC Buiding, Na 1093 Shennanzhanghu
Shenzhen 518031, China

Website http://www.zz citic com

8 CITIC East China Group
Teephone: 86-21-68877000
Fax: 86-21-68877070
Address: Room 3601 Citigroup Building,
Huayuanshiqiao No.33, Pudong
New Area, Shanghai 200120
Webute: http://www.east citiccom

CITIC Daxie Development Company Ltd

Telephane: 86-574-86768755

Fax 86-574-86768850

Address; Daxic Devlopment Zone. Ningbo,
Zhejiang Province 315812, China.

Website htp./iwww.daxie.goven

CITIC Internationa) Co., Ltd.

Telephone: 86- 10-84862288

Fax: 86-10-84862255

Address; Capual Mansion, 6 Xinyuannanlu,
Chaoyang Distnct, Beijing 100004, China

Website: hetpeffwww.in.citic.com

® CITIC Thanjin Industrial Development Co, Ltd.
Telephone 86-22-66233996
Fax: 86-22-66233988
Address: No 249, huanghai Road, Tianjin
Economic Technological Development
Area, Tianjin 300457, China
Webste hup://www.ianjin cilic.com

8 CITIC Construction
Telephone; 86-10-59660133
Fax: 86-10-84861799
Address: Capisal Mansion, 6 Xinyusnnanlu,
Chaoyang District, Baijing 100004,
Chins

CITIC International Contracting Inc.

Tedephone: 86-10-84861788

Fax: 86-10-84861799

AddressCapital Manson, 6 Xinywnnanly,
Chaoyang Distnat, Beijing 100004,
Chima

Website: http://www.cicicitic.com

CITIC International Cooperation Co., 12d.

Telephone: 86-10-59660133

Fax: 86-10-64645690-505

Address: F22, TowerA, TYG Center, Na.C2
Dongsanhuan Beilu Chaoyang District,
Beijing, PRC(100027)

Website: hitp://www.icc citic.com

¢ Wuhan Architectural Design Institute
Telephone: 86-27-82722966
Fax; 86-27-82726178
Address: Siwer Road 8, Wuhan City, Hubei,
Province 430014, China
Website hup:/fwww.whadi.citic.com

® Central and Southemn China Munkipal Engi
Design & Researth Institute
Tedephone: 86-27-82865081
Fax: 86-27-82426679
Address: 41 Liberation: park Road, Wuhan, Hubei
Province 430010, China
Webute: hrp//www.znszy citic.com

Energy & Resources

® CITIC Resources Holdings Limited
(listed company)
Telephone: 852- 28998200
Fax; 852-28159723
Address: Suites 3001-3006, 30/F, Building A, Pacific
Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong
Address: http//www.cilicresqurces.com

CITIC United Asia Investment Limited
Teephone: 852-28612727

Fax:852-28611901

Address: Room 2118, Hutchison House, 10
Harcourt Road, Central, HK.

o CITIC Metal Co., Ltd.
Tdephone: 86-10-84861903
Fax: 86-10-84865380
Address: Capita) Mansion, 6 Xinyuannanlu,
Chaoyang District, Beijing 100004, China
Webute hnp://www.metal citic.com

CITIC Australia Pty. Lid.

Telephone: 61-3-96148000

Fax: 61-3-96417150

Address: CITIC House, 99/King Street, Mddbourne,
Victoria 3000, Austrelia.

Website http://www citic.com.au

Manufacturing

® CITIC Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
Tdephone: 86-379-4088114
Fax: 86-379-4218264
Address: Jianxi District, Luoyang, Henan
Province 471039, China
Website: hutp://www.citichme.com

CITIC Investment Holdings Ltd.

Telephone: 86-10-84865526

Fax: 86-10-84865050

Address: Capital Mansion, 6 Xinyuannanlu,
Chaoyang District, Beijing 100004,
China

Website: http://www.invest.citic.com

CITIC Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Telephone: 86-357-3913008

Fax: 86-357-3913007

Address: Fangzhidongxiang No 83, Huibin Street,
Houma City 043001

Website: hitpy//www.machine.citic.com

CITIC Bohal Aluminum Industries

Holding Company d.

Tedephone: 86-335- 3850667

Fax: 86-335-3850687

Address: 95 Beihuan Road, Haigang District,
Qinhuangdao Hebei Province 066003,
China

Woebsite: http://www.bailcom.cn

& Macau Cement Manufacturing Co., L1d.
Telephone: 853-28870511
Faz: 853-28870273
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Overseas Representative Oftices

CITIC Representative Office in Japan
Telephane: 81335842635

Fax: 81-3-35056235

Address:1-14-5, Akasaka Minatuku, Tokyo, Tu, lapan

CITIC Representative Office in New York

Telephone: 1-212-9450273

Fax: 1.212-9457749

Address: 100 Wall Street Suite, 603 New York, NY 1005 USA

CITIC Rep ive Office in Kazakh
Telephone: 7-727-2583823
Fax: 7-727-2581315
Address: Sth Floor,135 Abylaikhan Avenue.Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan,050000
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Corporate Profile

Aluminum Corporation of China Limited ("Chalco” or the “Company”) is a joint stock limited company
established in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"); its shares are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
mining of bauxite; the production and sales of alumina, primary aluminum and aluminum fabrication
products; and trading of other non-ferrous metal products

The Group is the largest producer of alumina, primary aluminum and aluminum fabrication products in
the PRC, and also the second largest producer of alumina as well as the third largest producer of primary

aluminum in the world

The competitiveness of the Group I1s mainly reflected in

. its leading strategic position in the alumina, primary aluminum and aluminum fabrication markets
in the PRC;

. its ownership of adequate and stable supply of bauxite resources as well as refining technology;
and

. its comprehensive industry chain with better resistance to market risks.

The Group is principally comprised of the following branches, subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity:

Branches

. Shandong branch (mainly engaged in producing alumina/primary aluminum products);

. Henan branch (mainly engaged in producing alumina/primary aluminum products),
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Corporate Profile (Continued)

]
. Guizhou branch {(mainly engaged in producing alumina/primary aluminum products),
. Shanxi branch (mainly engaged in producing alumina products);
. Guangxi i)ranch (mainly engaged in producing alumina/primary aluminum products);
. Zhongzhou branch (mainly engaged in producing alumina products);
. Qinghai branch {mainly engaged in producing primary aluminum products);
. Lanzhou branch (mainly engaged in producing primary aluminum products);
. Liancheng branch (mainly engaged in producing primary aluminum products);
. Chongging branch {mainly engaged in producing alumina products);

. Northwest Aluminum Fabrication Plant (mainly engaged in producing aluminum fabricated
products);

. Zhengzhou Research Institute {mainly providing research and development services).
Subsidiaries:

. Shanxi Huaze Aluminum & Power Company Limited (“Shanxi Huaze") (mainly engaged in

producing primary aluminum products),

. Shanxi Huasheng Aluminum Company Limited (“Shanxi Huasheng") (mainly engaged in producing

primary aluminum products);

. Fushun Aluminum Company Limited (“Fushun Aluminum*”) (mainly engaged in producing primary
aluminum products);

ALUMINUM CORPORATION OFf CHINA LIMITED
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. Zunyi Aluminum Company Limited (“Zunyi Aluminum”) (mainly engaged in producing primary
aluminum products),

. Shandong Huayu Aluminum and Power Company Limited (“Shandong Huayu”) (mainly engaged in
producing primary aluminum products);

. Gansu Hualu Aluminum Company Limited (“Gansu Hualu”) (mainly engaged in producing primary
aluminum products);

. Baotou Aluminum Company Limited (“Baotou Aluminum*”) (mainly engaged in producing primary
aluminum products);

. Jiaozuo Wanfang Aluminum Company Limited ("Jiaozuo Wanfang“) (mainly engaged in producing
primary aluminum products);

. Chalco Qingdao Light Metal Company Limited (mainly engaged in producing recycled aluminum
products);

. Chalco Southwest Aluminum Cold Rolling Company Limited (“Chalco Southwest Aluminum Cold

Rolling”) {mainly engaged in producing aluminum fabricated products);

. Chalco Ruimin Company Limited (“Chalco Ruimin”} (mainly engaged in producing aluminum
fabricated productsy,

. Chalco Henan Aluminum Company Limited (“Henan Aluminum”) (mainty engaged in producing

aluminum fabricated products);

. Huaxi Aluminum Company Limited (“Huaxi Aluminum”) (mainly engaged in producing aluminum
fabricated products);

. Chalco Southwest Aluminum Company Limited (“Chalco Southwest Aluminum™) (mainly engaged

in producing aluminum fabricated products);
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Corporate Profile (Continued)

]
. Chalco Mining Company Limited (“Chalco Mining”) (mainly engaged in mining bauxite);

. Chalco Zhongzhou Mining Company Limited (“Zhongzhou Mlnir;g") (mainly engaged in mining
bauxite);

. China Aluminum International Trading Company Limited (*CIT") (mainly engaged in the trading of
non-ferrous metal products),

. Chalco Hong Kong Limited (“Chalco Hong Kong“) (mainly engaged in developing overseas
projects);

. Chalco Zunyi Alumina Company Limited ("Zunyi Alumina“) {mainly engaged in producing alumina
products),

. Chalco Nanhai Alloy Company Limited (“Nanhai Alloy”) {(mainly engaged in producing aluminum
fabricated products),

. Shanxi Huatai Carbon Company Limited (*Shanxi Carbon”) (mainly engaged in producing carbon
products);

. Shanxi Longmen Aluminum Company Limited (“Longmen Aluminum”) (mainly engaged in
producing primary aluminum products);

. China Aluminum Tai Yue Mining Company Limited (" Tai Yue Mining”) (mainly engaged in mining

bauxite)
Jointly controlled entity:

. Guangxi Huayin Aluminum Company Limited {(“Guangxi Huayin”) (mainly engaged in producing

alumina products) in which the Company has a 33% equity interest.
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Corporate Information

1. Registered name PRABERGBARAA
Abbreviation of Chinese name hEEY
Name in English ALUMINUM CORPORATION OF CHINA LIMITED
Abbreviation of English name CHALCO
2. First registration date September 10, 2001
Registered address No. 62 North Xizhimen Street,
Haidian District, Beijing,
the PRC
(Postal code: 100082)
Place of business No. 62 North Xizhimen Street,
Haidian District, Beijing,
the PRC
{Postal Code: 100082)
Principal place of business Unit 3103, 31/F, Office Tower, Convention Plaza,
in Hong Kong 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Internet website http:/AMww.chalco.com.cn
Corporate e-mail IR_FAQ@chalco.com.cn
3 Legal representative Xiong Weiping
Company (Board) Secretary Liu Qiang
Telephone +86(10) 8229 8103
Fax +86(10) 8229 8158
£-mail IR_FAQ@chalco.com.cn
Address No. 62 North Xizhimen Street,
Haidian District, Beijing,
the PRC

(Postal Code: 100082)
Representative for the Company's  Shen Hui
securities related affairs

Telephone +86(10) 8229 8560

Fax +86(10) 8229 8158

E-mail IR_FAQ@chalco.com .cn

Address No. 62 North Xizhimen Street,
Haidian District, Beijing,
the PRC
(Postal Code; 100082)

Department for corporate Secretarial Office to the Board

information and inquiry
Telephone for corporate +86(10) 8229 8560/8157/8456/8468

information and inquiry
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4. Share registrar and transfer office

H shares: Hong Kong Registrars Limited
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

A shares: China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited, Shanghai Branch
3/F, China Insurance Building,
No. 166, Lujiazui Road (East),
Shanghai, the PRC

American Depositary Receipt: The Bank of New York Corporate Trust Office
101 Barclay Street,
New York 10286, USA

) Places of listing The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Shanghai Stock Exchange
New York Stock Exchange, Inc

Stock name CHALCO
Stock codes 2600 (HK)
601600 (China)
ACH (US)
6.  Principal bankers . China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

7 Registration number of license of ~ 100000000035734
enterprise legal person
Tax registration number 110108710928831
Institutional organization number  71092883-1
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Corporate Information (Continued)

8. Independent auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22/F, Prince’s Building, Central,
Hong Kong

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company
11/F, PricewaterhouseCoopers Center

2 Corporate Avenue,

202 Hu Bin Road,

Shanghai, the PRC

{Postal code: 200021)

9. Legal advisers as to Hong Kong law and United States law:
Baker & McKenzie
23/F One Pacific Place
88 Queensway
Hong Kong

as to PRC law:

Jincheng Tongda & Neal Law Firm (3t 55 & iR [E)i& DB IEFR)
10/F, China World Trade Tower 3

No. 1 Jianguomennei Avenue, Chaoyang District,

Beijing, the PRC

10.  Corporate information database Secretarial Office to the Board
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Financial Summary

1. Financial summary prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended December 31, 2010, revenue of the Group amounted to RM8120.99 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 72.19%; profit for the year attributable to the Company’s
equity holders was RMB0.78 billion while earnings per share for the year attributable to the
Company’s equity holders was RMBO0.06. ‘

for the years ended December 31,

) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
{Note) {Note}
RMB8'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000
Revenue 120,994,847 70,268,005 76,728,147 85,198,835 64,826,615
Cost of sales (113,349,941)  (69,079,446)  (70,960,668)  (64,936,133)  (43,930.699)
Gross profit 7,644,906 1,188,559 5,767,479 20,262,702 20895916
Selling and distribution expenses (1,573,301) {1,264,920) (1,562,841) (1,355,534) (1,027 875)
General and administrative
expenses (2,623,740) (2,956,506) (2,507,011) (3,029,114) (2,449,268)
Research and development expenses (164,235) (177.756) (177,507 (229,803) (116,389)
Impairment chargeswrite-off on
property, plant and equipment (701,781) (623,791) {1,334) (13,249) (16,924)
Other revenue 328,853 151,142 100,781 47,067 59,832
Other gans, net 491,024 403836 212,840 111,846 322429
Operating profitAloss) 3,401,726 (3,279,436) 1,832,407 15,793,915 17,667,721
finance costs, net (2,495,184) (2,137.825) (1,709,667) (1,040,171) (637.,236)
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Financial Summary (Continued)
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1. Financial summary prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

For the years ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Note) (Note)
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000

Operating profitfloss) after

finance costs 906,542 (5,417,261) 122,740 14,753,744 17,030,485
Share of profitAloss) of

pintly controlled entities 233,784 (50.392) 1,672 (3,381) (11,419)
Share of profit of associates 240,028 77,056 10,045 241,945 105,177
ProfitAloss) before income tax 1,380,354 (5,390,597) 134,457 14,992,308 17,124,243
Income tax (expense¥benefit (411,216) 711,003 34172 (2,869,210) (4,410,674)
ProfitAloss) for the year . 969,138 (4,679,594) 168.629 12,123,098 12,713,569
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1. Financial summary prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

For the years ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Note) (Note)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RAMB'000 RMB°000 AMB'000

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 778,008 (4,642 ,894) 19,485 10,753,042 11,841,681
Non-controlling interests 191,130 (36,700) 149,144 1,370,056 871,888
profitAloss) for the year 969,138 (4,679,594) 168,629 12,123,098 12,713,569
Dwidends 154,179 — 703,273 4,131,749 2,190,177

Summary of the Group’s consolidated total assets and total liabilities is set out below:

As of December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Note} (Note)

AMB*000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Total assets 141,332,039 133,975,189 135,612,152 105,848,068 81,941,754
Total liabilities 84,135,184 78394032 75430722 41,354,861 32,675,192
Net assets 57,186,855  55581,157  60,181.430 64493207 49,266,562

Note: Financial information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 has not been restated for the
Company’s business combinations under common control which occurred during 2008 and 2009.
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Financial summary prepared in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (2006)

For the year ended

Items December 31, 2010
RMB'000
Operating profit 945,183
Profit for the year 969,138
Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company 778,008
Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company
after excluding non-recurring items 112,234
Net cash generated from for operating activities 7,103,859

Non-recurring items

For the year ended
December 31, 2010

RMB'000
Losses from disposal of non-current assets 184,022
Government grants 328,853
Realized and unrealized gain of future and
' option contracts, net and gain on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets 306,609
Reversal of impairment of receivables 4,472
Other non-operating expenses, net 76,993

Note:  Non-recurring items above as defined under the PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (2006) do not

include impairmentiwrite~off of property, plant and equipment.
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Financial Summary (Continued)

2. Financial summary prepared in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (2006)
(Continued)

Principal accounting information and financial indicators at the end
of last two reporting periods of the Group

Increase/(Decrease)
as compared with
2010 2009  the previous year
RMB 000 RMB'000 (%)
Revenue 120,994,847 70,268,005 72.19
Profitfloss) before income tax 1,380,354 (5,390,597) N/A
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to 778,008 (4,618,713) N/A
equity holders of the Company '
Profitfloss) for the year attributable to 112,234 (5,014,758) NA
equity holders of the Company after
excluding non-recurring items
Basic earnings/(losses) per share (RMB) 0.06 (0.34) N/A
Diluted earnings/(losses) per share (RMB) 0.06 (0.34) NA
Basic earnings/losses) per share after 0.01 0.37) N/A
excluding non-recurring items (RM8)
Weighted average rate of return 1.53 (8.76) Increased by 10.29
on net assets (%) percentage points
Weighted average rate of return on 0.22 (9.51) Increased by 9.73
net assets after excluding percentage points
non-recurring items (%)
Net cash generated from/(used in) 7,103,859 (705,954) N/A
operating activities v
Net cash generated from/(used in) 0.53 (0.05) N/A
operating activities per share (RM8)
Total assets 141,322,039 133,975,189 5.48
Equity attributable to equity holders 51,608,147 50,428,093 2.34
of the Company
Net assets attributable to equity holders 3.82 373 2.4

of the Company per share (RMB)
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3. Comparison between the financial information prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and PRC Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises (2006)

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company
For the years ended December 31,

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
As of December 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises (2006) 778,008 (4,618,713) 51,608,147 50,428,093
Prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards 778,008 (4,642,894) 51,580,792 50,400,738
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1. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management during
the Reporting Period

Whether

recefving

Total  emolument or
emolument  allowance from

paid/payable  equity holders

Date of by the of the Company

appointment/  Company for or other

Name Position Sex Age  re-appointment 2010 related entity

(YM.D) RMB'000
Xiong Weiping Chairman and CEO M 54 2010.6.22 1,005.1 No
Luo Jianchuan Executive Director and President M 47 20106.22 8698 No
Chen Jihua 0 Executive Director, Vice President M 43 20106 22 605.3 No
and Chief Financial Officer

Lu Xangmin Executive Director and Vice President M 48 2010.6.22 660.6 No
Shi Chungui Non-executive Director M 70 20106 22 150 No
Lv Youging Non-executive Director M 4 2010.6.22 0 Yes
Kang Yi 9 Independent Non-execulive Director M 10 2007518 9903 No
Zhang Zhuoyuan Independent Non-executve Duector M n 2010.6.22 207.18 No
Wang Mengkui Independent Non-executve Director M n 2010622 207.18 No
Zhu Demedo Independent Non-executive Director M 46 20106.22 207.18 No
Ao Hong Chairman of Supervisory Committee M 49 20106.22 0 Yes
Yuan Li Supervisor M 52 20106 22 0 Yes
Zhang Zhankui Supervisor M 52 20106 22 0 Yes
Ding Haiyan Vice President M 52 20106.22 660.6 No
Jiang Yinggang Vice President M 47 20106.22 655.6 No
Liu Qiang Sedretary to the Board 3 47 20106.22 5943 No
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Senior Management and Staff (Continued)
—

1. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management during
the Reporting Period (Continued)

The Directors of the fourth session of the Board of the Company were elected at the 2009 annual
general meeting of the Company convened on June 22, 2010, comprising four Executive Directors
namely Mr. Xiong Weiping, Mr. Luo Jianchuan, Mr. Chen Jihua and Mr. Liu Xiangmin respectively,
two Non-executive Directors: namely Mr. Shi Chungui and Mr. Lv Yougqing respectively;, three
Independent Non-executive Directors: namely Mr. Zhang Zhuoyuan, Mr. Wang Mengkui and Mr
Zhu Demiao respectively

Note (1) Due to personal reason, Mr. Chen Jihua had resigned on October 28, 2010 from his positions as Executive
Director, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company with immediate effect. At the board
meeting held on february 23, 2011, the Board resotved to appoint Mr. Liu Caiming as Senior Vice Presient,
Chief financial Officer and a member of Executive Committee of the Company and resolved to nominate Mr.
Liuv Caiming as a candidate for executive Director of the 4th session of the Board of the Company subject to
approval at the 2010 annual general meeting of the Company.

Note (2)  Since Mr. Kang Yi, the former independent non-executive Director of the Company, had served as the
ndependent non-executive Director for six consecutive years, he ceased to be the independent non-executive
Director in accordance with the requirement of the applicable law and had retired from office after the 2009
annual general meeting convened on June 22, 2010.
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management:
Executive Directors

Mr. Xiong Weiping, 54, is Chairman, an executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
("CEO") of the Company and concurrently General Manager of Aluminum Corporation of China
(“Chinalco”). Mr. Xiong has been serving the Company since 2001 (he left the Company in
2006 and was re-appointed in 2009). Mr. Xiong graduated from Central South University of
Industry majoring in mining materials engineering. He obtained a Ph.D. degree in engineering and
completed post-doctoral research in economics in Guanghua School of Management of Peking
University. He has academic achievements and fruitful practical experiences in economics, corporate
management and metal mining. Mr. Xiong is also a professor and a Ph.D. tutor of Guanghua
School of Management, Peking University. He is an expert receiving special subsidies from the
State Council and was recognized by the former Ministry of Personnel as a “Middle Age and
Youth Expert with Outstanding Contribution to the Nation“. He was formerly the Deputy Secretary
of Hunan Provincial Communist Youth League, a standing committee member of All China Youth
Federation and the president of Hunan Youth Union Committee, the Standing Vice-Chancellor and
Dean of the Faculty of Management, Professor, Ph.D. tutor of Central South University of Industry.
Mr. Xiong had also served as Vice President of China Copper, Lead & Zinc Group Corporation,
Vice President of Chinalco, Executive Director, Senior Vice President and President of Chalco and

Vice Chairman and General Manager of China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong Limited.
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Senior Management and Staff (Continued)

Mr. Luo Jianchuan, 47, is an executive Director and President of the Company, Chairman of the
Development and Planning Committee of the Board as well as Vice Chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company. He has been serving the Company since 2001. Mr. Luo graduated
from Kunming University of Science and Technology in 1985 majoring in mining, holds a doctorate
degree from Central South University and is a professor-grade senior engineer. He has long
engaged in corporate management of non-ferrous metals and thus has extensive professional
experience and strong management skills in those fields. Mr. Luo formerly served as an engineer
of the Lead and Zinc Bureau of China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Corporation, Manager of
Haikou Nanxin iIndustry & Commerce Corporation, Assistant to the General Manager of Jinpeng
Mining Development Corporation, Deputy General Manager and General Manager of Beijing
Xinquan Tech-trading Corporation, Assistant to the General Manager of China Non-ferrous Metals
Industry Trading Group Corporation, Deputy Chief of the Trading Division of China Copper, Lead
& Zinc Group Corporation, General Manager of China Aluminum International Trading Corporation
Limited, and formerly served as General Manager of the Operations and Sales Division, Vice
President and Senior Vice President of the Company.

Mr. Chen lJihua (resigned), 43, served as an executive Director, Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company until his resignation on October 28, 2010. Mr. Chen had served
the Company since 2001. He holds a Master's degree from Central University of Finance and
Economics. He has long engaged in corporate and financial management and thus has extensive
and professional experience. He formerly served as Executive Manager of the International Finance
Department of China Chengxin Secunties Appraisal Company Limited, Financial Controller of Red
Bull vVitamin Beverages Company Limited, the Regional (China) Financial Controller of Saudi Arabia
AU (China) Limited, Financial Controller of Jitong Network Communications Company Limited, and
formerly served as Assistant to the President of Chinalco and General Manager of the Company’s
Finance Department. Due to personal reason, Mr. Chen Jihua resigned on October 28, 2010 from

his positions as Executive Director, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
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Mr. Liu Xiangmin, 48, is an executive Director and Vice President of the Company and has been
serving the Company since 2001. Mr. Liu graduated from Central South University of Industry in
1982, majoring in non-ferrous metallurgy; he has a doctorate degree from Central South University
and is a professor-grade senior engineer. He has long engaged in non-ferrous metal metallurgy
and corporate management and has accumulated extensive and professional experience. Mr. Liu
had previously served as Deputy Head and Head of the Alumina branch of Zhongzhou Aluminum
Plant, Deputy Head of Zhongzhou Aluminum Plant, and General Manager of Zhongzhou Branch of
the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shi Chungui, 70, is a non-executive Director of the Company. He has been serving the
Company since 2005. He graduated from the Finance Faculty of Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics in 1964. Mr. Shi is a senior economist with extensive experience in finance,
government and corporate management. Mr. Shi was formerly Vice Director of Commerce Bureau
of Qinhuangdao City, Hebei Province; Vice Mayor and Standing Vice Mayor of Qinhuangdao City,
Hebei Province; President of Hebei Branch of China Construction Bank, President of Beijing Branch
of China Construction Bank and Vice President of the Head Office of China Construction Bank;
Vice President of China Cinda Asset Management Corporation; Vice Chairman of Tianjin Pipe Co ,
Ld. (KRB B MR ) and Vice Chairman of China Investment Society. Mr. Shi is currently an
independent director of Intime Department Store (Group) Company Limited and China National
Materials Company Limited.
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Mr. Lv Youqing, 47, is a non-executive Director of the Company and also serves as Deputy
General Manager of Chinalco. He has held positions in the Company since June 2010. In 1989,
he graduated as a postgraduate from the Political Studies Institute, Social Science Faculty of
Sichuan Province (M0)I{48 2 BT B4 B EA). He obtained a Ph.D. degree from the School of
Economics, Sichuan University and is a professor-grade senior engineer. Mr. Lv has accumulated
rich experiences in management from his long-term research of national policies and engagement
in enterprise management. He has previously served as Deputy Mayor of Nanchong's Municipal
Government, Sichuan Province, Standing Committee member of Luzhou's Municipal Committee,
Sichuan Province, the PRC, Deputy Mayor of Luzhou's Municipal Government, Sichuan Province,
the PRC, Deputy Secretary to the Luzhou's Municipal Committee, Sichuan Province, the PRC and
Member of Party Group and Deputy General Manager of Chinalco

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kang Yi (retired), 70, served as an Independent non-executive Director and Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee of the Board until June 22, 2010. Mr. Kang has been serving the
Company since 2004. He is also currently Chairman of the China Nonferrous Metals Industry
Association. Mr. Kang graduated from Central-South Institute of Mining and Metallurgy in 1965
majoring in the metallurgy of non-ferrous metals and is a professor-grade senior engineer. He
has extensive experience and has long engaged in corporate management and public services. He
formerly served as the factory manager of Qingtongxia Aluminum Plant; Head of the Economic
Committee of Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region; Deputy General Manager of China Nonferrous
Metals Industry Corporation and Deputy Head of the State Non-ferrous Metals Industry Bureau.
Currently, Mr. Kang is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference ("CPPCC") and the China Association for Science and Technology,
Chairman of Nonferrous Metals Society of China and concurrently, an independent non-
executive director of Jinduicheng Molybdenum Co, Ltd. and Baoji Titanium Industry Co., Ltd
Mr. Kang Yi did not offer himself for re-appointment upon expiry of his term of appointment on
June 22, 2010 and retired from his position as Independent non-executive Director and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Board of the Company.
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Mr. Zhang Zhuoyuan, 77, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company since 2007
Mr. Zhang graduated from the Faculty of Economics of Zhongnan University of Economics and
has achieved extensive professional accomplishments in the studies in political economy, price
theory and marketing. Mr. Zhang formerly served as the director and researcher of the Institute of
Finance, Trade and Economics of The Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, Chief Editor of “Finance
& Trade Economics” and a Ph.D tutor; the director, researcher and Ph.D tutor of the Institute of
Industrial Economics of The Chinese Academy of Social Sciences; the director, researcher and Ph D
tutor of the Institute of Economics of The Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, as well as Chief
Editor of Economics Research Journal. Mr Zhang is currently a committee member of the academic
section of The Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, a researcher of Institute of Economics of The
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, a member of the Ninth and Tenth Sessions of CPPCC; a
consultant of each of China Price Association and the Chinese Society for Urban Studies; a director
of the Chinese Society for Cost Studies and the honorary director of Sun Ye Fang Foundation of

Economics and Science.

Mr. Wang Mengkui, 72, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company since 2008.
Mr. Wang graduated from the School of Economics, Peking University, and is an economist
engaged in long-term analysis of economic theory and policy. He has published many articles
on economics as well as on other aspects. Mr. Wang had served as Vice Head and researcher of
- the economic team of the Research Office of the Secretariat of the CPC Central Committee; a
commission member of the State Development and Planning Commission; Executive Vice Director
of the Economic Research Centre of the State Development and Planning Commission; Vice
Director and Director of the Research Office of the State Council; the director of the Development
Research Center of the State Council; a member of the Tenth Standing Committee of National
People’s Congress and Vice Director of the Financial and Economic Affairs Committee of National
People’s Congress. He is also a professor and Ph. D tutor of Peking University. He currently serves
as Chairman of the Society for China Development Research Fund and a member of the National
Social Security Fund Committee of the PRC.
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Mr. Zhu Demlao, 46, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board. He has been serving the Company since 2008
Mr. Zhu is currently a senior consultant of Qaktree Capital (Hong Kong) Ltd. Mr. Zhu graduated
from the Unwersity of Chicago GSB with a MBA degree, and obtained a Master's degree in
Economics from the Research Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, PRC and obtained
a Bachelor's degree in Economics from Hebei Geological Institute. Mr. Zhu is one of the early
Certified Public Accountants in the PRC. He has extensive professional experience in finance, audit
and capital management. Mr. Zhu previously worked in the Ministry of Finance of the PRC and in
the investment analysis department of FMC. He had also served as Head of China Business of the
Equity Capital Market Department and investment Bank Department of Credit Suisse First Boston;
Managing Director, a member of the Executive Committee of Asia-pacific region and Chairman
of the Operation Committee of the Greater China Region of JP Morgan Chase & Co. Mr. Zhu
joined Oaktree Capital (Hong Kong) Ltd. in November 2005 serving as Managing Director and has
been its senior consultant since August 2010. Mr. Zhu is currently Independent Director of WSP
Holdings Limited.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Ao Hong, 49, currently Vice President of Chinalco, has been serving as a Supervisor of the
Company since 2006. Mr. Ao graduated from Kunming University of Science and Technology
majoring in metallurgy and he also holds a Master's degree from Central South University and
is a professor-grade senior engineer with extensive experience in non-ferrous metals research,
corporate management, corporate governance and internal control. Mr. Ao had formerly served
as an engineer, senior engineer, Head of General Office and Vice Chairman of General Research
Institute for Non-ferrous Metals of Beijing; Chairman of GRINM Semiconductor Materials Co.,
Ltd., Guorui Electronic Materials Co., Ltd., Beijing Guojing Infrared Optical Technology Co, Ltd.,
Guowei Silver Anticorrosive Materials Company and Guo Jing Micro-electronic Holdings Ltd. in
Hong Kong, respectively.
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Mr. Yuan Li, 52, is an employee-elected Supervisor of the Company and General Manager of the
Corporate Culture Department of the Company. He has been serving the Company since 2001 and
is an engineer with extensive administrative and managerial experience. He had formerly served
as Manager of the General Management Office and Deputy Head of the Department of Research
and Investigation of China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Corporation; Head of the Department of
Research and Investigation as well as Head of the Secrefariat and an assistant inspector of the
State Bureau of Nonferrous Metals Industry, and Deputy Head of the Department of Political and
Labor Affairs and Head of the Political Party Department of Chinalco.

Mr. Zhang Zhankui, 52, is Head of the Finance Department of Chinalco and has been serving
the Company since 2001. Mr. Zhang is a postgraduate in economic management and a senior
accountant. He has extensive experience in corporate financial accounting, fund management and
auditing. Mr Zhang had formerly served as head of the Finance Division and then Head of the
Audit Division of China General Design Institute for Non-ferrous Metals; Deputy Generat Manager
of Beijing Enfei Tech-industry Group; Head of the Accounting Division of the Finance Department
and Deputy Head of the Finance Department of China Copper tead & Zinc Group Corporation;
Officer-in-Charge of the Company’'s assets and finance in the Listing Office of the Company;
Head of the Capital Division of the Finance Department of Company and Manager of the General
Division of the Finance Department of the Company as well as Deputy Head of the Finance
Department of Chinalco.
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OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Mr. Liu Caiming, aged 48, was appointed as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company on February 23, 2011. Graduated from lhE School of Economics at Fudan University,
Mr. Liu is a doctoral candidate, senior accountant and certified public accountant in the PRC. He
joined Chinalco in January 2007. Having been engaged in financial management at large state-
owned enterprises for a long time, Mr. Liu has extensive experience in finance and business
management. He had served as Deputy Head and head of the Finance Department of China
Non-ferrous Metals Foreign-Engineering Corporation (FREL & B W TIZQT), Deputy
General Manager of China Non-ferrous Metals Construction Group Limited (PR B S BiR QM
® X)), Deputy General Manager of China Non-ferrous Construction Group Limited (& & 32 38 fiL
#WHM 2 a)), Director and Deputy General Manager of China Non-ferrous Metal Industry’s Foreign
Enginee}ing and Construction Co., Ltd., Deputy General Manager of China Non-ferrous Metals
Mining and Construction (Group) Co., Ltd., Deputy General Manager of Chinalco, Chairman of
Yunnan Copper industry (Group) Co., Ltd., Chairman of Chinalco Shanghai Copper Co, Ltd.,
Executive Director of Chinalco Kunming Copper Co., Ltd., as well as Director and President of
China Copper Co., Ltd. (PEFEEHB D a)). Mr. Liu also has acted as titular Deputy Head of
Department of Finance of Yunnan Province, director of State-owned Assets Supervision and

Administration Commission of Yunnan Province and assistant to the governor of Yunnan Province.

Mr. Ding Haiyan, 52, Vice President of the Company, has been serving the Company since
2001. Graduated from Beijing Economics University in 1982 majoring in labor economics, Mr.
Ding holds a Master's degree in Economics and is a senior economist with extensive experience
in labor, wages, insurance, enterprise mergers and acquisitions and capital operation. He once
served as Head of Labor Wage Division of the Human Resources Department of China Nonferrous
Metals Industry Corporation; Deputy Director of the Bureau of Labor and Insurance; Deputy
Director-General of the Enterprise Reform Department of the State Bureau of Non-ferrous Metals
Industry as well as Head of the Department of Assets Operation of Chinalco, Deputy Head of
the Company’s Listing Office; and Assistant to the General Manager of Chinalco and Executive

Director and the Secretary to the Board of the Company.
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Mr. Jiang Yinggang, 47, Vice President, has been serving the Company since 2001. Graduated
in 1983 from Central South University of Industry majoring in the metallurgy of non-ferrous
metals, Mr. Jiang holds a Master's degree in Metallurgy Engineering of non-ferrous metals and is
a professor-grade senior engineer. He has long engaged in production operation and corporate
management of production enterprises and has extensive professional experience. He formerly
served as Deputy Head and then Head of Corporate Management Department of Qinghai
Aluminum Plant; Head of Qinghai Aluminum Smelter; Deputy General Manager and General
Manager of Qinghai Aluminum Company Limited, and General Manager of Qinghai branch of the
Company. He has been Vice President of the Company since 2007.

Ms. Liu Qiang, 47, is Secretary to the Board and has been serving the Company since 2001. In
1989, Ms. Liu graduated from Beijing International Studies University majoring in English literature
and obtained a Master's degree in Literature (minor in translation). Ms. Liu studied finance,
financial management and business administration at the University of International Business and
Economics in Beijing and received trainings in finance and financial management in Hong Kong
while serving in the finance department of Hong Kong Oriental Xinyuan (Holdings) Company
Limited. Ms. Liu formerly served as Manager of the Finance Department of the Australan branch
of China National Non-Ferrous Metals Import and Export Corporation and has extensive experience
in the import and export of non-ferrous metals and analysis of the aluminum market. She formerly
served as Manager of the Aluminum Department of China National Non-Ferrous Metals Import
and Export Corporation; a senior market analyst for the Aluminum Industry in China National
Non-Ferrous Metals Trading Group and China National Metals and Minerals import and Export
Corporation as well as Deputy Manager of the Import and Export Division of China Aluminum

International Trading Corporation Limited.
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2. Positions Held in Shareholders of the Company by
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management during

the Year

Whether

Receiving

Name of Date of Remuneration
Name Shareholder Position(s) Appointment  or Allowance
Xiong Weiping Chinalco President February 2008  No
Lv Youging Chinalco Deputy General December 2003  Yes
Manager

Ao Hong Chinalco Vice President October 2005 Yes
Zhang Zhankui Chinalco Head of Finance March 2006 Yes

Department
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Positions in Other Entities

Whether
Receiving
Name of Date of Remuneration
Name other entities Position(s) Appointment  or Allowance
Shi Chungui Intime Department Store  Independent Director  April 2008 Yes

(Group) Company Ltd

China National Materials  Independent Director  January 2010 Yes

Company Limited

Zhu Demiao Oaktree Capital Senior Consultant August 2010 Yes
(Hong Kong) Ltd

WSP Holdings Ltd Independent Disector  January 2007 Yes

3. Decision Making Process and Basis of Determination
of Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

Based on the prevailing market standards and the remuneration strategy of the Company, a
designated department of the Company would formulate proposals for the remuneration of
the Company’s Directors, Supervisors and senior management and submitted the same to the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Remuneration of the senior management will then be
submitted to the Board for determination whereas those of the Directors and the Supervisors will
then be submitted to the Board for consideration and to the shareholders’ general meeting for
determination.
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The Company determined its remunerations for Directors, Supervisors and senior management
based on its development strategy, corporate culture and remuneration strategy, taking into
account the remuneration standards of corresponding positions in comparable enterprises (in
terms of scale, industry and nature etc.), as well as the opinion and advice of external professional
consultancy organizations. The remuneration will be linked 1o the Company’s operating results and
individual performance.

In 2010, the total remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of the
Company amounted to RMBS.92 million (including the travelling expenses of the independent
Directors), other than the discretionary bonus of RMB1.38 million which were not distributed

during the year, all remuneration had been paid during the year.

4. Changes in Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management during the Year

Name Position(s) Reason for change

Chen Jihua Executive Director, Vice President Resigned on October 28, 2010,
and Chief Financial Officer with immediate effect

Kang Yi Independent Non-executive Director Office expired, retired on June 22,

2010, with immediate effect
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Employees of the Company

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had 108,256 employees. The structure of employees is as

follows:

By function

Category Number of Persons
Management 17,676
Sales 735
Production 88,480
Others 1,365
Total 108,256

By Education Background

Category

Number of Persons

Post-graduates 776
University graduates 11,075
Technical institute graduates 26,919
Secondary/technical school graduates or below 69,486
Total 108,256
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and Details of Substantial Shareholders

1. Share Capital Structure

Chinalco is the largest shareholder of the Group, which directly holds 38.56% equity interest and
together with its subsidiaries holds an aggregate of 41.82% equity interest in the Company. As of
December 31, 2010, the Directors of the Company regarded Chinalco as the Company’s ultimate

holding company.

Shareholding Structure of Chalco

!' Eum Corporation of Chma'!i
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As of December 31, 2010, the share capital structure of the Company was as follows

As of December 31, 2010

Percentage to

Number of total issued
shares share capital
(in million) (%)
Holders of A shares subject to

trading moratorium (Note 1)

Chinacto 5.214.41 38.56
Baotou Aluminum (Group) Co., Ltd. (Note 2) 351.22 2.60
Lanzhou Aluminum Factory (Note 2) 79.47 0.58
Guiyang Aluminum Magnesium Design &

Research Institute (Note 2) 4.12 0.03
Holders of A shares not subject to trading moratorium 3,931.30 29.07
Holders of H shares 3,943.97 29.16
Total 13,524.49 100
Note 1: All A shares of the Company subject to trading moratorium have become tradable since January 4, 2011

Note 2: These are subsidiaries of Chinako. In addition, Shanxi Aluminum Plant, a subsidiary of Chinalco, holds 7.14
milfion tradable A shares not subject to trading moratorium, representing approximately 0.05% of the issued
share capital.

According to the publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the Company's
Directors, as of February 28, 2011, being the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
report, the public float of the Company is in compliance with the requirement of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Hong Kong
Listing Rules”).
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2. Changes in Shareholding and Shareholders

There was no change in the share capital structure of the Company during the year ended
December 31, 2010.

Particulars of Shareholding

Before the change After the change
Issue of
Share Percentage new shares Share Percentage
(Number) (%) {Number) (%)
1. Shares subject to trading
moratorium (Note)
1. State-owned shares 5.214,407,195 38.56 N/A  5214,407,195 38.56
2. State-owned legal
person shares 434,809,850 32 N/A 434,809,850 ERa
Total shares subject to
trading moratorium 5,649,217,045 41.77 N/A  5,649,217,045 4177
1. Shares not subject to
trading moratorivm
1 Renminbi ordinary shares 3,931,304,879 29.07 NA  3,931304,879 29.07
2. Overseas isted foreign
invested shares 3,943,965,968 29.16 NA 3943965968 29.16
Total shares not subject to
trading moratorium 7.875,270,847 58.23 NA 7875270847 5823
lil. Total shares 13,524,487 892 100 NA 13,524,487 892 100

Note: Al A Shares of the Company subject to trading moratorium have become tradable since January 4, 2011.
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|
Approval of Changes in Shareholding
Nil
Transfer of Changes in Shareholding

Nil
3. Share Issuance and Listing

(1) Status of share issuance in the past three years
Nil

(2) Changes in total number of issued shares and the shareholding
structure of the Company

As of December 31, 2010, the total number of issued shares of the Company amounted to
13,524,487,892 shares, which was not increased or decreased nor was there any change in
the shareholding structure during the year ended December 31, 2010.

4. Substantial Shareholders with Shareholding of 5% or
more

Substantial Shareholders

So far as the Directors are aware, as of December 31, 2010, the following persons (other than the
Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fail to be disclosed under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,

or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Percentage in
the relevant Percentage
Name of substantial Class of Number of class of issued in total issued
sharehotder shares shares held Capadity share capital share capital
Chinalco A Shares 5,656,357,299 (L) Beneficial owner and interests 59.04% () 4182% (L)
(Note 1) of controlled corporation
China Cinda Asset A Shares 800,759,074 (1) Beneficial owner 836% ) 592% (1)
Management
Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank A Shares 709,373,136 (L) Benefiual owner 740% (1) 525% (U
Corporation Limited
Templeton Asset H Shares 828,518,475 (L) Investment manager 21.01% 1) 6.13% (1)
Management Ltd
Blackrock, Inc H Shares 366,643,347 (L) Interests of controlled 7.78% 1) 227% ()
23023512 () corporations 058% (3) 017% (S
{Note 2)
Morgan Stanley H Shares 217,898,674 (1) Interests of controlled 552% (1) 161% ()
201,916,981 (5 corporations 512% (5) 1.49% (5)
{Note 3}
JPMorgan Chase & Co H Shares 204,269.215 (1) Benefica owner, investment 518% 1) 151% (1)
21324692 ()  manager and cusiodian 0.54% () 0.16% ()
73253600 (A  — corporation/approved 186% (P) 0.54% (P)
{Note 4j lending agent
) The letter “L" denotes a long position.
() The letter “S” denotes a short position.
P) The letter *P* denotes interests in a lending pool.
Notes:
7 These interests included a direct interest of 5,214,407,195 A shares held by Chinaico, and an aggregate interests

in 441,950,104 A shares held by various controlled subsidiary corporations of Chinaico, comprising 351,217,795
A shares held by Baotou Aluminum (Group) Co., Ltd., 79,472,482 A shares held by Lanzhou Aluminum Factory,
4,119,573 A shares heid by Guiyang Aluminum Magnesium Design and Research Institute and 7,140,254 A shares
held by Shanxi Aluminum Plant
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2 These interests were held directly by various corporations controlled by Blackrock, Inc.. Among the aggregate
interests in the long position in H shares, 450 H shares were held as dernvatives.

3. These interests were held directly by various corporations controlled by Morgan Stanley.

Among the aggregate interests in the long position in H shares, 139,829,143 H shares were held by Morgan
Stanley & Co, Inc, 73,971,831 H shares were held by Morgan Stanley & Co. international plc., 1,539,625 H shares
were held by Morgan Stanley Smuth Barney LLC. 1,422,075 H shares were held by Morgan Stanley Capital Services
inc., 1,000,000 H shares were held by MSDW Equity Finance Services | (Cayman) Limited and 136,000 H shares
were held by Morgan Staniey Capital (Luxembourg) S A

Among the aggregate interests in the short position in H shares, 136,150,943 H shares were held by Morgan
Stanley & Co, Inc. 59,949,588 H shares were held by Morgan Stanley & Co. International pic., 3.000,000 H shares
were held by Morgan Stanley Capital Services inc., 1.000,000 H shares were held by MSOW Equity Finance Services
1(Cayman) Limited, 112,600 H shares were heid by Morgan Stanley Capital (Cayman Islands) Limited and 1,703,850
H shares were held by Morgan Stanley Asia Products Limited.

4 Among the aggregate interests in the long position in H shares, 73,253,600 H shares were held by iPMorgan
Chase Bank. N.A, 92,480,000 H shares were held by JF Assel Management Limited, 13,264,162 H shares were
held by J.P.Morgan Securities Ltd., 16,832,103 H shares were held by J.P. Morgan Whitefriars, Inc.. 2,851,350 H
shares were held by J.P.Morgan Markets Limited. 3,530,000 H shares were held by JPMorgan Asset Management
(Singapore) Limited, 886,000 H shares were held by 1.P Morgan Investment Management inc and 1,172,000 H
shares were held by JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited. :

Among the aggregate interests in the short position in H shares. 13,264,162 H shares were held by 1.P.Morgan
Securities L1d,, 5,209,180 H shares were held by J.P.Morgan Whitefriars Inc. and 2,851,350 H shares were held by
J.P Morgan Markels Umited.

Among the aggregate interests in the long position in H shares, 1,000,000 H shares were held as derivatives.

Among the aggregate interests in the short position in H shares, 5,209,180 H shares were held as derivatives.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as of December 31, 2010, no other
person had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company (as
the case may be) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or was otherwise a substantial
shareholder of the Company.
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5. Number of Shareholders

Unit: Number of Shareholders

Total number of shareholders as of December 31, 2010 609,956

6. Particulars of Shareholdings Held by Top Ten Shareholders

Number of Nature of  Percentage of
shares held shareholders shareholding
(%)
1 Chinalco 5.214,407,195 A Shares 38.56
2 HKSCC Nominees Limited 3,926,907,637 H Shares 2904
3 China Cinda Asset Management
Corporation Limited 800,759,074 A Shares 592
4 China Construction Bank
Corporation Limited 709,373,136 A Shares 5.25
5  Guokai Financial Limited Company 425,858,145 A Shares 3.15
6  Baotou Aluminum {(Group) Co , Ltd 351,217,795 A Shares 2.60
7 Lanzhou Aluminum Factory 79,472,482 A Shares 0.58
8  Guizhou Provincial Materials

Development and Investment
Corporation 71,640,000 A Shares 053
9  Guangxi Investment Group Co., Ltd. ’

(“Guangxi Investment”) 45,740,527 A Shares 034
10 ICBC — Shanghai S0 ETF Index
Securities Investment Fund 16,667,252 A Shares 0.12
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7. Summary of the Controlling Shareholder

(1) Particulars of the Legal Person Controlling Shareholder

Name of the controlling shareholder:

Legal representative:

Registered capital:

Date of incorporation:

Principal operating or managing activities:

Chinalco

Xiong Weiping
RMB15.432 billion
February 21, 2001

mineral resources explorau’on; bauxite mining;
deployment of personnel necessary for overseas
engineering projects commensurating with its
capacity, scale and performance; operation
and management of state-owned assets and
equities, production and sales of aluminum,
copper, rare earth and related non-ferrous
metals mineral products, smelted products
and carbon products;, exploration design,
general project contracting, construction
and installation; equipment manufacturing;
technological development and technical

service; import and export businesses.
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(2) Diagram of the Direct Equity Interests and Controlling Relationship

between the Company and the Controlling Shareholder

Note: Chinako directly holds 38.56% equity interest and together with its subsidiaries hokds an aggregate of

41.82% equily interest in the Company.
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Dear shareholders,

| hereby present the annual report of
the Group for the financial year ended
CHINRLCO December 31, 2010 for shareholders’
review. On behalf of the Board of the
Company and all employees, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to all
shareholders for their concern and suppo}t
for the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) .
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Product Market Reviews

The supply and demand as well as the price of aluminum are dosely tied to changes in the global and
the PRC macro-economies. Changes in the global and PRC economic climate have a significant impact
on the aluminum market.

Primary Aluminum Market

Under the influence of economic stimulus packages worldwide, the glbbal economy and the demand for
aluminum gradually recovered in the year 2010, the supply of aluminum increased accordingly and the
annual demand and supply of aluminum basically attained equilibrium. However, beset by the European
debt crisis, China’s control policies such as those over the real estate sector and energy saving and
emission reduction as well as the tight electricity supply in Europe, global aluminum prices remained
range-bound with sharp fluctuations. In mid-April, China’s control policies over the real estate sector
and the European debt crisis had driven the global aluminum price to plummet. Both prices of three-
month aluminum futures at the London Metal Exchange (hereafter as “LME") and Shanghai Futures
Exchange of the PRC (hereafter as “SHFE") hit year-low at USD1,844 per tonne and RMB14,580 per
tonne, respectively. In November, after the introduction of quantitative easing monetary policy by the
U.S. government, bulk commodity prices moved steadily upwards due to factors such as excessive
liquidity, depreciation of the U.S. dollar and reduction of aluminum production as a result of China’s
energy saving and emission reduction policies. Prices of three-month aluminum futures at both LME and
SHFE surged to year-high reaching USD2,477 per tonne and RMB18,470 per tonne, respectively. The
average three-month aluminum futures prices for 2010 at LME and SHFE were USD2,272 per tonne and

RMB16,186 per tonne, representing a year-on-year increase of 34.5% and 20.3%, respectively.
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In 2010, the global output of primary aluminum was approximately 41.90 million tonnes, representing
a year-on-year increase of 11.2%, the global consumption of primary aluminum was approximately
41 million tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase of 19.6%; the domestic output of primary
aluminum was approximately 15.65 million tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase of 20.5% and
the domestic consumption of primary aluminum was approximately 16.50 million tonnes, representing
a year-on-year increase of 19.5%. As of the end of 2010, the production utilization rate of primary
aluminum manufacturers in the world (inclusive of those of the PRC) was 75.5%, while that of the PRC
was 80.3%.

Alumina Market

In 2010, international and domestic prices of spot alumina fluctuated upward. At the beginning of the
year, alumina price rose as alumina supply decreased due to the resumption of production of aluminum
manufacturers and the reduction of production of alumina manufacturers. Following the drop of
aluminum price in the middle of the year, international and domestic prices of spot alumina fell to as
low as USD300 per tonne and RMB2,400 per tonne, respectively. Since late July, alumina price gradually
rebounded as a result of the launch of newly-constructed aluminum production capacity and the rise of
aluminum price; the FOB price of spot alumina in the international market rose to as high as USD390 per
tonne. At present, the FOB price of spot alumina in the international market is approximately USD385
per tonne and the price of spot alumina price in the domestic market is approximately RMB2,850 per
tonne.

The global output of alumina for 2010 was approximately 82.01 million tonnes, representing a year-
on-year increase of 12.9% and the consumption was approximately 82 .86 million tonnes, representing
a year-on-year increase of 14.5% . The domestic output of alumina was approximately 28.94 million
tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase of 21 4%, the demand for alumina was approximately
31.50 million tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase of 19.2%,; imported alumina amounted to
approximately 4.31 million tonnes in 2010, representing a year-on-year decrease of 16.1%. With the
resumption of primary aluminum production, alumina manufacturers around the world have gradually
increased their production utilization rate since the third quarter. As of the end of December 2010, the
production utilization rate of alumina manufacturers in the world (inclusive of those of the PRC) was

85.0%. while that of the PRC was 82.2%
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Business Review

In 2010, the volatility of aluminum price posed grave challenges to the Group's production and
operation. Focusing on its “controlling loss and increasing profit” principle and centered around
structural adjustment as well as strategic transformation and based on the principle of “centralized
management and delegated operations”, the Group adopted effective scientific counter-measures to
further enhance its fundamental management, costs and expenses as well as investment controls and
reduction of energy consumption, thus safeguarding and stabilizing production and operation of the
Group, thereby turning losses into profits. At the same time, the Group has expanded its business scope

to other resources to include coal and iron ore

1. Refined fundamental management and reengineered business processes. In response to the
complex market conditions, the Group, with a focus on operation transformation, initially
established a standardized scientific production system through strengthening its fundamental
management and proactively developing production and operation assessments. The Group's
operating performance continued to improve. In 2010, the Group's alumina output amounted
to 10.13 million tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase of 30.3%; the output of alumina
chemicals amounted to 1.2 million tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.3%; the
output of primary aluminum products amounted to 3.84 million tonnes, representing a year-on-
year increase of 11.6%; the output of aluminum fabrication products amounted to 0.59 million

tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase of 43.9%.

2. Stringent cost control, reducing costs and raising efficiency throughout its business process. The
Group continued the implementation of cost reduction and efficiency improvement in every
production flow and position, making the best of its potentials and consistently improved its
technical and economical indicators and strived to reduce materials and energy consumption and

other expenses.

3. Further tightened financial management. In accordance with the new management and control
model, the Group adjusted its budget management methods and methodologies and applied a
return-on-assets oriented performance assessment model. The Group also ensured the orderly
operation of cash flow and maintained its cash flow at normal levels through refined cash flow
management, and reduced financing expenses and controlled financial risks through adjusting its
debt portfolio.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

4, Further preservation of resources. The Group speeded up the efforts in mine constructions to
increase bauxite output from self-operated mines and continued to improve the stability of bauxite
supply and the level of comprehensive utilization of the resources. In 2010, the amount of bauxite
from self-operated mines made a 19.4% year-on-year increase with an addition of 91 million
tonnes of bauxite to its domestic reserves and 3.95 million tonnes to its self-operated mining
capacity

S. Accelerated construction of its structural adjustment exercise to actively promote projects with
“short investments, low costs and quick results”. Focusing on investment cost reduction,. the
Group adopted effective measures to optimize project design and selected appropriate project
construction method for projects based on the special features of the projects, to ensure an ali-

round project investment control.

6 Proactively promoted technology advancement and industrialization. The Group independently
researched and developed certain advanced and practical new technologies. In particular, the
Group put a major emphasis on the promotion of the technologies related to energy saving
and emission reduction such as the recycle of residual heat emitted in alumina production, the
improvement on cycle efficiency of Bayer process, the technology for the recycle of vanadium in
alumina production, the installation of remodeled electrolytic cells in newly-built production cells
as well as the application of cell-voltage-reduction in normal production cells and the recycle of
residual heat from carbon production in furnace. The Group also widely applied highly effective
hot/cold rofling technology with short process and conducted industrialization of double zero alloy
aluminum foil with high surface quality and low pinhole degree as well as 1235H14 standard

width aluminum foil billet, all of which generated significant economic benefits.

7 Making further efforts in energy saving and emission reduction. The Group set development goals
and assurance policies for its recycling economy aspiring to transform itself into a resource efficient
enterprise. Through streamlining its production processes, phasing out obsolete equipment and
actively adjusting its industry portfolio, the Group speeded up the applications of comprehensive
energy reduction technologies, which in aggregate saved energy equivalent to 0.46 million tonnes
of standard coal in 2010. The Group also had a 4%, 1.3% and 11.1% year-on-year decrease in
the overall consumption of energy in alumina production, alternating current in aluminum ingot

production and energy in aluminum production respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

8. Proactively initiating negotiations and cooperation in direct purchase of electricity. As of the end
of 2010, one company of the Group directly purchased electricity throughout the entire year while

another four benefited from direct electricity purchase policy at different times of the year.

9 Completion of initial establishment of comprehensive risk management system, thereby laying a
solid foundation to better safeguard the Company's operation risks and improve the standard of
its risk management and control.

10.  Further promotion of overseas projects. The Group entered into a new round of negotiations with
the government of Queensland, Australia in relation to the development of bauxite resources
in Aurukun and further progressed with the aluminum and power project in Saudi Arabia and
the aluminum plant project in Sarawak, Malaysia. Furthermore, the Group entered into a joint
development agreement with Rio Tinto plc and Rio Tinto lron Ore Atlantic Limited, an affiliate of

Rio Tinto plc, in relation to the joint development of the iron ore project in Simandou, Guinea.
Dividends

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2010 of
RMBOQ.0114 per share (tax inclusive) in cash to its shareholders, totalling to RMB154 million, representing
35% of the Company's profit for the year ended December 31, 2010. The proposed distribution of final
dividends is subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2010 annual general meeting

Financial Results

The revenue of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2010 amounted to RMB120.99 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 72.19%. Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of
the Company was RMB0.78 billion. Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company
was RMBO0.06
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Business Outlook and Prospects

While the global economy is expected to continue its slow recovery in 2011, it still faces significant
challenges ahead. Influenced by factors such as inflation and currency depreciation, aluminum price is

expected to fluctuate upward. The Group will focus on creating new competitive edges, and progressing

with its structuring adjustment and technology innovation, to step up the transformation of its operation
The Group will also enhance its fundamental management, continuously improve its production
performance, reduce production costs and strengthen its control over loss and increase profit. To steadily
achieve strategic transformation, raise its profitability and risk resistance capability, the Group will put its
efforts on the following aspects:

1. Continue to strengthen its fundamental management, step up the structural adjustment of its
operation, and tap the full potential of its management in order to achieve lean management. The
Group will continue to improve its operational performance and returns on assets by adopting an

innovative business model and realizing the potentials of its existing assets.

2. Press ahead with its structural adjustment. In respect of bauxite, the Group will step up efforts to
acquire and explore domestic resources and increase bauxite reserves to ensure stable resource
supply, raise self-mining proportion in accordance with resources-first principle and actively
participate in and promote promising international exploitation and development projects In
respect of alumina, the Group will further upgrade the production skills and technigques and
optimize production process, further optimize the production layout and strategically establish
alumina plants in favourable locations to replace obsolete capacity. In respect of aluminum, the
Group will further refine and phase out obsolete capacity and pave way for the relocation of
production capacity to coal-, water- and electricity-rich areas in order to achieve full integration
of coal and aluminum operations. The Group will also promote the use of advanced equipment
and technologies such as remodeled electrolytic cells and zero effect low voltage to continue the
reduction of overall energy consumption. In respect of aluminum fabrication, with a focus on the
development of cutting-edge aluminum materials, the Group will step up efforts in the research
and development of new materials with an emphasis on aluminum materials for aerospace,

aviation and transportation
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

3 Continue to adjust capital structure, optimize debt portfolio and lower financing costs. The Group
will further improve its budget management and control system and continue to develop the
analysis of monthly performance to optimize its performance indicators. The Group will refine the
management and control of cash flow budgets and prepare for the maintenance of capital balance
in low reserve periods 1o ensure stable cash supply. The Group will explore low-cost financing
methods, and reasonably deploy various debt financing tools to reduce the cost of capital. The
Group will also step up its monitoring and control over the credit risks of its subsidiaries to guard
against credit risks.

4 Continue with its technology innovation. With the theme of its structural adjustment, lowering
costs, enhancing efficiency and reducing energy consumption and emission, and on the basis of
improving its operating performance, the Group will accelerate the industrialization of advanced
technologies. It will further improve its process management in respect of common, key and
major projects so as to ensure major technological breakthroughs for setting the stage for
industrialization. At the same time, the Group will selectively apply scientific technology and basic

research to ensure its sustainable development.

S. further streamlining procurement process, step up the promotion and application of the use
of the procurement platform of the Group’'s electronic business system, continue to foster
strategic cooperation with major raw materials suppliers, broaden supply channels, and optimize
resource allocation, so as to maintain a stable supply and reasonable level of inventories of raw
materials and effectively reduce procurement cost. The Group will continue to proactively initiate
negotiations and cooperation in direct purchase of electricity. The Group will also continue to
refine its sales management system by adopting innovative sales model, improving market analyses
and estimates, boosting its capabilities to tap the market and raising operation standards, under
the “centralized management and authorized operation” system, in order to expand its market
shares and the profitability of its sales
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6. Proactively promote resource acquisition and mine construction, with priority given to key
restructuring projects, energy-saving and emission reduction initiatives, and technological
renovation projects with significant benefits that are integral to the Group's sustainable
development. The Group will effectively control and reduce project investments through the
adoption of a diversified approach to project construction. The Group will also further refine its

investment management system as well as its project management measures and process.

7. Further refine its risk management system on all fronts by strengthening the day-to-day operations
and maintenance of the system and formulating comprehensive risk management system to

strengthen risk prevention and control in key areas

8 Further improve and optimize the three management systems in respect of (i) organization and
management; (i) statistics collection, supervision and inspection; and (iii} assessment, award
and penalty, for energy saving and emission reduction. The Group will expedite its research and
development of key energy saving and emission reduction technologies, such as efficient and
environmental-friendly aluminum production techniques, increasingly promote the application of
remodeled electrolytic cells and technologies for efficient and energy-saving alumina production,
whilst actively adjusting its power structure to increase the proportion of clean energies in its

energy consumption.

9 Accelerate overseas development. Apart from proceeding with the Aurukun project in Australia,
the Sarawak project in Malaysia, the aluminum and power project in Saudi Arabia and the iron ore

project in Guinea, the Group will also play an active role in global resource allocation.
In 2011, we will do our utmost to achieve our goals as a return to our shareholders

Xiong Weiping

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
February 28, 2011
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Conditions and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial information of the Group

together with the accompanying notes included in this report.
Business Segments

The Group is principally engaged in alumina refining, primary aluminum smelting, aluminum fabrication
products and the trading of related products. The Group organizes its operations according to the
following business segments:

Alumina segment, which consists of mining and purchasing bauxite and other raw materials, refining
bauxite into alumina, and selling alumina both internally to the Group’s aluminum plants and externally
to customers outside the Group. This segment also includes the production and sales of chemical

alumina (including alumina hydroxide and alumina chemicals) and metal gallium.

Primary aluminum segment, which consists of procuring alumina and other raw materials, supplemental
materials and electricity power, smelting alumina to produce primary aluminum and selling them to the
Group's internal aluminum fabrication plants and external customers. This segment also includes the

production and sales of carbon products and aluminum alloy products.

Aluminum fabrication segment, which consists of procuring primary aluminum, other raw materials,
supplemental materials and electricity power, and further processing primary aluminum for the
production and sales of seven main aluminum fabricated products, including casts, planks, screens,
extrusions, forges, powder and die castings.

Trading segment, which consists of the Group's internal and external procurement and sales of alumina,
primary aluminum, aluminum fabrication products, relevant metal products and raw and ancillary
materials in bulk domestically and abroad.

Headquarters and other operating segments, which mainly include management of headquarters,
research and development activities.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Conditions and Results of Operations (Continued)
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Results of Operations

The Group's profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company for 2010 was RMB778
million, representing a significant increase from a loss of RMB4,643 million for the preceding year This
was mainly attributable to the rebound of the market price of the Group's major products, the effect of
the Group’s “controlling loss and increasing profit” measures and the increase of the Group’s production
and sales volume.

Revenue

The Group's revenue for 2010 was RMB120,995 million, representing an increase of RMBS50,727 million
or 72.19% from RMB70,268 million for the preceding year. This was mainly attributable to the increase
in the selling prices of the Group's major products and the substantial increase of external sales volume
and trading volume of products sourced from external suppliers.

Cost of Sales

Total cost of sales of the Group was RMB113,350 million for 2010, representing an increase of
RMB44,271 million or 64.09% from RMB69,079 million for the preceding year. This was mainly
attributable to the substantial increase of the external sales volume of the Group’s major products and
the Group’s trading volume of products sourced from external suppliers.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Conditions and Results of Operations (Continued)
]

Selling Expenses and Administrative Expenses

The Group's selling expenses for 2010 was RMB1,573 million, representing an increase of RMB308
million or 24.35% from RMB1,265 million for the preceding year. This was mainly attributable to the
increase of the external sales of the Group's major products leading to an increase of the relevant
transportation, loading and packaging expenses.

The Group's administrative expenses for 2010 was RMB2,624 million, representing a decrease of
RMB333 million or 11.26% from RMB2,957 million for the preceding year. This was mainly attributable
to the decrease of RMB216 million in the retirement benefit expenses of the Group in respect of its early
retirement scheme in 2010 as compared to the correspénding period of 2009. In addition, in 2010, the
Group applied strict control to daily administrative expenses and adopted proactive measures to constrain
all controllable expenses, resulting in a decrease of approximately RMB123 million in administrative

expenses
Finance Costs, Net

The Group's finance costs for 2010 was RMB2,495 million, representing an increase of RMB3S7
million or 16.70% from RMB2,138 million for the preceding year. This was primarily attributable to
the following reasons: notwithstanding the year-on-year increase in interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group, the Group kept the total interest expenses basically constant as compared with 2009 through
optimization of its debt portfolio, widening of low-cost financing channels and lowering of interest
rates. As more construction in progress projects were completed and transferred to property, plant
and equipment in 2010, capitalized interest expense decreased as compared with 2009, leading to an
increase of approximately RMB235 million in finance costs. In order 1o expedite fund turnover to reduce
demand for fund, the Group reduced its fund reserve and in turn interest income by approximately
RMB34 million. In addition, the Group actively adopted low-cost notes financing by issuing and utilizing
more notes, resulting in an increase of approximately RMB35 million in the discount on interest and the
handling fees of notes during the year. Due to fluctuations in exchange rate, exchange gains for the year

decreased by approximately RMB47 million as compared with the preceding year.

Due to the above factors, operating profit of the Group increased by RMB6,681 miillion from the loss of

RMB3,279 million for the preceding year to a profit of RMB3,402 million for 2010,
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Conditions and Results of Operations (Continued)

Income Tax
The Group’s income tax expenses for 2010 was RMB411 million, representing an increase of RMB1,122
million from a tax benefit of RMB711 million for the preceding year. This was mainly attributable to the

significant increase of the Group's total profit as the Group achieved a turnaround from loss to profit in
2010

Discussion of Segment Operations
Alumina Segment
Revenue

The Group’s revenue in the alumina segment for 2010 was RMB26,838 million, representing an increase
of RMB8,549 million or 46.74% from RMB18,289 million for the preceding year.

The revenue from internal sales of alumina segment for 2010 was RMB24,690 million, representing an
increase of RMB12,135 million or 96 65% from RMB12,555 million for the preceding year.

The revenue from external sales of alumina segment for 2010 was RMB2,148 million, representing a

decrease of RMB3,586 miilion or 62.54% from RMBS,734 million for the preceding year.
Segment profit

The Group's total segment profit in the alumina segment for 2010 increased by RMB3,973 miliion from
the loss of RMB2,896 million for the preceding year to a profit of RMB1,077 million
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiat™
Conditions and Results of Operations (Continued)
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Primary Aluminum Segment
Revenue

The Group’s revenue in the primary aluminum segment for 2010 was RMBS3,255 million, representing
an increase of RMB10,524 miltion or 24.63% from RMB42,731 million for the preceding year

The revenue from internal sales of primary aluminum segment for 2010 was RMB26,848 million,
representing an increase of RMB10,384 million or 63.07% from RMB16,464 million for the preceding

year

The revenue from external sales of primary aluminum segment for 2010 was RMB26,407 million,
representing an increase of RMB139 million or 0.53% from RMB26,268 million for the preceding year

Segment Profit

The Group's total segment profit in the primary aluminum segment for 2010 was RMB359 million,
representing an increase of profit of RMB1,786 million from the loss of RMB1,427 million for the
preceding year.

Aluminum Fabrication Segment

Revenue

The Group’s revenue in the aluminum fabrication segment for 2010 was RMB10,466 million,
representing an increase of RMB3,363 million or 47.35% from RMB7,103 million for the preceding year.

Segment loss
The Group's total segment loss in the aluminum fabrication segment for 2010 was RMB324 million,

representing a decrease of RMBS74 million or 63.92% from the loss of RMB8398 million for the
preceding year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Conditions and Results of Operations (Continued)

]
Trading Segment
Revenue

The Group's revenue in the trading segment for 2010 was RMB90,141 million, representing an increase
of RMBS51,690 million or 134.43% from RMB38,451 million for the preceding year

The Group's sales of self-produced products in the trading segment for 2010 was approximately
RMB34,444 million, representing an increase of RMB17,709 million or 105.82% from approximately
RMB16,735 million for the preceding year

The Group's sales of products sourced from external suppliers in the trading segment for 2010 was
approximately RMBSS,697 mullion, representing an increase of RMB33,981 million or 156.48% from
approximately RMB21,716 million for the preceding year.

Segment Profit

The Group's total segment profit in the trading segment for 2010 was RMB861 million, representing an
increase of RMB228 million or 36.02% from the profit of RMB633 million for the preceding year

Headquarters and Other Operating Segments
Revenue

The Group’s revenue in headquarters and other operating segments for 2010 was RMB190 million,
representing a decrease of RMB36 million or 33.57% from RMB286 million for the preceding year.

Segment loss

The Group’s total segment loss in headquarters and other operating segments for 2010 was RMB490
million, representing a decrease of RMB199 million from the loss of RMB689 million for the preceding
year
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financia
Conditions and Results of Operations (Continued)

. |
Structure of Assets and Liabilities
Current Assets and Liabilities

As of December 31, 2010, the Group’s current assets amounted to RMB41,325 million, representing an
increase of RMB4,991 million from RMB36,334 million as of the beginning of 2010.

As of December 31, 2010, the Group's bank balances and cash amounted to RMB9,496 million,
representing an increase of RMB1,637 million as compared with RMB7,859 million as of the beginning of
2010.

As of December 31, 2010, the Group's inventories amounted to RMB21,780 million, representing an
increase of RMB1,357 million from RMB20,423 million as of the beginning of 2010, primarily due to the

increase of the Group's reserve of raw materials and fuels and the increase of its price.

As of December 31, 2010, the Group's current liabilities amounted to RMBS5,734 million, representing
an increase of RMB15,704 million from RMB40,030 million as of the beginning of 2010, primarily due to
the issuance of short-term financing bonds in the amount of RMB 10,700 miillion by the Group during the
period and the expiration of the 3-year medium-term notes in the amount of RMBS,000 million issued in
June 2008 within one year.

As of December 31, 2010, the current ratio of the Group was 0.74, representing a decrease of 0.17
from 0.91 as of the end of 2009, and the quick ratio was 0.35, representing a decrease of 0.05 from 0.40
as of the end of 2009.

Non-current Liabilities

As of December 31, 2010, the Group's non-current liabilities amounted to RMB28,402 million, representing
a decrease of RMB9,962 million from RMB38,364 million as of the beginning of 2010, primarily due to the
repayment of a portion of the Group's long-term borrowings and the transfer of a portion of the medium-

term notes, which will expire within one year, to current liabilities due within one year.

As of December 31, 2010, the debt to asset ratio of the Group was 59.53%, representing an increase of
1.02 percentage points from 58.51% as of the end of 2009.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Conditions and Results of Operations (Continued)

OTHER INCOME AND SHARE OF PROFIT/(LOSS) OF JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES/ASSOCIATES

Other income

The Group's other income represented government grants which amounted to RMB328.85 million for
the year ended December 31, 2010, representing an increase of RMB177.71 million from RMB151.14
million for the preceding year

Share of profit/(loss) of jointly controlled entities

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group’'s share of profit of jointly controlled entities
amounted to RMB233.78 million, representing a profit increase of RMB284.17 million from the loss of
RMB50.39 million for the preceding year, primarily due to the significant growth in the share of profits
from Guangxi Huayin.

Share of profit of associates

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group's share of profit of associates amounted to
RMB240.03 million, representing an increase of RMB162.97 million from RMB77.06 million for the
preceding year, primarily due to the significant growth in the share of profit from lJiaozuo Coal Group
Xinxiang (Zhaogu) Energy Corporation Co., Lid.

MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUE

The Group adopted policy for recognition, measurement and disclosure of fair value in accordance with
the requirements on fair value under the relevant accounting principles, and undertook responsibility for
the truthfulness of the measurement and disclosure of fair value. Currently, save as its available-for-sate
financial assets and financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (including derivative

instruments) are accounted at fair value, others were stated at historical cost.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financia
Conditions and Results of Operations (Continued)

As of December 31, 2010, the primary aluminum future contracts and foreign currency forward contracts
held by the Group, which were accounted for as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
amounted to RMB17 million, representing an increase of RMB17 million from RMB0.06 million as of the
end of 2009. The changes represented the unrealized gain on future contracts, net; future contracts for
primary aluminum future contracts, were accounted for as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, amounted to RMB9 million, representing a decrease of RMB39 million from RMB48 million as of
the end of 2009. The changes represented the unrealized gain on future and option contracts, net in the

statement of comprehensive income.
PROVISION FOR INVENTORY IMPAIRMENT

On December 31, 2010, the Group conducted valuation on the net realizable value of its inventories on
basis of the estimated selling price. The valuation took into account the intra-group matching of sales
plans and production schedules of alumina plants and aluminum smelters, financial budget, inventory
turnover, inventory purposes and post balance sheet events, upon a comprehensive assessment, the
provisions for inventory impairment for inventories held as of December 31, 2010 amounted to RMB109
million, representing an increase of RMB35 million as compared with the provisions for impairment of
RMB74 million at_the end of 2009

The Company has formed a comprehensive industry chain (its scope of business covers the exploration
and mining of bauxite, smelting of alumina and primary aluminum, production of aluminum alloy and
refined processing of aluminum products), the continuity and integrity between its inventory turnover
process and production process, and continuous processing that is required for turning raw materials
and work in progress inventory into finished goods. These factors required the Group to adopt an all-
round approach in calculating the provision for impairment. Based on reliable evidence such as executed
sales contract, net realizable value is measured by the estimated selling price less the estimated costs,
expenses and taxes for completing the sate, after taking into account the inventory nature, volume,
purpose and price fluctuation, the production and operation budget and post balance sheet event. For
finished goods inventory, net realizable value is calculated based on the contract price, or for quantities
that exceed the contracted volumes, based on the actual selling price from the balance sheet date to the
reporting date. For raw materials and work in progress inventory, the Group has established a model for
calculating impairment provision, which estimates the costs to be incurred based on the expected time
of sale determined by the Group’s production capacity and cycles, the correlation among raw materials,
work in progress, production capacity and volume, and the calculation is based on the estimated selling
price of such finished goods produced and processed
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Conditions and Results of Operations (Continued)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
INVESTMENTS UNDERTAKINGS

As of December 31, 2010, the Group's accumulated project investment expenditures amounted to
RMB9,017 million, which consisted mainly of investments in energy saving and consumption reduction,
environmental protection, mine construction and scientific research, including projects such as the
expansion and environmental protection alumina project of Guizhou branch, environmentally friendly
energy-saving renovation aluminum project of Zunyi Aluminum, Liancheng branch's project in relation
to the phasing out of obsolete capacity and environmental protection and energy saving as well as the
expansion of Bayer-process ore dressing project of Lanzhou Branch

As of December 31, 2010, the Group's capital commitment for investment in property, plant and
equipment amounted to RMB33,487 million, of which those contracted but not provided for amounted
to RMB4,612 million and those authorized but not contracted for amounted to RMB28,875 million.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of December 31, 2010, the Group's cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB8,983 million,
including foreign currency deposits of RMB303.23 million, RMB31.12 million and RMB103.64 million
denominated in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Australian dollars, respectively

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

In 2010, the Group's net cash generated from operating activities amounted to RMB7,104 million,
representing an increase of RMB7,810 million from the net cash used in operating activities of RMB706
million for the preceding year, mainly attributable to the increase of net cash inflows from the sales of
products as a result of the significant growth in both selling price and sales volume of the Company’s
principal products.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

In 2010, the Group's net cash used in investing activities amounted to RMB8,260 million, representing a
decrease of RMB1,217 million from the net cash used in investing activities of RMB9,477 million for the
preceding year, primarily due to the increase of cash inflow related to investments and government grants
received, and the decrease in purchases of property, pfant and equipment of the Group.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

For the year 2010, the Group’s net cash flow generated from financing activities amounted to RMB2,718
million, representing an increase of RMB1,141 million from the net cash flow generated from financing
activities of RMB1,577 million for the preceding year. This was mainly due to the increase of external debt
financing during the year.

ALUMINUM CORPORATION OF CHINA LIMITED



Directors’ Report

The Board hereby submits the Directors’ Report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2010.

Principal Activities

The Group is the largest producer of alumina, primary aluminum and aluminum fabrication in the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group is principally engaged in mining of bauxite,
manufacture and distribution of alumina, primary aluminum and aluminum fabrication products as well
as trading of non-ferrous metal products sourced from external suppliers. The scope of business of the
Group includes the development of bauxite-related resources, the production, fabrication and distribution
of bauxite, carbon and other smelted products

Financial Summary

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2010 are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 125 1o 126. A five-year financial summary of the Group is

set out on pages 9 to 11.
Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2010 of
RMBO0.0114 per share (tax inclusive) in cash to its shareholders, totalling up RMB154 million, representing
35% of the Company’s profit for the year ended December 31, 2010. The proposal for distribution of
final dividend is subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2010 annual general meeting
Total dividends paid during the preceding two years are as follows:

Year 2009 Year 2008

Jotal dividends paid: (RMB billion) nil 0.703
Ratio to profits attributable to equity holders

of the Company: (%) nit 3,609.30

Share Capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

2010 ANNUAL REPORT




Directors’ Report (Continued)

Debentures
Details of debentures of the Company are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements
Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity on pages 127 to 128 and Note 20 to the

consolidated financia! statements, respectively.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company are set

out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to Article 184 of the Articles of Association of the Company, where there are differences
between PRC accounting standards and the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong,
the distributable reserves for the relevant period shall be the lesser of the amounts shown in the two
different financial statements. As such, as of December 31, 2010, the distributable reserves of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB18.50 billion.

Use of Proceeds

During the year, the Company did not raise any proceeds or use any proceeds brought forward from
previous periods.
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]
Use of Non-Proceeds

During the year, the uses of funding not derived from proceeds are set out as follows

(1) Chongging branch’s 800,000-tonne alumina project the proposed investment in the project was
RMBS.50 billion. As of the end of 2010, the Company had invested RMBS.39 billion in total
The project has commenced production in 2010, with production capacity of 800,000 tonnes of
alumina

(2)  Zunyi 800,000-tonne alumina project of Chalco Zunyi Alumina Co., Ltd.: the proposed investment
in the project was RMB4.78 billion. As of the end of 2010, the Company had invested RMB4.64
billion in total. The project has commenced production in 2010, with an annual production
capacity of 800,000 tonnes of alumina.

(3) Liancheng branch, the phasing out of obsolete capacity, environmental protection and energy-
saving project: the proposed investment in the project was RMB3.80 billion. As of the end of
2010, the Company had invested RMB1.79 billion in total. The project is expected to be completed
by 2011, with production capacity of 388,000 tonnes of aluminum.

(4)  The energy-saving and environmental protection technology refinement project for Gansu Hualu's
aluminum and carbon system: the proposed investment in the project was RMB0.73 billion. As of
the end of 2010, the Company had invested RMB0.47 billion in total. The project is expected to

be completed by 2011, with production capacity of 70,000 tonnes of aluminum.

(5)  Chalco Ruimin high precision aluminum strip and sheet project: the proposed investment in the
project was RMB3.05 billion. As of the end of 2010, the Company had invested RMB2.16 billion
in total. The project has commenced production in 2010, with additional production capacity of
250,000 tonnes of aluminum fabrication products.

(6)  Northwest Aluminum Fabrication Plant aluminum foil project: the proposed investment in the
project was RMB1.34 billion. As of the end of 2010, the Company had invested RMBO.85 billion.
The project is expected to commence production by 2011, with capacity of 35,000 tonnes of
alumi‘num fabrication products.
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(7)  Southwest aluminum cold rolling project: the proposed investment in the project was RMB1.80
billion. As of the end of 2010, the Company had invested RMB1.44 billion in total. The project
has commenced production in 2010, with production capacity of 250,000 tonnes of aluminum
fabrication products

Pre-emptive Rights

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company and the PRC laws, there are no pre-emptive

rights that require the Company to offer new shares to its existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.
Donations .

The Group had donated approximately RMB21.92 million during the year (2009: approximately RMB6.80
million).

Litigation and Contingent Liabilities
(a) Litigation

There was no material litigation pending during the year which was required to be disclosed.
(b) Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group had no material contingent liabilities required to be disclosed '
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Directors and Supervisors
The Directors and Supervisors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Xiong Weiping re-appointed on June 22, 2010
Luo Jianchuan re-appointed on June 22, 2010
Chen Jihua# resigned on October 28: 2010
Liu Xiangmin re-appointed on June 22, 2010

Non-executive Director

Shi Chungui re-appointed on June 22, 2010
Lv Youqing appointed on June 22, 2010

Independent non-executive Directors

Kang Yi# retired from office on June 22, 2010
Zhang Zuoyuan re-appointed on June 22, 2010
Wang Mengkui re-appointed on June 22, 2010

Zhu Demiao re-appointed on June 22, 2010
Supervisors

Ao Hong re-appointed on June 22, 2010
Yuan Li re-appointed on June 22, 2010
Zhang Zhankui re-appointed on June 22, 2010

Profiles of the Directors and Supervisors are set out on pages 15 to 29.

* Due to personal reason, Mr. Chen Jihua resigned on October 28, 2010 from the positions of Executive Director, Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer, Member of Executive Committee and Member of Development and Planning Commirtee.
At the board meeting hekd on February 23, 2011, the 8oard resoled to appoint Mr Liu Caiming as Sentor Vice President,
Chief Financial Offcer and a member of Executive Committee of the Company and resolved 1o nominale Mr. Liu Caiming
as a candidate for executive Director of the dth session of the Board of the Company subject to approval at the 2010
annual general meeting of the Company.

Having served as independent Non-executive Director for six consecutive years, Mr. Kang Yi retired from office after the
2009 Annual General Meeting convened on June 22, 2010 upon expiry of his term of office
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts and
Remuneration

Pursuant to Articles 104 and 145 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the term of office
for Directors and Supervisors is three years, subject to re-election. Each Director and Supervisor has
therefore entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years, but none of their
service contracts is not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation). Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. For the year
ended December 31, 2010, there were no arrangements under which any Director or Supervisor of the

Company had waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

Interests of Directors, Chief Executive and Supervisors in
Shares of the Company and Its Associated Corporations

During the year ended December 31, 2010, none of the Directors, chief executive, Supervisors or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Hong Kong SFO), which are (a)
required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the Hong Kong SFO; or (b) required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Hong Kong SFO; (¢} required to be notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

companies.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, none of the Directors, chief executive, Supervisors, senior
management or their respective spouses or children under eighteen was given any right to acquire
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Hong Kong SFO).
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Interests of Directors and Supervisors in Contracts

During the year ended December 31, 2010, none of the Directors or Supervisors had any material direct
or indirect interest in any contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party

Employees and Pension Schemes

As of December 31, 2010, the Group had 108,256 employees. The remuneration package includes
salaries, bonuses and allowances. Employees also receive benefits including medical care, housing
subsidies, child care and education, retirement pension and other benefits

In accordance with applicable PRC regulations, the Group has currently enrolled in pension schemes
organized by various provincial and municipal governments, under which each of the Group’s plants is
required to contribute a fixed percentage of its employees' salaries, bonuses and various allowances to
the schemes. The specific percentage, which is around 20%, varies from plant to plant depending on the

difference in locality of the plant and the average age of the employees.
Repurchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s Shares

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during 2010. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased or sold any of its shares during 2010.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole or any substantial part of the

business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during the year.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2010, no more than 30% of the Company's total sales was

attributable to the five largest customers of the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, no more than 30% of the Company's total cost of sales was

attributable to the raw materials provided to the Company by the five largest suppliers of the Company.
Code on Corporate Governance Practices

For the year ended December 31, 2010, save for the deviation in respect of segregating the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer, the Company was in compliance with the principles and code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules and the Internal Control Guidelines for Listed Companies of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange.

The Articles of Assocation, the Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, the Terms of Reference of
the Supervisory Committee and the Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions by the Directors,
Supervisors and Specific Employees form the framework for the code of corporate governance practices
of the Company. The Board has reviewed its corporate governance documents and is of the view that
such documents, except for the principle regarding segregation of the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer, have incorporated the principles and code provisions in the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules and the Internal Control Guidelines for Listed Companies of
the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The written terms of reference in relation to the authorities and duties of the Audit Committee were
prepared and adopted in accordance with and with reference to “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Rule 10A-3 of U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010 have been

reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.
Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers whose term of office expired

and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

The Company has not changed its auditors in any of the three preceding financial years

Xiong Weiping ‘

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC |
February 28, 2011 |
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